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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

Wa have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information,

tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’} in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'} specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and
its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10} of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our repart. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI') together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters,
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Revenue recognition for software

implementation services

Refer Note 3{i)(ii) for accounting policy and 27 of notes
forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company earns revenue from software
implementation services wherein it has entered into
various fixed-price contracts, for which revenue is
recognised by the Company using the percentage of
completion computed as per the Input method
prescribed under Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts
with Cusiomers. The said revenue recognition
accounting policy involves exercise of significant
judgement by the management and the following
factors requiring significant auditor attention:

e High estimation uncertainty relating to
determination of the progress of each contract,
efforts incurred till date and additional efforts
required to complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation

s Determination of contract assels and unearned
revenue related to these contracts as at the end of
reporting period

Considering the materiality of the amounts involved

and significant degree of judgement and subjectivity

involved in the estimates as mentioned above, we
have identified revenue recognition from fixed price
contracts as a key audit matter for the current year
audit.

Our audit work included but was not restricted to
the following procedures:

a)

b)

Obtained an understanding of the systems,
processes and controls implemented by
management for recording and calculating
revenue, and the associated contract assets,
unearned revenue and deferred revenue
balances.
Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of related manual controls and involved
auditor's experts to assess key information
technology (IT) controls over the [T
environment in which the business systems
operate, including access controls, segregation
of duties, program change controls, program
development controls and |IT operation
cantrols;
Selected a sample of contracts and performed
the following procedures:
- Inspected key terms, including price,
deliverables, timetable and milestones set
out in the contract for selected sample of

contracts and identified the distinct
performance obligations.
- Tested project management tool for

budgeted efforts and related percentage
completion milestones and establishing

accuracy of milestones based on
actualisation of efforts for delivered
projects.

- Tested the details of activities completed
with those stated in the customer contract,
details of activities completed as provided
by the project head and
confirmationfacceptance of completion of
such activities by the customer.

Evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures
made in the financial statements with respect
to revenue recognised during the year as
required by applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.
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B. Trade receivables and provision for expected
credit losses

Refer note 3(e) and note 3(i} for material accounting
policy and note 43(C)(ii) for credit risk disclosures.

Trade receivables and contract assets comprise a
significant portion of the current financial assets of the
Company. As at 31 March 2024, the Company has
reported trade receivable of Rs. 31,535.97 lacs (net of
provision for expected credit loss of Rs. 3,605.77
lacs),

The Company applies simplified approach permitted
by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, which requires
lifetime expected credit losses to be recognised from
the date of initial recognition of receivables. The
Company analyses the trend of trade receivables
under different ageing bracket for previous years and
calculate weighted average loss rate basis such
movement in ageing brackets.

The estimate of expected credit loss involves
judgement as the management factors the past history
as above, market conditions and forward looking
estimates as at each reporting date.

Considering this area inherently involves significant
area of judgement and subjectivity followed with
discussions with those charged with governance at
regular intervals, we have identified this as a key audit
matter.

Our audit work included but was not restricted to
the following procedures:

a)

b)

h)

Obtained an understanding of the process
adopted and controls implemented by the
Company for calculation, recording and
monitoring of the impairment loss recognised
for expected credit loss;

Assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls  over
completeness and accuracy of the key inputs
and assumptions considered for calculation,
recording and monitoring of the impairment
loss recognised. Also, evaluated the controls
over the modetling process, validation of data
and related approvals;

Considered the Company's accounting policies
for estimation of expected cradit loss on trade
receivables and contract assets and assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of Ind AS
109;

Inquired with management about the
conditions leading to, and their assessment of
recoverability of dues from the customers and
also referred to the available communication, if
any, between them.

Assessed, on a sample basis that items in the
receivables ageing report were classified within
the correct ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with underlying
documentation, which included sales invoices,
proof of delivery and customers sign offs;

Analysed the methodology used by the
management and considered the credit and
payment history of specific parties to determine
the trend used for arriving at the expected
credit loss provision and co-related ta our

understanding of the debtor's financial
condition, the industry in which debtor
operates.

Since the assumptions and inputs used for
caleculating ECL is based on historical data, we
assessed whether such historical experience
was representative of current circumstances.

Tested the accuracy and completeness of
underlying data for “expected credit loss
model”.
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i} Evaluated responses to direct confirmation
request circulated to customers and ensured
the reconciling items have been adequately
recorded in the books of account;

j) Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe significant
assumptions used in calculation of expected
credit losses are reasonable.

k) Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made by
the management in the financial statements to
reflect the expected credit loss provision, trade and
other receivables.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The Annual Repoit is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our respaonsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibllities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
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basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
9, The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

14. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclesures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

13, We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
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or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

5. The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 as included in the
accompanying financial statements have been restated to give effect of the merger of Number Theory Software
Private Limited (NTSPL) with the Company as explained in note 47 to the accompanying financial statements. Such
financial information of NTSPL for the year ended 31 March 2023 has been audited by other auditor,

SG Arora & Co., Chartered Accountants, who issued an unmodified opinion vide their report dated 25 April 2023,
which has been furnished to us by the management and have been relied upon by us for the purpose of audit of the
financial statements. Our apinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to
its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 1987 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

17. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

18. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, to
the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accaunt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure Il whersin we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company, as detailed in note 36 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2024,
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ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeahle losses as at 31 March 2024,

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
48(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities ('the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like

" on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
49(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person of entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 in respect of such dividend
declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment
of dividend and as stated in note 38 to the accompanying standalone financial statements, the Board of
Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
#Regis atﬁ No.: 001076N/N50C013

Place Gurugram
Date: 30 April 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we repott that:

(i) (a){A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment,
capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the assets are
physically verified in a phased manner over a period of two years, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of
right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed
in Note 49(ix) to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right-of-use assets or
intangible assets during the year.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any tangible inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As disclosed in Note 49(viii) to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Rs. 500 lacs by banks based on the security of current
assets. The quarterly returns, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company
with such banks and such returns are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the
respective periods, which were not subject to audit/review.

(iiiy  The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. Further, the
Company has made investments in company during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans, or
guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reperting under clauses 3(iii)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

{b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has made investment in 1 entity
amounting to Rs. 222.48 lacs and in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, such investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at the
beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii){d}, 3(iii)(e} and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

Charterad Accountants
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iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made, as applicable. Further, the
Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in
respect of loans granted, guarantees and security provided by it.

(v} fn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Campany.

(viy The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/ services / business activities. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

{b

[hasf)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except for the following:

Name of | Nature of | Gross Amount | Period to | Forum Remarks, if any

the dues Amount paid which the | where

statute (Rs.in under amount dispute is
lacs) Protest relates pending

{Rs.)

Income | Income 117.59 |- AY 2020-21 CIT(A)

Tax Act, | Tax and

1961 Interest

Income | Income 67.55 | - AY 2021-22 CIT(A)

Tax Act, { Tax and

1961 Interest

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any loans or
other barrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{x) {(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accardingly, reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
(fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Cgmpé_n j_l‘j@g\been noticed or reparted during the period covered by our audit.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, na report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, with
the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accardingly, reperting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiiiy In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable.
Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified
in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the provisions
of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period under
audit.

{(xv} According to the information and expianation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv} of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.

{xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3{xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not
have any CIC .

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as weli as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Campany.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions , nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance shest date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
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(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the end
of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this

report.

For Walker Chandick 8 Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firpn's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.: 507429 Al
UDIN: 24507429BKCKKAB342 ~25g ot

Place: Gurugram
Date; 30 April 2024

Charterad Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure 1l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
(the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAl prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes abtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directars of the company,; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential componsents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firn’'s, Registratics

kit Mehra
Partner
Membership No.: 507429 e
UDIN: 24507420BKCKKAB342  HEE0EE

A

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 April 2024

Chartered Accountants



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Standulone Balance Sheet us at 31 Marely 2024

(Al amounts are i lakhs of hidilan Rupees, indess wthervise stated)

Note Asat Asnl
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 4 16,371.65 16,383.78
Capilal work-in-progress 4 275,53 -
Right-of-use assets 3% 6,392.60 6,034.93
Gooedwill 4A 28331 283.31
Intangible assets 5 1,022.03 1,314,905
Financial assels
[uvesyument in subsidiaries 6 2,858.20 2,335,30
Other Financial assets 7 8,271.40 i9,111.39
Deferred tux assets {net) 3 2,658.84 1,910,72
Income lax assets {(nel) § 1,501.44 1,791.06
Other non-curren! assels 9 17.86 14,12
Tolnk non-current nssets 39,756,860 44,179.56
Current nssety
Financial assels
Investments 10 36,498 89 13,138.80
Trade recelvables il 31,535.97 3121140
Cash and cash equivalents 12 4,990.98 4,721.82
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 20,022.60 9,729.32
Loans 4 11.73 7.00
Other financial assats 15 16,066.39 12,813,27
Cther current assets 16 242004 1,254.51
Total current assels 1,11,355.60 72,876,12
TOTAL ASSETS 1,51,312.46 1,22,055,68
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equelty
Equity Share capilal 17 13,977.93 6,965.57
Other equily 18 1,00,779.78 85,261.34
Total equity atiributable to owners of the company 1,14,787.71 92,226.91
Non-curtrent linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 - 220,08
Lease linbilities o 2,996.53 2,697.20
Provisions 21 4,750.66 3.453.03
Fotn! non-current llablilites 114119 6,370.88
Current linbilitles
Finaneial linbilities
Borrowings 20 219,92 203.30
Lease Hiabilities 19 952,25 767.78
Trade payables
- Total outslanding dues lo micro enterprises and small enlerprises 22 632,13 58,38
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and smalf enterprises 22 5,563.14 54461.88
Other financial linbillties 23 4,720,30 3,610.24
Deferred income 24 11,807.67 9,695.94
Cuher current Jiabililies 25 2,694.55 1,292,16
Provisions 20 908.16 936,25
Inconie tax liabilities (net) BA 1,309.44 1,422.76
Total current Jinbilitles 28,807.56 23,457,8%
Total Habllltles 36,584,738 29,828.77
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,51,312,46 1,22,055.68
Sumnary of material accounting policies 3
‘The accompanying notes are an integeal part of the Standalone Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Lhyriervd Accetoitanty For and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors of
Newgen Software Technotogies Linted
- ,{’f\’ A ’ L —
l;/S bs.u’/ﬁf“-’ej ~ ]
S
e
Twnkar Nignm T8, Varadarnjun
Chairman & Managing Direclor Wholg Time Director
DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115
Place: Gurugram Plage; Chennai Plgee: Noida Place: Noidu
Dale: 30-April-2024 Datef30-April-2024 23 Daer 30-April-2024 Date: 30-April-2024

4‘""‘
i e
o
i (
Ada A
run Kunue Guptn

Chief Financiat Officer
Membership No: 056859

Company Sccretary

Membership No; FO975

Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: J0-April-2024 Date: 30-Apri)-2024



Newgen Software Technologles Limited
Standalone Stntement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al nouns are (n lakhs of Indien Rupees, untess otherwise stated)

Income

Revenus from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefils expense

Finance cosls

Depreciation and amortisalion expenses
Other expenses

‘Fotnl expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current lax
Deferred tax credit
Income tax experse

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently Lo profit or loss

Re-measurement {losses)/gzing on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating (o items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Net ether compreliensive loss not {o be reclnssified subsequently to profit or loss

Items that wili be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss

Financial assets or investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Net sther comprehensive loss to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehenslve income for the year

Earnings per equity share

Nominal value of share INR 10 {31 March 2023: INR 10)
Basic earning per share (INR)

Diluted earning per share (INR)

Sutnmasy of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financinl $talements

As per our report of even date attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanty
jm Reglstration No.: D01076N/NS00013

Diwakar Nigam

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Place: Chennai
0-Aprit-2024

Place: Gurugram

Date: 30-Aprit-2024 Date:

For the year ended

TPor the year ended

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
27 1,13,611.93 88,720.06
28 4,550.01 129111
1,18,161,94 92,071.47
20 53,931.47 43,313.03
39 410.65 389,18
31 2,585.09 2,263.72
32 32,759.68 25,716,04
89,726.89 71,681.99
28,435.05 20,389,18
33
5,270.70 3,872.52
(569.20) (277.43)
470150 3,595.00
23,733.55 16,794,09
(467.22) (13.20)
163,26 4,61
(303.96) (8.59)
(67.18) (281.70)
15,65 65.63
(51.53) (216.07)
(355,49) (224,66
23,378.06 16,56%.43
34
17.00 12.06
16.51 1191
3

For und on behalf of the Bogrd of Directors of
Newgen Software Technologies Linited

T.S.Varadnrnjnn
Who!e Time Director
DIN: 00263115

Place: Noida
Dale; 30-April-2024

PANIWAOPI2433N

Place: Noida
Date: 30-April-2024

Arun Kumar Gupta
Chief Finaneial Officer
Membership No: 056859

Place; Noida
Date: 30-April-2024

/

Mo M gus e

Amuan Mourya
Company Secretary
Membership No: F9975

Place; Noida
DPrate: 30-April-2024



Newgen Software Techowlgles Limited
Standwlone Statement of Changes in Equity for the yeur ended 31 March 2024
(All amonnis are b Jukhs of Indion Rupees, unless otherwise ytated)

n. Share capiul

Eouily share caplta) Total share caplal
Particulurs Number Ampunt Amount
Balance asad 1 April 2022 6,99,55,701 6,993.57 6,995.57
Less: Shures held by Newgen ESCP Trust 300,025 30.00 30.00
‘futal Share capilal us ot 31 March 2023 6,96,55,676 6,965.57 6,965.57
Bulance as at 1 Aprif 2023 T09,55,701  6,095.57 708557
Add: lssued during the yeur to Nevegen ESOP Trust before bunus issue 113,706 1137 11,37
Bitlanee shiares before bonis lssue 7,844 7,006,94 7,406.94
Add: Bonus Share Issued during the yeur 7,00,69,401 7,006.94 1,006.84
Adil; Issued during the yeur to Newgen ESOP Trust after bonus issie 1,53,000 15.30 1530
Total Share Capifel as un 31 March 2024 14,029,802  14,029,18 14,029,18
[Less: Shares held by Mewgen ESOF Trust 5,012,483 5125 51,25
Dalance #s at 3t March 2024 13,97,79,31% 139779 13,9773

=8

Otler eqully¥

Ttems of Other

Others
comprehensive hcome Total
Securilies Ttedntued Capltal Generzl Capital | Newgen | Share oplions | Remeasurem Debt atiribuisbe to
Particuturs premlum carnings | redemption | reserve | Reserve | ESOP oumtstanding  lent of defhued | instruments | gwners of (e
TESErVe Trust reserve henedit Alrough OCLY  Company
reserye liability

Balance ns at 1 Aprit 2022 10,525,26 [ 56,755.88 8795 1,731.39 | 416.3% 51171 762,77 (235.42) 381 T,559.74
Tutal comprehensive income Tor the yenr exded 31 March 2023
Profit for the yeur - 16,794.09 - - - - - - - 16,794.09
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (net of tex) - B - B - - {8.59) {216.0T) (224,66)
Transucllons with owners, recorded directly n eguily
Addition 1o Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - - 28.64 - - - 28.64
Contributions by and distributons te vwners

Dividend on equily shares - {3.148.00) - - - - - - - (3,148.01)

Employee stock compensollon expense - - - - - - 1,463.91 - - 1,463

Translerred to securities premium uccount on exereise of slock options 80.05 - - - - - (84.60) - - {4.55}
Palunce ns at 31 March 2023 10,605.31 | H40L95 8795 1,731.39 |  415.3% 540,35 2,142,08 (2d4d.01) (212.26) 8546916
Less: Securities premium en shares hield by Newgen ESOP Trust 207.82 0732
Halance ns at 3] March 2023 10,397,491 7040196 #7.98 1,731.34 | 416.39 540,35 2,142.08 (244,01} {212,26) #5,261.34
Balanee ns at 1 Aprll 2023 10,6053 | 70,d0156 87.95 1,731.39 416,39 541135 2,142,084 24401 (252,26} 8346416
Total comsprehensive income for dhe year ended 31 Marcl 2024
Prolit for the yeur - 23,733,55 B - - - - - - 23,733,55
DOther comprehensive loss (net of 1x) - . - - - {303.96) (51.53) (355.4%)
Securities premium on jssue of bonus shures {7,006.94) - - - - - . - 006,94
Transactions whl owiers, recarded directly o equity
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve - - - - - 12.94 - - - 1284
Shures ullotted to Newgen ESOP Trust 484,41 - - - - - - - - 484,41
Contributluns by and distributions to vwners

Dividend on equity shures - {3.497.79) - - - - B - B {3,497.79)

Employee stock compensotion expense - - - - - + 243192 - - 243192

Tronsterred (o sécurities premitm sevount on exereise of stock opliony 132,79 - - - - - (132,79 - - -
Balance ns at 31 blarch 2024 4,215,857 | 90,637.72 87.95 173139 416,39 553.2% 447,21 (547.97) (263,79} L2776
Less: Sccurities premium on shores held by Newgen ESOP Trust A497.98 - - - - - - - - Y758
Balance ns at 31 March 2024 3,717.59 [ 90,637.72 87.95 5,733 416.3% 553.29 4,447.21 (54797 (263.74) 1,00,779.78
* Refer note |8
Sumunury of materia] secounting policies Note 3

‘The secompanying noles are un integral port of the Standulone Finunvinl Staiements
As per our repord of even date stached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

ariered Aceountanty For and on behelf of the Board of Directors of
Finih, Registration No.: 001076NNSO0013 Newgey ﬁ;l&wnrb Techinotugies Limifed

15 T T P———— Diwakitr Nignm
Chairnun & Manuging Director
epbership No.: 507429 DIN: 00263222

Place: Chennui

Pluce: Gurugram
Dale: 30-April- 2024

Arun Kumar Gupta
Chief Finonviu! Officer
Membership No: 856859

Pluce: Neldu
Duate: 30-April- 2024

T.5,Yarndarajan

Whale Time Director
DIN: 00263115

Pluce: Noidu

Dute: 30-April-2024

WNEEN

Aman Mourya
Company Secretury

Membership No: 9975
Piuce: Noldu

Dute: 30-April-2024

Ploee: Noido

Date: 30-April-2024




Newgen Seoftware Technologles Limited

Standalotie Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN ammounis are in lakhs of indiun Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

Particulars

A, Cash flows from operating activities

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Net profit before tax 28,435,05 20,389.18
Adjustreents for:
Depreciation and amozlisation expense 2,585,09 2,263.72
(Gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (13.35) 0.58
088 allowance on trade receivables and contract assels 2,345.16 1,825.63
Liabilities/ provision no longer required written back (120.68) (1,020.65}
Unrealised foreign exchange (Gain) / loss (372.28) 211.86
Share based payment - equity settled 2,137.51 1,277.02
Finance costs 328.57 32833
Fair value changes of financial assets a1 FYTPL (1,359.54) (87.29)
Profit on sale of mutual funds {pet) at FVTPL (254.94) (151,30
Interest income (2,352.06) {2,029.62)
Operating cash flow belore worklng eapital changes 31,358.53 23,007.46
Incrense in trade receivables (2,571.4% (14,032,98)
(Increase)/decrease in loans [CPrEd] 13.92
Increase in other financial assets (2,232,01) (468.38)
Increase in ofther assets (1,178.27) {364.84)
Ingrease in provisions 801.72 418,82
Increase/{decrease) in other financial Habilities 997.80 (30,83}
Increase in other liabilities 3,514,13 1,983,27
Increase in trade payables 795,66 2.430.67
Cash generated from operations 31,481.36 12,937.11
Income taxes paid (net) (5,094.41} (3,614.41)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 26,386.95 9,322.70
B. Cash Hows from lavesting activitles
Acquisition or construction of property plant and equipment
including intungible assels, capital work-in-progress, capital {1,361.99) (1,656.29)
advances and payable for capital assets
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 17.60 7.96
Purchase of mutual funds and bonds (36,199.38) (13,198.40}
Praceeds from redemption of mutual funds and bonds 14,386.59 9,251.49
Interest received from bonds 426,36 428.49
Interest receivedd from bank deposits 1,127,535 1,065.16
Investiment in subsidiary company (222.48) (675.30)
Investment in bank deposils (net of maturities) 240.48 {1,002.31)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (21,585,27) (5,779.30)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net) (234,24) (234.23)
Repayment of lease liabilities (1,015.27) (913.71)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares under ESOP scheme 212.62 72,73
Dividend paid (3,495.60) (3,148.01)
Net cash used in financlug activities (C) (4,532,52) (4,223.22)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivatents (A + B+ C) 269.10 {679.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begiuning of the year 4,721.82 5,401.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,990.98 4,721,582
Components of cash and cash equivalents: (refer note 12)
Cash in hand 6.45 4,16
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 3,583.14 4,102.59
- balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 1,401.39 615.07
4,990.98 4,721,82

Notes:

1. The cash fow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

The accompanying noles are an integral past of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date atached

For and on behalf of the Board of Dirvectors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Acconntants
,Reglsteation No,: 00] 076N/N500013

% o Q
{ /m benik
Diwakar Nigam ) T.8.Varadarajan
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director 3
DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 PAN: AAOPJ2433N
Place: Gurugram Place: Chennai "oy Place: Noida Piace: Noidn

Date: J0-Aprii-202 Date: 30-April-2024 Date: 30-April-2024

o Maguse A

Arun Kumar Guptn Aman Mourya
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 056859 Membership No: F9975

Dale: 30-April-2024

Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: 30-April-2024 Date: 30-April-2024




Newgen Software Technologles Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (‘Newgen' or ‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act appicable in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at E-44/i3, Okhla Phase 11, New
Dethi - 110020, The Company raised money by way of initial public offer during the year ended 31 March 2018 and its shares were listed
on the National Stock Bxchange (NSE) and Bombay Steck Exchange (BSE) of India.

The Company is a global software Company and is engaged in the business of software product development including designing and
detivering end-to-end software solutions covering the entire speclrum of software services from workflow automation to Document
management to imaging, Newgen provides a complete range of software that helps automate business processes, Newgen's solutions
enable document intensive organizations/ industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance and government departments to improve
productivity through better document management and workflow impletmentation,

2. Basis of Preparation

A. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Hxchange Board of India (SEBI). The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were the first financial
statements that the Company had prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30 April 2024,

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are inciuded in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functionat currency. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following iters:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Defined Benefit Liability Present value of defined benefit obligations

D. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-contrelling interests in the acquiree, For
each business combination the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assume are recognised at their acquisition date fair values.
For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obiigation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

However, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements ate recognised and
measuted in accordance with Ind AS §2 ‘Income Taxes’ and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ respectively. When a Hability assumed
is recognised at the acquisition date, but the related costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a later period, a
deductible temporary difference arises which results in a deferred tax asset, A deferred tax asset also arises when the fair value of an




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

E.

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OC], as appropriate,

Any contingent consideration (o be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments,
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of Ind-AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind-AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initiatly measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts
to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment atill results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination s, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whethier other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned fo
those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill altocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pto rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit,

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwilt has been allocated to a cash generating unit and patt of the operation within that unit is disposed off, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete, Those provisional amounts are
adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized
at that date, These adjustments are called as measurement period adjusiments. The measurement period does not exceed one year
from the acquisition date.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may requite material adjustment to the carrying
value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period

s are revised and in any future periods affected.
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Judgements

Infarmation about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most material effects on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note 3(i) and Note 27 — revenue recognition from fixed price contracts of software implementation services; percentage of completion
method (o estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended.
e Note 3(I) and Note 19 — determination of lease term,

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year
ending 3| March 2024 is included in the following notes:

e Note 3(c)(iii) ~Estimation of Useful lives of infangible assets and Property, plant and equipment

¢ Note 29 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

¢ Note 33 — Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;
¢  Note 35 ~Fair value of share based payments

o Note 43 — Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets.

e  Note 19 - Recognition of right of use asset and lease liability

F. Current and non-current classitication
The Company presefits assets and liabilities in the balance sheet hased on current / non-current classification,
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following critetia:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle.

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

. itisexpected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at teast 12 months after the

reporting date,

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal opetating cycle;
- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
- it is due to be seftled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are
classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycie

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-cutrent classification of

assets and liabilities.
p
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G. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disctosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports
directly to the chief financial officer, The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the
fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s audit committee.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

»  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from: prices).

»  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has oceurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
Note 35 — Share-based payment arrangements; and

Note 43 — Financial instruments,

H. Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the company.

I. Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023, The amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the company.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The
amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the company.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the company.
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KX

Material Accounting Policies
a. Foreign currency

i, Functional currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

ii, Foreign currency fransactions _
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the functionat currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies ate translated into the funetionat cutrency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and labilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functionat
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historica
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

b, Financial instruments
i, Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities ate initially recognised when the Company becomes a patty o the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are measured at transaction price.

{i. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

On initiat recognition, a financiaf asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost;

. Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) ~ debt

- Pair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; ot
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if It meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

= the assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

»  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of ptincipal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOC if it meets both of the following conditions and is ot designated as FVTPL:

»  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

+  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. :
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All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FYTPL. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured al amortised
cost or at FVOCT as at FVTPL if doing so efiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management, for instance the stated policies and objectives
for the portfolio, frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations
about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assels to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose,
consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets that are held for trading ot are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assels. Assessmen! whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and Interest,

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the Company considers:

*  contingent events that woutd change the amount or timing of cash flows;
»  terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
= prepayment and extension features; and

Basis the above classification criteria, Company's investments are classified as below:-

- Investments in povernment and other bonds have been classified as FYOCL
- Investments in Mutual funds have been classified as FVTFL.

Financial asseis: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or {oss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair vaiue. Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI, On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss,

Equiry investments at FYOCT
These asseis are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in Statement of prafit or loss unless the dividend
clearty represents a recovery of patl of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified
to Statement of profit or loss,
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified
as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss,

ifi, Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantiatly all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain contro] of the financial asset,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its batance sheet, but retains either all or substaatially all
of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial labilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelted, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair vatue. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial lability with modified terms is recognised in profit or
loss.

iv.  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simuitaneously.

v.  Derivatives and Embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein
are generatly recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and
cerfain criteria are met,

¢.  Property, plant and equipment
i, Recognition and measuremen!
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of propetty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comptises the cost of materiats and direct labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major componenysy of preperty, plant and equipment.
PPt
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Any gain or loss on disposat of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital
advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use hefore such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-
progress.

ii.  Subsequent expendifure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the Company.

iit. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Assets acquired under finance leases
are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain

ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated usefut lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Category of property, plant and equipment Estimated useful life {Years)
Building 60
Plant and equipment [5
Leasehold Improvements™ 3
Office equipment** 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computer hardware
- servers and networks 6
- Computers** 3.5

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed off).
* easehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease term of the respective property or 3 years whichever is lower.
Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period of 90 years,

**Based on an internal technical assessment, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represents the period over
which management expects to use its assets. Hence, the useful life of plant and equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013,

d. Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at
its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumutated impairment loss, if any,

Subsequent expendititre

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates,
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Amaortization

Intangjbie assets of the Company represents computer software and Al Platform , are amortized using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life ot the tenure of the respective software tcense, whichever is lower, The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly diffetent from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

The estimated useful lives of Intangible Assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Intangible Assets Estimated Useful Life {Years)
Al Platform 5
Other Intangibles 4-5

Gains ot losses atising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

[

Impairment

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FYTOCI

c.  Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d, Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS [15

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f.  Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
* Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
« All lease receivabies resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment
joss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit isk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significanty, lifetime ECL. is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime BECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

"The [2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that ate possible within 12 months after the

reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

¢  Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an

allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount,
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e Loan commitments and financiat guarantee contracts;: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a lability.
Deht instruments measured at EVTOCI: For debt instraments measured at FYOCT, the expected credit losses do not reduce the
carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the aflowance that would arise if
the asset was measured at arnortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the “accumulated impairment amount”.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit
impaired on purchase/ origination.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's cartying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation ot amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognized,

f. Employee benefits

i Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii.  Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity seftled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Company and subsidiaries of the
Company is recognised as an employee expense and deemed investment, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense/deemed investment is based on the estimate
of the numbet of awards for which the retated service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense/dement investment is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market
vesting conditions at the vesting date, For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to refiect such conditions and thete is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

ifi. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
empioyee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available,

iv.  Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s gratuity scheme is a
defined benefit plan, The present value of obligations under such defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried
out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separatety to build up the final obligation.
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The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows, The discount rates used for determining the present value
of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the batance sheet date, having
maturity period approximating to the terms of related obligations

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period
in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss, Changes in the present value of
the defined benefit obligation resulling from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
setvice cost,

v.  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or
receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is ciassified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee tendets the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured
on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss

g. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected futute cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for, Provisions are reviewed
by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Onerouts contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company from the contract are lower
than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract, The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a
provision is made, the Company recognises any impaitment loss on the assets associated with that contract,

h. Contingent liabilities ;

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurtence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncettain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources witl be required to settle the obligation, ot a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

..  Revenue

Effective | April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Company
has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the
Standalone financial staterments of the Company.
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Revenues from customer’s contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties,
in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services {*performance obligations™) 1o
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products or
services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

i, Sale of License

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of licenses to the customers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of software sold can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial
involvement with the licenses transferred and the amount of revenue can be measuted reliably.

ii. Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is tecognized in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Efforts or
costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Software Implementation Services

The revenue from fixed price contracts for software implementation is recognized based on proportionate completion method based on
hours expended, and foreseeable losses on the completion of contract, if any are recognized immediately, Efforts or costs expended have
been used to determine progress towards completion as there is a direct refationship between input and productivity. Progress towards
completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts.
Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts are continuously monitored over the lives of the contracts and are recognized in
profit or {oss in the period when these estimates change or when the estimates are revised. Revenues and the estimated total costs or efforts
are subject to revision as the contract progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the
petiod in which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

The Company is also involved in time and material contracts and recognizes revenue as the services are performed,

Annual Technical services
Revenue from annual technical service and mainteniance contracts is recognised ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance

arrangement,

iff. Sale of right to use saftware

Software-as-a-service, thal is, a right to access software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure provided by the Company. Revenue
from arrangements where the customer obtains a “right to access” is recognized over the access petiod.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due to the sale of license is recognized as the performance obligations are
satisfied,

Revenue is recognised, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates, This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to
the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms. Reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses received from customers
have been netted off with expense.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services to be performed are recorded as advance from customers/unearned revenue. Unbilled
revenue represents amounts recognized based on services petformed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

v, Multiple deliverable arrangements

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, the Company has apptied the
guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance
obtigation. The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering license for software products and related services
as distinet performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each
performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold
separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where the company is unable to determine the standalone selling
§%s{ihe expected cost plus margin approach in estimating the standalone selling price.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three etements license, implementation and Annual Technical Services (ATS).
The company has applied the principles under ind AS 115 to account for revenues from these performance obligations. When
jmplementation services are provided in conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation have been
identified as two separate performance obligations, the transaction price for such contracts are aflocated to each performance obligation of
the contract based on their relative standalone selling prices. In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation, the performance
obligation is estimated using the expected cost plus margin approach,

Deferted contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assets and amortized over the term of the
contract,

Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on transaction price which is at arm’s Jength.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue carned over billings on contracts. Contract assels are classified as unbilled
receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as
per contractual terms,

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues,
Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of license or rendering of services in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as current, Where the settlement is due after one year, they are
classified as non-current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequent!y at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade
receivables are disclosed in Note 11,

Impairment

An impairment is recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of receivable or asset relating to contracts with customers {a) the
remaining amount of consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for sale of license or rendering of services to which
such asset relates: less (b) the costs that relate directly to providing those sale of license or rendering of services and that have not been
recognised as expenses.

j.  Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in Statement of profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is
not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

k. Sale of investments

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the sales
price and the carrying value of the investment
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Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, al inceplion of a contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
ientified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to
direct the use of the asset, :

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense o1 a
straight-tine basis over the term of the lease.

Cerfain lease arranigements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and
lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, ot not to exercise
the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease pius any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease ot, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset
if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension ot a termination option, The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of feases with similar characteristics.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, retated to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws)
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised armounts,
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses and tax credits, Defetred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or labilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the (ime of the transaction;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabile that future taxable protits will be available against which they can
be used. Deferred tax assets — untecoghised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabitities.

Deferred lax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent
thete is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried
forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
writter: down to the extent the aforesaid convineing evidence no longer exists.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share (“EPS")

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Dituted earnings per share is computed using the net profit.or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the wéighted
average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year but including share options,
compulsory convertible preference shares except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

Share Capital
Equity Shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuarice of new equity shares are recognized as
a deduction from equity.

Dividends

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and interim dividend are recorded
as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

R THE
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q. Basis of segmentation
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM).

ldentification of segments:

All operating segments’ results are reviewed regutarly by the Board of Directors, who have been identified as the CODM, to allocate
resoutces to the segments and assess their performance. Refer note 45 for segment information.

r. ESOP Trust

The ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the
total share capital, Consequently, al} the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities
of the Company, except for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust which are directly adjusted
in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

5.  Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule L, .unless otherwise stated.
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4

4A

Property, plant and equipment

Cest

Balance as at 1 Aprll 2022
Additions during the year
Capitalised during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions during the year
Capitlised during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance ns at 31 March 2024

Accuniutated Deprecintion
Balance us at 1 April 2022
Depreciation duting the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Binlance as nt 31 March 2023
Deprecinticn during the year
Less: Disposals during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2024
Carrying amounl (net)
Balnnce ns at 31 March 2023
Balince as at 31 March 2024

Capital commitment as on 31 March 2024 is INR 422.57 lakhs (31 March 2023: NIL)

Agelng of Capital work-In progress

As ot 31 March 2024

Capltal work-in progress
Projects in progress

Projects ternposarily suspended
Totul

As at 31 March 2023

Frechold tand Bulldings Plant and Lensehold Vehicles Office Furnlture and  Computer Total Caplial
equlpment  improvemenis equipment {Ixtures and servers work-In-
Progress
4.28 12,895.15 722,11 599 477,09 1,357.57 616,73 01077 19,084.69 -
- 13,81 - 99.43 21.87 2.45 542,36 635,92 643,11
- - - 643,11 - - - - 643,11 643,11
- - 42.60 41,63 16.53 2.37 619.82 722,95 -
4,28 12,895.15 693,32 649,10 534,89 1,368.91 616.81 2,933,531 19,695.77 -
- 33.25 - 413.11 76.17 23.99 748,19 1,296.71 279.53
- - $6.12 - 835 73.12 26.16 302.28 496.04 -
4.28 12,895,15 642,45 649,10 934,64 1,371,96 614,04 3,379.22 20,496,44 279,53
436,11 222,71 5,99 138.28 458,06 213.99 1,436,72 2,911,86 -
- 217.02 66.48 52.82 §3.53 133,26 61.93 519.53 1,114.5%
- 37.79 - 41,63 16.23 2.20 6516.51 714,46 -
- 653,13 251,40 58.81 160.20 575,09 273,72 1,339.64 3,311.99 -
B 217.64 63.84 214.81 66.03 131.41 61,55 549,31 1,304,539 -
- - 85.37 - 8.36 72.27 20,37 30342 491,79 -
- 870.77 229.87 27362 217.87 634,23 314,90 1,583.53 4,124.79
4,28 12,242.02 441,92 590.29 374,69 793.82 343,09 1,593.67 16,183.78 -
4.28 12,024,128 412,58 175,48 12577 731,73 209,74 1,795.6% 16,371.0% 279.53
As at 31 March 2024 properties with n carrying nmount of INR 350,26 lakhs (31 March 2023 : INR 358,38 lakls) are subject to first charge to working capital Himits from banks,
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 vears More than 3 yenrs Totl
279.53 - - - : 27553
279.83 279.53
There are 1o projects whose completion is overdue or hias exceeded its cost compared 10 its original plan as at 31 March 2024
Less than 1 year 1-2 yenrs 2.3 years

Capital work-in progress
Projects in progress

Projects tempoenrily suspended
Total

Goodwill

Opening Balance {refer stote 47)
1mpaisment of goodwitl
Closing Balance

Intanglhle assets

Caost

Balunce as at 1 Aprll 2022
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accwmulated Amortlsation
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Amortisation during the year
Balance ns at 31 Mnrch 2023
Amortisation during the year
Balnnce s at 31 March 2024
Carrying nmount {net}

Balance as nt 31 March 2023
Balunee ns at 31 March 2024

More than 3 years

Taotal

Asat As at
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
28331 283.31
283.31 283,31
Computer Al Platform Total
software
412.61 1,654.33 2,066.94
56,18 - 56,18
468,79 1,654,33 2,123,12
72,18 - 72.18
540,97 1,654.33 2,195.30
399.52 56,20 458,72
21,58 330.87 352,45
421,10 387.07 808,17
33.33 331.77 365.10
454.43 718.84 1,173.27
47.69 1,267.26 1,314,95
86.54 935,49 1,022.03
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6  Investment in subsidinries

Investments in equity instruments - at cost (unquoted)

6,000 (31 March 2022: 6,000) common shares of USD 200 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Inc.

1,000,600 (31 March 2022: 1,000,000) common shares of CAD 0.10 each, fully
paid up of Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Limited.

250,000 (31 March 2022; 250,000} ordinary shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid up
of Newgen Software Technologies Pre, Limited.

210,000 (31 March 2022: 210,000) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited.

20,000,000 (3! March 2022: 20,000,000) common stock of GBP 0.01 each, fully
paid up of Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Lid.

1,000,000 (3t March 2022; 1,000,000) common shares of AUD 1 each, fully
paid up of Newgen Software Technologies Pty Lid.

3,000 (31 March 2022: 3,000) equity shates of AED 1000 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Technologies LLC

100,000 (31 March 2023: Nil) equity shares of SAR 10 gach, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited

Aggregate book vatue of unguoted investments

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
902,29 701.61
80.87 67,74
159.47 124,30
46,50 46,30
216,79 197.51
554.50 522.34
675.30 675.30

222.48 -
2,858.20 2,335.30
2,858.20 2,335.30

Increase in investment represents investment in Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited and deemed investment on account of share based payment

awards granted to the employees of subsidiaries.

7 Other financiai assets (non-current)

Bank deposits

- Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
- pledged with tax authorities

- held as margin money*

Lnterest accrued on deposits

Security deposits

Earnest money deposits

-Unsecured, considered good

-Unsecured, considered doubtful

-Less: Loss allowance for doubtfuf deposits

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,990.85 14,019.87
6.02 4,42
4,366.02 3,870.19
394,37 769.32
476.89 422,06
137,25 25.53
164.75 164,75
(164.73) (164,75)
8,371.40 19,111.39

*Bank deposits held as margin Mmoney represents deposits made on account of guarantees issued to government customers amounting 1o INR 1,734.43 lakhs (31
March 2023; INR 687,73 lakhs) and deposits made to avai! overdraft facilities amounting to INR 2,631.59 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 3,182.46 Lakhs)

Information about Company's exposuze Lo credit and market risks and fair value measurement is included in Note 43 .

8  Income tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provision of INR 9,403.22 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 17,205.30 Jakhs))

8A Income tax linbilities (net)

Provision for tax (net of advance tax of INR 3,543.93 lakhs (31 March 2023 INR 2,363.08 lakhs))

9 . Other non-current assets

Prepald expenses

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,501.44 1,791.06
1,501.44 1,791.06
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,309.44 1,422.76
1,389,44 1,422.76
As at As at
31 Maxch 2024 31 March 2023
17,86 14,12
17.86 14.12
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Investments {refer note 41)
Investments in bonds (unquoted)
Bongs at FYOCI

-Investment in government bonds

Investments in mutual funds (unguoted)
Mutuat funds at FVTPL

Aggregate book value of unquoted investiments

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

6,390.08 6,186.35

6,390.08 6,186,35
30,108.81 6,952.45
30,108,851 6,952.45
36,198.89 13,138.80
36,498.89 13,138.80

Investments in bonds 1neasured al FYOCH have stated interest rates of 7.04% 1o 8.63%. Information about Company's exposure to credit and markel risks and fair

value measurement is included in Note 43(c).

Trade receivables

- Trade receivables -Unsecured, considered good
- Trade receivables - Credit impaired

Allewance for bad and doubtful debts
- Trade receivables -Unsecured, considered good

- Trade receivables - Credit impaired

Trade Recelvable Ageing Schedule

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

34,725.01
416,73

34,318.10
803.07

35,141.74

(3,189.04)
(416.73)

35,121,17

(3,106,70)
(803,07)

31,535.97

31,211.46

Current but
not dae

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 vears

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More Than
3 years

Taotal

As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good 22,955.16

Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

increase in credit risk -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit

impaired -

Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good -
Disputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

increase in credit risk -

Disputed Trade Receivables-
credit impaired -

8,975.22

1,195.99

989,22

461.94

416,73

147.48

34,725.0i

416.73

22,955,16

8,975.22

1,195,99

989.22

878.67

147.48

35,141,74

Current but
Particulars not due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 yenrs

1-2 Years

2.3 Yenrs

More Than
3 years

Total

Asat 31 March 2023

Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good 21,531.39
Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

increase in credit risk -
Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit

impaired "
Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good -

Disputed Trade Receivables-
Which have significant

increase in credit risk -
Disputed Trade Receivab)
credil impaired

8,662.80

1,914.83

1,768.59

744,28

44049

58,79

34,318.10

803.07

21,531.39

8,662.80

1,514.83

2,512.87

35,121,17
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Trade receivables also includes balance receivables from related parties, For details refer note 42

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severaliy or jointly with any other person. Ner any trade or other

receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, director or a member.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generaily on terms of 15-90 days.

The Company's exposute o credit and currency risks and ioss allowances related to trade receivables are discussed in note 43C (i) & 43C (v).

- Cash and cash equivalents As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash on hand 645 4,16
Balances with banks
- ih current accounts* 3,583.14 4,102.59
-Balances with scheduled banks In deposit accounts with original maturity of less 1,401.39 615.07
than three months

4,990.98 4,721.82

*Current account balances with banks include INR 180,76 fakhs (3¢ March 2023: INR 66,58 lakhs) held at a foreign branch.

Short term deposits are varying from periods of between one day te three months, depending upon the immediate cash requirements of the group, and earn

interest at the respeclive shorl term deposit rates.

Bank halances other cash and cash equivalents As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with scheduled banks in
- Original maturity of less than 12 months 20,013.87 9,722.75
- Unclaimed dividend account* 873 6.57
20,022.60 9,729.32
*These balances are not available for use by the Company as they represent corresponding unclaied liabilities,
Current financial assets - Loans As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loans to employees* 11,73 7.00
11,73 7.00
*These are interest bearing loans - repayable within one year given 1o employees, chargeable at the rate of 12% p.a.
Current financial assets - Others As at As at
31 Maxch 2024 31 March 2023
(unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on deposits 1,526.43 383.93
Interest acerued but not due on government bonds 307.82 308.18
Derivatives assels 68.47 -
Security deposits 192.77 15.45
Other receivable 123.10 -
Contracl assets*
- other than relaled patties 7,288.42 7,949.95
Less: Provision for joss allowance (207.72) (225.78)
- related parties (refer note 42) 6,767.10 4,381,354
16,066.39 12,813.27

#Contract assets (unbilled revenue) represents amounts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms.

*Changes in contract assets (unbilled revenue) is as foilows:

As at As at
31 Mareh 2024 31 Magch 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,331.49 11,835.50
Less: Amount of revenue billed during the year (10,185.44) (8,712.45)
Add: Addition during the year 11,909,47 9,208.44
Balance ai the end of the year 14,055.52 12,331.49
Other current assets As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances o vendors 103.43 88.83
Batances with government authorities* 1,109.78 -
Deferred contract cost 151.96 180.94
Advance 1o employees 168,82 23839
Prepaid expenses 805,05 746,35
2,429.04 1,254.51

*Balances with government authorities comprises of Goods and Service tax (GST) input credit , In previous year i.e. 31 March 2023, GST input has been netted

off with GST liabilities.
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17A

i7B

17C

17D

Equity Shave capital

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Nunther Nurmiber
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 9,80,00,200 9,800,02 9,80,00,200 9,800.02
Add: Equity share capital of INR 10 each 7,01,00,000 7,010.00 - -
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each 1,19,99 860 1,199.98 1,19,99,800 £,199.98
18.01,00,000 18,010.00 11,00,00,000 11,000.00
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Issued, subscribed and paid up Number Numiber
of shares Amount of shares Amount
Equity share capital of INR 10 eacl, fully paid up 6,99,55,70% 6,995.57 6,99,55,704 6,995.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust before bonus issue 1,13,700 11.37 . .
Add; Bonus shares issued during the year 7.00.69.401 7,006.94 - -
Add: Issued during the year Lo Newgesn ESOP Trust after bonus issue 1,53,000 15.30 - -
Tolal after bonus issue 14,92,91,802 14,029.18 6,99,55,701 6,998,587
Less : Shares held by Newgen ESQOP Trust ' 5,12,483 51.25 3,060,025 30,00
Total equity share capital 13,97,79,319 13,977.83 6,96,55,676 6,965.57
Reconcillation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end at the reporting year,
As at 31 Morch 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Equity share capital of INR 10 each, fully paid up Number Amount Number Amount
of shares of shares
At the beginning of the year 6,99,55,701 6,995,57 6,99,55,701 6,995.57
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust before bonus issue 1,13,700 11.37 - R
Add; Bonus shares issued during the year 7,00,69,401 7,006.94 . -
Add: Issued during the year to Newgen ESOP Trust after bonus issue 1,53,000 15.30 - -
At the end of the year 14,02,91,802 14,029.18 6,99,55,701 6,995,57
Less: Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 5,12,483 51.25 3,00,025 30,00
Total equity share capital 13,97,79,319 13,977,493 6,96,35,676 6,965.57

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share heid. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shargholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend, if any. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible lo receive the
remaining assets of the Company afler distribution of nil preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective sharehotding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares of INR 10 euch, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Number
of shares % Holdlng of shares % Holding
- Mr, Diwakar Nigam 3,13,49,464 22.35% 1,56,74,732 22.41%
- Mr, T.S. Varadarajan 3,00,18,612 21,40% 1,50,09,300 21.46%
- Mts. Priyadarshini Nigam 1,31,39,584 9.37% 65,69,792 9,39%
- Marathon Fdge India Fund 1 77,05.278 5.49% 38,52,639 551%
Details of shares held by promoters
Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid up held by:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number % of total % change Number % of total shares
of shares shares during the year of shares
- Mr, Diwakar Nigam 3,13,49,464 22.35% 100.00% 1,56,74,732 2241%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 3,00,18,612 21.40% 100.00% 1,50,09,306 21.46%
- Mrs, Priyadarshini Nigam 1,31,39,584 937% 100.00% 65,69,792 2.39%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 26,604,640 1.90% 100.00% 13,32,320 1.90%

Shares reserved for issue under Employee stock option plan and RSU Scheme
Terms attached to stock options granted to employees are descrived in note 35 regarding share based payments.

Ageregale number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

(i) Equity shares have been issued under Employee stock options plans Lo trust for which oniy exercise price as been received in cash,

For the year For the year For the year For the year Fox the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Equity shares of INR 10 encl 2,66,700 - - - 3,70,000
Bonus shares of INR 10 each 2,00,193 - - - .
4,66,893 - - - 3,70,000

hares has been alloled by way of bonus issues and no shares has been bought back in the current year and preceding 5 years,
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18  Other equity As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mayrch 2023
Securities premium 3,717.59 10,397.49

Retained eamings 90,637.72 70,401.96
Capital redemption reserve 87.95 87.95
Capital reserve 41639 416.39
General reserve 1,731.39 1,731.39
Newgett ESOP Trusl reserve 553.29 540.35
Share options oulstanding reserve 4,447.21 2,142,08
Other comprehensive loss (811,76) (456,27)
1,00,779.78 85,261.34
As ot As at
Securities premium (refer note (i) below) 31 March 2024 31 Marel 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 10,605.31 10,525.26
Securities premhim on issue of shares to Newgen ESOP Trust 484,41 -
Transferred from share options cutstanding reserve on exercise of stock options 132,79 80.05
Balance as at end of the year 11,222,51 10,605.31
Less: Securities premium on shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 497,98 207.82
Less: Securities premium on issue of Bonus shares 7,006.94 -
Balance as al end of the year 3,717.59 10,397.49
As at As at
Retained earnings (refer note (i) below) 31 iviarch 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 70,401 .96 56,755.88
Profit for the year 23,733.55 16,794.09
Dividend on equity shares (3,497.79) (3,148.01)
Balance as at end of the year $,637.72 70,401,496
As at As at
Capital reserve (refer note vi below} 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Batance as at beginning of the year 416.39 416,39
Balance as at eng of the year 416.39 416,34
As at Asat
Capltol redemption reserve 31 March 2024 31 March 2021
Balance as at beginning of the year 87.95 87.95
Batance as at end of the year B7.95 87.95
As at As at
General reserve 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as al beginaing of the year 1,731.39 1,731,39
Balance as at end of the year 1,731,39 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve (refer note (iit) below) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 540,35 51174
Addition to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 12.94 28.64
Balance as at end of the year 553,20 540,35
Share options outstanding resevve (refer note (iv) below) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as af beginning of the year 2,142.08 762,77
Employee stock compensation expense 2,437.92 1,463.91
Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options {132,719 (84.,60)
Balance as at end of the year 4,447,21 2,142,08
Other compreliensive loss {refer note (v} below)
Asat As at
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 31 March 2024 31 Mavch 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year (244.01) (235.42)
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax) (303,96} (8.59)
Balance as at end of the year {547.97) (244,01)
Financial assets or investments carried at fair value through otlier comprehensive Income As at As ot
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year (212.26) 3.81
Other comprehensive loss (net of tax) {51.53) (216.07)
Balance as at end of the year (263.79) (212.26)

(i) Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. H will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(ii) Retained earnings represents accumulated balances of profits over the years after appropriations for general reserves and adjustinents of dividend,
(iii) Newgen ESOP Trusl has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by Newgen ESOP Tiust are netted off from the total share capital.
Consequentty, all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except for profil / Joss on issue of

shares to the employees and dj
{iv) The Company has.e3iablished
plans. e

{v) Refer Sla(eme?{

2

{vi} Capital reselYg;cfeated on nccounl‘tffh"}erger of Number Theory Software Private Limited ("Number Theory"
H P

i

idend teceived by trust which are ditectly adiusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.
yarjous equity-settied share-based payment plans for certain employees of the Company. Refer (o note 33 for further delails on these

L agn e T N
tsf;,(flmnges in Equiity for analysis of other comprehensive income, net of tax,
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19 Right-of-use assets and lease liability

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Category of ROU asset Total
Leasehold land Buildings
Balance as at | April 2023 3,247.88 2,787.05 6,034.93
Addition - 1,273.07 1,273.07
Termination of leases - - -
Depreciation (39.40) (876.00) (915.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2624 3,208.48 3,184,12 6,392,60
Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Category of ROU asset Total
Leasehold lnnd Buildings
Balance as at 1 April 2022 3,287.18 1,125.69 4,412.87
Addition # - 2,418.74 241874
Termination of leases - “ -
Depreciation (39.30) (757.38) (796.68)
Balance as at 31 March 2623 3,247.88 2,787.05 6,034.93

*Right of use assets recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial recognition.
# It includes ROU of INR 237.30 lakhs transferred from Number Theory.

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.(refer note 31}

Lease liabilities

Brealc up of current and nen-current lease liabilities:

Asat As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current lease liabilities 2,896.53 2,697.20
Current lease liabilities 952.25 767.78
Total 3,948.78 3,464,98
Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2024

As at
Particulars 31 March 2024
Balance as at | April 2023 3,464.98
Addition 1,201.12
Finance cost 297.95
Termination of leases -
Payment of lease liabilities (1,015.27)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,948.78
Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2023

As at
Particulars 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2022 1,725.48
Addition # 2,363.96
Finance cost 289.25
Termination of leases -
Payment of lease liabilities (¢13.71)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,464.98

# It includes Lease Liability of INR 237,30 lakhs transferred from Number Theory.

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due,

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was INR 110,03 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 108.50 lakhs)

For detail regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease liabilities, (refer note 43 C (iii))
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20 Borrowings

Non Current Borrowings
-Deferred payment liabilities *

Current Borrowings
Current maturities of deferred payment liabilities

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- 220,05
B 220.08
219.92 203.50
219.92 203.50

Reconciliation between ihe opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for linbilities arising from financing activities

Name of the entit Balance as at Interest Loan Other non cash  Balance as at
y 31 March 2023 Acerued repayments changes 31 March 2024
E.rsifvhlle shareholders of Number Theory Software Private 42355 30.64 (234.24) ) 219.02
Limited
423.55 30,61 (234,24} - 219.92

*#(z} Includes balance payable to erstwhile shareholders of Number Theory Software Private Limited
{b) Deferred payment liability is discounted at the rate of 8%. Per amum.

(c) The liability is payable in three equal annual instalment of Rs. 234,24 takhs. The repayment of installment has commenced from January, 2023,

21 Non-current provisions As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 Morch 2623
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)
- provision for gratuity 3,723.87 2,685.21
- provision for compensated absences 1,026,79 768.42
4,750.66 3,453.63
22 Trade payables Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 Magch 2023
- Total outstanding dues to micro enterptises and small enterprises 632,13 58.38
« Tolal outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and smal enterprises 5,563,14 5,461.88
6,195,27 5,520.26
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Lessthan  1-2 Years 2-3  More Than Unbilled Total
1 year Years 3 years payable
Total cutstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small
enterprises 632,13 - - - - 632,13
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
enterprises and smal} enterprises
757.43 - - - 4,805.71 5,563.14
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and smalf enterprises
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Miero enterprises and
small enterprises N R ; B . R
1,389.56 - - - - 4,805,71 6,195.27
As at 31 Mareh 2023
Outstanding For following periods from due date of payment
Particulars : Less than 1-2 Years 2-3 Move Tlan Unbilled Tatal
1 years Years 3 years payable
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small
enterprises 58,38 R _ . _ 58.38
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
enletprises and small enterprises §.540.55 ) i ) 3021.33 5.461.88
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises and smatl enterprises ) .
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and
small enterprises “ - - - . .
1,598.93 - - - 3,921.33 §,520.26

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-45 days.
a} Refer note 37 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).
by Refer note 42 for dues to related parties,

¢) The Company's exposure liquidity risk and currency risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 43C(iif) & 43C(v).

1
b
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23 Current financial liabilities - Others Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Employee related payables 4,391.42 3,391.46
Derivatives Habilities B 187.49
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1,00
Payable for capital assets# 319.15 32.72
Unpaid dividends* 8.73 6.37

4,720,30 3,619.24

# Refer note 37 for amount payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, It includes payable in respeet of retention money amounting to ENR 13,78 lakhs (31
Mareh 2023 : INR 31,50 lakhs}.
*Unpaid dividends amount is not due for deposil to the Investor Education & Protection fund.

24 Deferred income Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Unearned revenue* 11,807.67 9,695,94
11,807.67 9,695,94
*Changes in vnearned revenue is as follows:
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,695,94 7,862.92
Revemue recognised that was included in deferred income at the beginning of the year (9,650.46) (7,827.54)
Increase due lo invoicing during the year, excluding amount recognised as revenue during the year 11,762.19 9,600.50
Batance at the end of the year 11,807.67 9,695.94
25 Other current liabilities Asat Asat
_31March 2024 31 Morch 2023
Statutory dues payable* 2,692.22 1,294.22
Advance from employees for share options 1.83 0.1%
Other current Jabilities 0,50 0.75
2,694.55 1,292,16

*Statutory dues payable includes GST payable. in previous year i.e. 31 March 2023 , GST input has been netted off with GST payable.

26  Current provisions As at As at
31 Mavch 2024 31 Muorch 2023

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 29)

- provision for gratuity 659.22 693.89

- provision for compensated absences 248.94 242,36
908.16 936.25
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27

28

29

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue {framoperations

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Sale of products - soflwares 20,623.01 16,665,89
Sale of services

- Implementation 23,574.49 17,681.84

- Scanning & Hardware 1,363.23 685.44

- AMCIATS 23,349.45 21,061.97

- Suppart 34,268.37 24,614.14

-~ SuaS revenue 10,433.68 8,070.78

1,13,611,93 45,780,006

Performance obligations und rennining perfornunce obligations

The remairing performance obligation disclosure provides the ugpregale amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as al the end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Compiny expects 1© recognise these amounls in revenue, Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Compuny has net disclosed

the remuiniag performance abligation retuted disclusures for contocts wheie
(i) The performance obligation is part of & conraet thal has an original expected duration of one year or less.

(i) The revenue recogaised corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entily’s performance completed to date, typically (hose contracts where invoicing is on

time and material basis,

Remaining performance obligation estimales are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including lerminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic

revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has nol malerialised and adjustments for cumency.

The aggrepate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at 31 March 2024, other (han \hose meeting Lhe exclusion eriteria mentioned

above is INR Nil { 31 Marcl 2023 INR Nil).

Qtleer Inconw For the yenr ended

Far the year ended

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income under Ihe effective inlerest vate methed:
- on securlty deposits al amortised cost 3096 25,30
- goveriument and other bonds &t FVOCH 426,00 426,87
Interest income on deposit with banks 1,895.10 1,577.45
Gain an sale of propetty, plant and equipment 13.35 -
Profil on sale of muusl funds (neL) at FVTPL 254,94 15130
Fair value changes of financial assets st FVTPL 1,359.54 §7.29
Liubilities / provision no Jonger required written back 120.68 1,020.65
Net foreign exchaage fluctuation gain 383.2¢ -
Miscellaneous income 66,23 2,25
4,550.01 3,201,111

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

Employee beneflts expense

For the yenr ended
31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 47,961.29 39,038.68
Contribution to provident funds (refer note i below) 1,6:8.57 1,327,235
Expenses related Lo compensaled absences (refer note il below) 647,58 502.00
Share based payment - equily settled (refer nole 35) 200472 1,265.93
Expense relaled to defined benefit plan (refer note iii below) 751.50 639.49
Staff welfare expenses 857.81 539.70

303147 43,313.05

(1) Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes conwibutlons, determined us a specified percentage of the employee salaries in respect of quatifying employees towards provident fund, which is
defined contribution plan, 'The amount recognised by an expense Lewards contribution to provident fund for the year aggregated o INR 1,618,57 fakhs (31 March 2023 INR
1,327.25 lukhs). The wmount recognised as an expense townrds employee state insurance apgregated 1o INR G.10 Jukhs (31 March 2023 INR 0.09 fakhs),

(1) Compensated nbsences:
The Principal assumptions used in determining the compensaled absences benefit obligation are as given below:

31 March 2024

31 Narch 2022

4,85% - 7.22%
5.00% -8,00%

Discounting rate {(p.a)
Fuiure salary ncrense ( p.a.)
Attrition Rate {withdruwal rate%)

Up to 30 yeors 20.00%
From 31 to 44 yeirs 20.00%
1C.00%

Above 44 years

4.85% - 7.36%
5.00% -7.00%

24.00%
21.80%
14.00%

(1) Deftned Benefit Plan:

Gratudly scheme - This is an unfunded detined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered atleast 5 yeurs of continuous service, 10 receive one-half monih’s

salary for each year of compieted service al the time of retirement/exil.

i) On norma! retirement / early reticement / withdrawal / resignation: As per the provisions of the Payment of Grawity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service,

ii) On death in service: As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period.

Gratuity payable to employee in case (iy and (i), as mentioned nbove, is computed s per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 except the Company does nut have any Limit on

gratuily smount.
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(iv} Defined Benefit Plan-Dubal office:

Fhe gratuity bencfit payable in the case of termination, retirement, or death: is 21 days” Scheme Salary for each of the first five years of service and 30 days’ Scheme Salary
for each year thereafier. Partial years count towards a perlod of service. This benefit is payabie only after completing one year of service, In the ease of the resignation of an

emptloyee, he/she is entitled to the following benefit;

Number of Year's Scrylce Fraction of Full Benefits
Lesy than | year Nil
Reiween 1 year and 3 vears One third
Between 3 yenrs and 5 years ‘Two third
Above 5 yenrs Full

No gratuity benefils are payable to any employee who is dismissed/terminated from service for misconduct, disobedience or violation of any existing rules and regutations of

Newgen. The Scheme is unfunded.

A. Movenient in net defined benetit (asset) lability

"The following table shows a recanciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its compenents

Partlculars Ast Asul
31 Marceh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Balance ot the beginning of the year 3,379.10 3,093.68
Benefils paid (214.73) {367.27)
Current service cosl 541.54 428.774
Interest cost 237.88 210,75
Reversal of opening provision of Number Theory (28.32) -
Actuarial (gains) / losses recognised In OCI
change in demographic assumptions 47,33 (7.46)
change in financial assumptions 190.67 (108,02)
experience adjustments 229.22 129.68
Balance at the end of the year 4,383,09 3,379.10

B. i) Expense recognised in proflt and loss

Particulars

For the yenr ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 parch 2023

Current service cost 541.94 428.74
interest cost 237.88 21075
Reversal of opening provision of Number Theery (28.32) -
Total expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 751.50 639.49
if) Remensurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obilgation 467,22 13.20
Total remensurements recognised in other comprehensive income 467,22 13,20
C. Defined benefit obligations
1, Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumplions at the reporting date:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 5.25% - 1.22% 4.85% - 7.36%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% -8.00% 5.00% -7.00%
Mortatity rate 1609 of IALM 100% of IALM
(2012- 14) (2012- 14)
Adttrition Rate {withdrawal rate%)
Up to 30 years 20.00% 24.00%
From 31 to 44 yeats 20.00% 27.00%
Above 44 years 10.00% 14,00%

11, Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date te one of the relevant sctuarial nssumptions, kolding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below,

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Increase Dectease Incrense Decrease
Discount rate (0.50% movement) (71.95) 79.11 (78.12) 84.89
Future salary growth (0.50% movement) 78.03 (77.42) 84.17 (78.49)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated,

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable be ing a lump
sum benefit on retirement.

Although the sualysis does not toke account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown, '

Based on the actuarial valuation oblained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounls recognised in the Company's financial
statements as at balance sheet date:

itl, Maturity profile of defined beneflt obligation: Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within the next 12 months ( next annual reporting period ) 661.82 693839
Between 2 nnd 5 years 1,805.57 1,522.86

Beyond 5 yenrs 1,988.94 1,278.20
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30

3

32

Net defined benefit liability
Liability for gratuity

Liability for compensated absences
Total employec henefit liabilitles

Non-current:

Gratuity

Compensated absences
Current:

Gratuity

Compensiated nbsences

Finance costs

Finance cost on lease tabilities
Interest expense on borrowings
Other finance cosls

Depreclation and amortisation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4)
Depreciation of right-of use assets (refer note 19}
Asnottisation of intangible assets {refer note 5}

Other expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

Rates and taxes

Teavelling aud conveyance

Legal and professional fees

Outsourced technical services expense (refer note 42)
Cloud hosting services

Payment to auditors*

Electricity and water

Advertising and sales promotion
Membership and subseription fee

Brokerage and commission

Comnynication costs

Software and license mainlenance
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 39)
Donation

Recruitment charges

Insurance

Operation and maintenance

Printing, stationery and scanning charges
Sub-contracting expenses

Logs on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss allowance on trade receivables

¢ Loss allowance on trade receivables includes foss allowance created on contract assets amounting to INR (18.06)

lakhs (31 March 2023: INR (47.61) lakhs})

Security charges
Net foreign exchange fhicluation loss
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors

As auditor!

- Statutory audit fee

- Limited review fee

- Certification fee

- Reimbursement of expenses

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

4,383.09 3,379.10
1,275.73 1,010,78
5,658.82 4,389.88
3,723.87 2,685,21
1,026,79 768.42
659,22 693.89
248.94 242,36

For the year ended

For the yesr ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
297.05 289.25
30.61 35.08
22.09 60.85
410,68 389,18

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Ifor the year ended
31 March 2023

1,304.59 1,114,59
91540 796.68
365.10 33245

2,585.09 2,263.72

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
110.03 108.50
56178 461.03

1,001.45 643.22

5.422.79 3,733.24

5,365.12 3,621.52

7,644.47 6,308,490

2,457.36 1,932.97

68.17 69.35
432.85 405,45
971.55 734.46
298.99 304.94
992,94 1,026.80
299.32 269.39

1,560,27 1,352.24

378.91 29345

39.75 34,88
288.60 438.90
775.21 766,34
527.10 409,19
38209 480.18

494,51 -
- 0.58

2,345.16 1,825.63
250,58 230.64

- 193,93
130.68 70.72
32,749.68 25,716.04
37.00 37.00
2100 21.00
7,32 B.66

2.85 2.69
68.17 69,35
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33

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income Tax
A, The major components of income tax lncome recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
Tax expense 5,270.70 3,872,52
Deferred tax credit (569.20) (277.43)
Total 4,701,50 3,595.09
Recognised in Other comprehensive income
Tax impact on
- Re-measurement on defined benefit plan 163.26 4.61
- Financiat assets or investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income 15.65 65.63
Total 178.91 70.24
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit before tax 28,435.05 20,389.17
Tax using the Company's tax rate 34.94% 0,936.35 34,94% 7,124,719
Effect of deduction under section 10AA of the Income tax Act, 1961

(17.06%) (4,849.61) {18.88%) (3,850.07)
Effect of expenses permanently disallowed under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 0.69% 197.58 0.67% 137.33
Effect of income exempt/ non taxable/ taxed on lower rate 0.64%) (182.58) (0.89%) (181.87)
Tax expense for earlier years (0.58%) (165.66) 1.01% 205.05
Others {0.82%}) (234.58) 0.18% 159.86
Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss for the current
year 16.53% 4,701.50 17.63% 3,595.09
C. Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) and movement in temporary differences
31 March 2024

Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in OC1 Balance as at
; 1 April 2023 | Statement of Profit during the year 31 March 2024
Particulars .
or Loss during the
year

Investments at fair value through OCI 69.41 - 15,65 85.06
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 13071 - 163.26 293,97
Property, plant and equipment (1,344.77) (132.33) - {1,477.10)
Loss allowance on other financial assets §1.57 - - 57.57
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,162.90 (106.24) - 1,056.66
Provision for employee benefits 1,406.64 410.89 - 1,817.53
Lease liabilities 28.57 17.08 - 45,65
MAT credit entittement 630.59 699,66 - 1,330.25
Disallowance on account of delayed payment to MSME Vendor - 125.§5 - 125.15
Others (230.90) (445,00) - (675.90)
Total 1,910,72 569.20 178.91 2,658.84

31 March 2023

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance as at
1 April 2022 | Statement of Profit during the year 31 March 2023
or Loss during the
year

Investments at fair value through OCI 3.78 65.63 69.41
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) 126.10 " 4.61 130.71
Property, plant and equipment {999.01) (345.76) - (1,344.77)
Loss allowance on other fittancial assets 57.57 - - 57.57
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,086.61 76.29 - 1,162,590
Provision for employee benefits [,265.89 140,75 - 1,406.64
Lease liabilities 787 20.70 - 28.57
MAT credit entitlement 21595 414.64 - 630.59
Others (201.71} (29.19) - (230,909
Total 1,563.05 277.43 70,24 1,910,72
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34  Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equily shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into

equity shares.

i, Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Profit nttributable to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings

il, Weighted nvernge number of ordinary shares

Opening balance of equity's shares

Effect of share options exercised

Addition of Bonus shares issued (net of bonus shares issued to trust}

Weighted avernge number of shares for basic EPS

Lifect of dilution:

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of employees stock
options

Welghted average number of shares for diluted EPS

Basic and diluted earnings per shave*

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
23,733.55 16,794.09
23,733.55 16,794.09

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Ior the year ended
31 March 2023

6,96,55,676 6,95,40,191
1,00,308 72,128
6,98,69,208 -
13,96,25,192 6,96,12,319
41,28,44C 8,87,921
14,37,53,632 7,05,00,240

Tor the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year epded
31 March 2023

INR INR
17.00 12.06
16.51 11.91

* Basic and difuted eaming per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been adjusted with bonus issue impact of £:1
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35 Share-based payment arrangements®:
A, Descerlption of share-based payment arrangements
|. Share option programmes (eguity-settied)

The Company established Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 20i4) in the year 2014-15, administered through a new Trust ‘Newgen ESOP
Trust’. The maximum numbers of shares to be issued under this Scheme shall be limited to 3,783,800 equity shares of the Company, Pursuanl o the scheme, during the
year 2014-15, the Company has granted 3,653,525 options at an exercise price of INR 63 per option, to Lhe employees of the Company, Further, during the year 2017-18
grant of options 353,000, 130,000, and 79,250 through gram If, 11l and 1V on 1 Jul 2017, 1 Sep 2017 and 1 Oct 2017 respectively under the same scheme and with same
vesting condilions was made, During the year 2020-21, the Company has granted 2,33,000 options through grant V under Newgen ESOP 2014 on 25 March 2021, During
the year 2022-23, the Company has granled 20,000 options tharough grant VI under Newgen ESOP 2014 on 17 January 2023, During the year 2023-24, the Company has
pranted 5,000 options through grant VI[ under Newgen ESOP 2014 on 2 May 2023, Under the terms of the plans, these options are vesled on a graded vesting basis overa
maximum period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised eithet in paii(s) or full, within a maximum period of five years from the date of last vesting.
Consequent to bonus issue in the ratio of 11, all the outstanding options and excercise price before the record date of 12 Janyary 2024 have been adjusted to consider the
bonus issue impact,

During the year 2020-21, the Company has established Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stack Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen RSU - 2021), administered
through a new trust "Newgen RSU Trust" The maximum numbers of shares to be issued under this Scheme shali be limited to 14,00,000 equity shares of the Company.
During the year 2021-22, the Company has granted 12,11,500 and 1,73,500 options through grant [ and II respectively under this scheme at an exercise price of [INR 10 per
option, to the employees of the Company. During the year 2022-23, the Company has granted 35,000 options theough grant 111 under this scheme at an exercise price of
INR 10 per option, to the employees of the Company. During the year 2023-24, the Company has granted 10,000 and 20,000 options through grant 1V and V respectively
under this scheme at an exercise price of INR 10 per option, 1o the employees of the Company.Under the terms of the scheme, these options ate vested on a graded vesting
basis over a maximum period of five years from the dale of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five years from the date of
last vesting,Consequent to bonus issue in the ratio of 1:1, all the outstanding optiens before the record date of 12 January 2024 have been adjusted to consider the bonus
issue impact.

During the year 2022-23, the Company has established Newgen Employee Stock Option Scheme - 2022 (Newgen ESOP — 2022}, administered through a trust "Newgen
ESOP Trust” The maximum aumbers of shares to be issued under this Scheme shall be limited to 14,00,000 equity shares of the Company. During the year 2022-23, the
Company has granted 9,41,800 options through grant I under this schete at an exercise price of INR 364.20 per oplion, (o the employees of the Company. During the year
2023-24, the company has granted §,58,750, 68150 and 3,86,500 options through grant 11, IT1 and IV on 2 May 2023, 19 July 2023 and 20 March 2024 under this scheme
at an excercise price of INR 452, INR 615 and INR 640.10 per option, (o the employees of the Company. Under the terms of the scheme, these options are vested on a
graded vesting basis over a maximum period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five years
from the date of vesting. Consequent to bonus issue in the ratio of 1:1, all the outstanding options and excercise prices before the record date of 12 January 2024 have been
adjusted to consider the bonus issue impact.

Particulars Newgen ESOP 2014 Newgen RSU — 2021 Newgen ESOP 2022
Maximum number of shares under the plan 37,83,800 14,00,000 14,00,000
Method of settlement {cash/equity) Equity Cash/ Equity Equity
Vesting period (maximum) 4 years 5 years 4 years

1 year - 10% at the end of 3rd year - 50% | year - 10%

2 vear - 20% at the end of Sth year - 50% 2 year - 20%

3 year- 30% 3 year- 30%

4 year-40% 4 year-40%
Exercise period from the date of vesting (maximum} 5 year from last vesting 5 year from last vesting 5 year from vesting date
Vesting conditions Service period Service period & Performance based Service period

Newgen ESOP trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares hetd by Newgen ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share capial.
Consequently, all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the trust are acoounted for as assets and tiabilities of the Compary, except for profil / luss on issue of shares
1o the employees and dividend received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve,

Following table represents general terms of the grants for the ESOP putstanding as on 31 March 2024*

ESOP schemes Grant Date | No, of Options Exercise Price Welghted Vesting Perlod
Outstanding average
remaining life
Newgen Emplovees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESQP 2014) {-Jul-2017 83,080 INR 31.50 2,25 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-Sep-2017 85,600 INR 31,50 2,42 4 years
Newsgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 1-0ct-2017 12,200 INR 31,50 2.50 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 25-Mar-2021 2,04,600 INR 31.50 5,98 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 17-Jan-2023 29,700 INR 31,50 7.80 4 years
Newgen Emplovees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 2-May-2023 10,000 INR 31,50 3.09 4 years
Newgen Emplovees Stock Option Scheme 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) 17-Jan-2023 16,19,527 INR 182.10 6.80 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) 2-May-2023 2,73,600 INR 226.00 7,09 4 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheine 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) 19-Jul-2023 1,26,300 INR 307.50 7.30 4 yeary
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) 20-Mar-2024 3,86,500 INR 640.10 7.97 4 years
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Following table represents general terms of the grants for the RSU outstanding s on 31 March 2024%,

ESQP schemes Grant Date | No. of Options Exercise Price Weighted Vesting Period
Qutstanding average
remainine lile

Newgen Softwate Technologies Restricted Stack Units Scheme — 2021 23-Dec-2021 22,89,000 INR 10.00 113 5 years
{Neween RSU — 20213

Newgen Sofiware Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 2-Mar-2022 2,21,000 INR 10.00 7.92 $ years
(Newgen RSU - 2021)

Newgen Software Technologies Restricled Stock Units Scheme — 2021 18-Oct-2022 70,000 INR 10.00 8.35 5 years
{Newgen RSU — 20213

Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scheme - 2021 2-May-2023 20,000 [NR 10.00 9.09 5 years
(Newgen RSU -~ 2021)

Newgen Software Technologies Restricted Stock Units Scherme - 2021 19-Jul-2023 40,000 INR 10,00 9.30 5 years
(Newgen RSU - 2021)

B. Measurement of fair values

i, Equity-seftled share-based payment areangements*

The fait value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. The fair value of options granted during the year and the inputs used in
the measurement of the fair values of the equity-settled share based payment plans are as follows:

Particulars Newgen Newgen Newgen Newgen Newgen Newgen
ESOP 2014 | ESOP 2022 | ESOP 2022 ESOP 2022 R8U - 2021 RSYU -2021
Crant - Vil Grant - 11 Crant - I1I Grant - IV Grant -1V Grant -V
Date of grant 2-May-2023 | 2-May-2023 |  19-Jul-2023 20-Mar-2024 2-May-2023 19-Jul-2023
Fair value of options at grant date 216.60 123.26 167.59 350,79 231,78 317.14
Share price at grant date 251.08 251,08 341.65 711.20 254,08 341.65
Exercise price 31.50 226.00 307.50 640,10 10.00 10.00
Expected volatility {(weighted-average) 42,90% 42,90% 42.72% 43.14% 42.90% 42.12%
Expected life (weighted-average) 5.75 years 5 years 5 years 3 years 7 years 7 years
Expected dividends 0.95% 0.95% 0.93% 0.95% 0.95% 0.93%
Risk-free interest rate {based on government bonds) 6.95% - 7.00% |.95% - 7.00% 6.90%-6.96% 7.00%-7.03% 7.00%-7.03% | 6.96%-6.99%
C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options*
The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options under the share option programmes were as follows.
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted
options exercise price oplions average
exercise price
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 4,49,102 INR 31.50 6,03,212 INR 63.00
Add: Options granted during the year 5,000 INR 31.50 20,000 INR 63.00
Add: Bonus issue during the yearin (1:1} 2,15,690 INR 31.50 - .
Less: Options lapsed during the year 24,880 INR 31.50 58,625 INR 63.00
Less: Options exercised during the yeay 2,198,732 INR 31.50 1,15,485 INR 63.00
Options outstanding as at the year end 4,25,180 INR 31.50 4,49,102 INR 63,00
Exercisable as at year end 2,80,980 3,28,102
Welghted - average contractual life 4.61 years 3.56 years
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Newgen Softwave Technotogies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen RSU Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted
- 2021} aptions exertise price options average
exerclse price
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 13,05,000 INR 10.0 13,60,000 INR 10.00
Add: Options granted during the year 30,000 INR 10.00 35,000 INR 10.00
Add: Bonus issue during the year in (1:1) 13,20,000 INR 10,00 - )
Less: Options lapsed during the year 15,000 INR 10.00 90,000 INR 1000
Less: Options exercised during the year - INR 10.00 - INR 10.00
Options oulstanding as at the year end 26,40,000 INR 10.0¢ 13,05,000 INR 10.00
Exercisable as at year end :
Weighted - average contractual life 7.80 years 8,77 years
Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted
options exercise price options average
cxercise price
31 March 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 9,17,650 INR 182.10 - -
Add: Options granted during the year 6,13,400  INR 226-1NR 640.10 941,800  INR 364.20
Add: Bonus issue during the year in (1:{) 10,41,150 INR 182.10-INR 307.5C - -
Less: Options lapsed during the year 1,31,570 INR 182,10-INR 640.1¢ 24,150 INR 364.20
Less: Options exercised during the year 34,703 INR 182,10 - -
Options outstanding as at the year end 24,05,927 INR 364.20 9,17,650 INR 364,20
Exercisable as at year end 1,31,737
Weighted - average contractual life 7.05 years 7.80 years

*Consequent to bonus issue of 1:1, ail the numbers of outstanding options, fair value of options, market price of share, exercise price have been adjusted for all perieds

presented.

D. Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
For details on the employee benefits expense, refer note 29

ST
' iy
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36 Contingent Habilities and commitments (fo the extent not provided for)

a) Claims against the company (including unasserted claims) not acknowledged as debt

Particulars Assessment Yeay

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Demands raised by the lncome tax anthorities :

- derand raised on account of inadmissible foreign withholding tax 2020-21 117.59 -
- demand raised on account of inadmissible foreign withholding tax 2021-22 67.55 -
Total 185.14 -

"The assessing officer passed an order dated 29 September 2023 and 30 December 2023 under section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, {961 in respect inadmissible
foreign withholding 1ax adjustiment claimed as business expenditure under Sec 37 of Income Tax Act, 1961 amounting to INR 336.51 lakhs and INR 193.31 lakhs for
assessment year 2020-21 and 2021-22 respectively. An appeal was filed with the commissioner of income tax (appeals) against the order of the assessing officer on 7

October 2023 and 23 January 2024 for assessment year 2020-21 and 2021-22 respectively and order of CIT(A) is awaited .

b) Capital Commitments

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Bstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (ret of advances)

422,57 -

Total

422,57 -

¢} The Company is committed to operationally, technically and financially support the operations of its ceriain subsidiary companies.

37 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Cffice Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should menticn in their correspondetice with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum,

Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 based on information veceived and available with

the Company.

Particulars
Principal Amount*

Interest due thereon at the end of the accounting year .

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section §6,0f the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amcunts of the
payment made to the suppliet beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the year for delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006).

The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of the accounting year .

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years until] such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of MSMED Act , 2006.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

746.60 89.83
27.46 -

* Includes INR 141.93 lakhs (31 March 2023 ; INR 31,50 lakhs ) or: account of capital creditors.

38 After the reporting date the foliowing dividend were proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting;

Accordingly, the dividends have not been recognised as liabilities.

Particulars

For the year ended| For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Final dividend of INR 4.00 per share (31 March 2023: INR 2.50 per share on the expanded capital
base post bonus issue of 1:1)

5,611.67 3,497,779

39 Utilisation of Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, read with guideilnes issued by DPE, the company is required to spend in every financial year atleast lwo percent of the
average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceeding financial years in accordance with its C3R poticy. The details of CSR expenses for

the year are as under:

Armount of shorifall for the year -

Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year -

Particulars 31-Mur-24 31-Mar.23
Arount required to be spend during the vear 37592 290.16
Amount of expenditure incurred 37891 293,45

"The areas for CSR activities are promoting education, health care, sanitation, digitel litetacy and livelihood enhancement . The funds were primarily utilized through the

year on the aclivities which are s

ied in Schedule VH of the Companies Act, 2013. There is ne unspent balance in respect of ongoing projects for which information
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40 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and docutnents as required by the transfer pricing legistation under sections 92-
92F of the Income-ax Act, 1961, Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation (o be contemporanecns in nature, the Company has gol the
updated documentation for the international transactions entered inte with the associated enterprises during the financial year, The management is of the opinion that its
international transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legisiation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax
expense and that of provisicn for laxation,

41 Detalls of current Investments {refer note 10)

Number of units Amount in lakhs
Particutars as at as ol

31 Marelk 2024 | 31 Mareh 2023 | 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investment In Debt muotual funds -FVTPL
ABSL Crisil IBX Gilt Apr 2029 Index Fund Dir Growth 57,75,217.32 57,75,217.32 651,18 603.58
ABSL Government Securities Fund Growth-Regular 10,22,684.60 - 158,15 -
Aditya Birla SL Liquid FFund Direct plan Growth - 1,70,596,77 - 619.41
Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth-Direct Plan . 1,31,034.62 - 414,33
Bandhan CRISIL IBX Gilt June 2027 Index Fund Direct Plan-Growth
(erstwhile IDFC CRISIL [BX Gilt June 2027 Index Fund Direct Plan-Growth) 1,65,12,803.06 | 1,65,12,803.06 1,937.23 1,803.28
HDFC Nifty G-Sec Dec 2026 Index Fund-Direct-G 68,18,815.04 68,18,815.04 754,29 702.21
HDFC Nifty G-Sec Jul 2031 Index Fund-Direct-G 1,36,18,551.96 1,36,18,551.96 1,522,35 1,405.26
Tata Money Market Fund Direct Plan - Growth - 2,935.38 - 118.84
Bharat bonds ETF 20,000.00 20,000.00 270.91 250.00
HDFC Liquid Fund -Direct Growth - 7,622.95 - 337.18
ABSL Government Securlties Fund Growth-Regular - 10,22,684.60 - 698.36
lovestment in Liguid mutual funds -FVTPL
Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth-Ditect Plan 11,04,551.98 - 1,625.04 -
Canara Robece Ultra Short Term Direct-G 25,921,290 - 805.75 -
DSP Ultra Short Direct-G 2,933.10 - 300,72 -
Edelweiss Money Market Direct-G 10,54,569.68 - 300,712 -
HDPC LIQUID Fund-DIRECT GROWTH 7,622.95 - 361.61 -
HDFC Low Duration Direct-G 10,62,535.07 - 3303 -
ICICI Pru Savings Direct -G 1,21,384.95 - 40881 -
Kotak Lignid Fund Direct Plan Growth 70,340.51 - 1,566,92 -
Kotak Money Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 63,954,89 - 2,636.55 -
Kolak Savings Direct-G 23,37,715.22 - 82416 -
Nippon India Money Market Direct 13,128.13 - 486.61 -
Nippon India Ultra Skort Duraticn Fund 25,070.79 - 1,010.89 -
Quant Liquid Direct-G 53,19,615.54 - 2,040.85 -
SBI Savings Direct-G 21,19,840.54 - 639.38 -
Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growih 90,088.94 - 1,227.89 -
Tata Money Market Fund Direct Plan - Growth 98,732.80 - 1,320.56 -
Investment in Hybrid mutual funds -FVTPL
Canara Robece Equity Hybrid Direct-G 1,75,492.77 - 607.22 -
DSP Equity & Bond Fund - Growth 1,55,312.74 - 501.93 -
HDFC Balanced Advantage Direct-G 1,76,813.51 - 856,01 -
[CICI Pru Balanced Advantage Direct-G 17,93,496,98 - 1,279.48 -
ICIC! Prudentiat Equity & Debt Fund 1,95,852,75 . 726.34 -
Kotak Balanced Advaniage Direct-G 26,44,536.53 - 505.61 -
SBI Equity Hybrid Direct-G 2,11,518.49 - 584,39 .
Investment in Equity mutual funds -FVTPL
HDFC Flexi Cap Fund 17,913,066 - 31178 -
HDFC Index SnP BSE Sensex Direct 22,006.87 - 151.38 -
ICICI Pru Nifty Next 50 index Direct-G 4,34,205.92 - 242,95 -
ICICI Prudential Blue-chip Fund 3.01,371.31 - 315.84 -
Kotak Equity Opportunities Direct-G 7540228 - 244,50 -
Nippon {ndia Growth Direct-G 3,795.94 - 134,24 -
Nippon India Large Cap Fund 3,68,569.52 - 317.83 -
Quant Active Direct-G 30,908.25 - 205.12 -
GQuant Small Cap Direct-G 32,123.97 - 80,70 -
SB! Balanced Advantage Fund-Growth 58,25,424.91 - 817.67 -
$B1 Banking & Financial Services Fund - Dir - Growth 8,35,112.68 - 302,61 -
SBI Conira Direct-G 57,144,15 - 206.58 -
Investment in government bonds-FYTOCI
7.04% IRFC Bond 03/03/2026 15.00 15.00 155.06 157.68
8,40% IRFC {5YRS SR2A 18022029 (18-Feb-2029) 40,000.00 40,000,00 454,44 461.32
7.35% NHA! LTD Tax free Bond 15YRS SR2ZA Annual (}{-Jan-2031) 2,15,000.00 2,15,000.00 2,408.84 2,425.03
8.54% PFC Tax free Bonds (Series 2A) 16/11/2028 16,500.00 16,500.00 187.29 190,32
8.3% NHAI Tax free Bonds 25/01/2027 30,000.00 30,000.00 324,94 330.30
8.63% IRFC Bonds 26/03/2029 22,000,00 22,000,00 252.64 256,68
8.10% IRFC Bonds 23/02/2027 87,000.00 87,000.00 939.49 953.53
7.34% IRFC Bonds 19/02/2028 1,30,000.00 1,30,000.00 1,396.47 1,411.49

36,498.89 13,138.80
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(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated

42 Related party transactions

A. List of subsidiaries

Set out below is the list of subsidiaries:

Name of the company Country of QOwnership interest
incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Newgen Software Ine. United States of America 100% 1009
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Lid. Singapore 100% 100%
Newgen Softwate Techinologies Canada Limiled Canada 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd, United Kingdom 100% t00%
Newgen Software Technotogies Pty Lid. Australia 100% 100%
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited India 100% 100%
Newpgen Soflware Technelogies LLC UAE 100% 100%
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limiled* Saudi Arabia 100% ~

The principal piace of business of all he entities listed above is the same as the respective country of incorporation.
*The company incorporated a new subsidiary Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited during the year on 20 July 2023 in Saudi Arabia,

B. Transactions with Key Management Personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties hold positions in other entities that resull in them having control or significant influence over
those entities.

Compensation of the Company's key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post - employment defined benefit
plan(see note 29)

Executive officers also participate in the Company’s share option plan as per the conditions laid down in that scheime {see note 29 and note 35).

List of key management personnel and their relafives

Diwakar Nigam - Chairman & Managing Director

T.5. Varadarajan - Whole Time Direclor

Priyadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director

Arun Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer

Virender Jeet - Chief Executive Officer

Surender Jeet Raj - EVP Glebal Business Strategy & HR

Tarun Nandwani - Chief Operating Officer

Usha Varadarajan - Relative of Whole Time Director - T.S, Yaradarajan
Aman Mourya- Company Secretary

List of non-executive and independent directors
Kaushik Dutta - Independent Director

Saurabh Srivastava - Independent Director
Subramaniam R Lyer - Independent Director
Padmaja Krishnan - Independent Direclor

Key management personnel compensation

Transaction value Balance payable

For the year ended  For the year ended As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Salaries, wages and boous* 2,270.86 1,783.78 1,299.56 843,19
Diwakar Nigam 553.96 399.39 304.00 172,18
T.S. Varadarajan 301,05 21093 182.40 103.31
Priyadarshini Nigam 179.83 121.84 121.60 68.87
Atun Kumar Gupta 164.15 137.81 75.80 54,75
Virender Jeet 399,70 321.38 234.48 169,35
Surender Jeet Raj 31471 284.40 196.32 141.15
Tarun Nandwani 32070 274,26 184.96 133.58
Aman Mourya 36,76 33.77 - -
Dividend paid (excluding dividend distribution tax) 1,971.75 1,774.69 - "
Driwakar Nigam 783,74 705.34 - -
T.S. Varadarajan 75047 675.42 - -
Priyadarshini Nigam 128.49 295.64 - -
Arun Kumar Gupta 2,04 1.84 - -
Virender Jeet 14,81 13.33 - -
Surender Jeet Raj 12.80 10,98 - -
Tatun Nandwani 12.68 12.08 - -
Usha Varadarajan 606.62 58.95 - -
Aman Mourya 0.10 0.1} - -




Newgen Software Technologies Limlited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounis are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated

Transaction value Balance payable
For the yeur ended  For the year ended As at As at
31 Mnarch 2024 31 March 2023 31 Maych 2024 31 March 2023
Share-based payments - 53.17 - -
Surender Jeet Raj - 33.67 - -
Tarun Nandwani - 18713 - -
Aman Mourya - 0.77

1 includes share-based puymenis and commission bul excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, as these are determined on the basis of
actuarial vatuation for the Company as a whole,

Sltting fees to independent director 67.00 59,00 - 6,30
Kaushik Dutta 21.00 17.00 - 180
Saurabh Srivastava 15,00 15.00 - 1.80
Subramaniam R Iyer 21.00 18,00 - 1.80
Padmaia Kiishnan 10.60 9,00 - 0,90
Commission te independent director 267,68 206,00 240,92 185.40
Kaushik Dutta 66,92 5150 60.23 46.35
Saurabh Srivastava 66.92 5150 60.23 46.35
Subramaniam R ITyer 66,92 51.50 60.23 46,35
Padmaja Krishnan 66,92 51.50 60.23 46,33

C. Related party transactions other than those with key management personnel

The ransactions with retated parties are made on terms equivalent to those (hat prevail in arm's length transactions, Quistanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 3} March 2023, the Company has nol recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
pasties. This assessient is undertaken at each reporting pericd.

Transaction value Balunce receivable
For the year ended  Tor the yeor ended As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 Magch 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of products and services*
Subsidiaties
Mewgen Seftware Inc,, USA 18,120,11 17,178.64 - 2,493,05
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd, 7,072.84 6,461.67 - 926.57
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 179.97 81.27 - -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 1,849.46 2,106.83 210.46 -
Newgen Software Technologies LLC 3,843.47 82378 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limiled 982,74 - “ -
* [t ingludes contract assets as follows:
Confract assets
Newgen Software Inc., USA 3,211.21 2,582.14 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 1,216.19 880.66 - -
Newgen Software Technolegies Canada Limiled - 19.87 - -
Newgen Seflware Technologies (UK) Lid. 282.06 608.17 - -
Newgen Software Technologies LLC 771,87 162.90 . -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 982,74 - - -
Sale of services-back office support cost #
Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc.,, USA 180,00 203.42 - -
Newgen Soflware Technotogies Ple Lid, 51,38 43.18 - -
Newgen Software Technotogies Canadi Limited 47,114 35,12 - -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Lid, 9.89 10.50 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd, 11.39 18.91 - 12.38
Newgen Software Technelogies LLC 29.85 3.64 - -

Newgen Software Technolegies Compary Limited 29.14 - - -
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Nates to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amouns are In lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated

# 4 includes contract assets as follows:
Contract assets

Newgen Software Inc., USA 36.88 79.78 - .
Newget Software Technologies Pte Lid, 17.32 15.31 . -
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limiled 10.0¢ 16.94 - -
Newgen Software Technologies {UK) Ltd, 238 1.95 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Lid. - 10.18 - -
Newgen Software Technologies LLC 9.18 3.64 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 29.14 - - -

Management Support Service Cost »

Newgen Software Inc., USA 422,93 - - -
Newgen Sofiware Technotogies Pte Lid, 149,74 - - .
Newgen Scftware Technologies Canada Limited 25.22 - - -
Newgen Seftware Technologies (UK) Lid, 47.21 - - .
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. 8.06 - . -
Newgen Software Technologies LLC 84.46 - - -
Newgen Software Technolegies Company Limited 18,32 - - -

Al includes contract assets as follows;

Newgen Software Inc., USA 7331 - - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pte Lid. 3543 - - -
Newgen Sofiware Technologies Canada Limited 3.16 - - -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 10,61 - - -
Newgen Software Technojogies Piy Ltd, 1.46 - - -
Newgen Software Technelogies LLC 12,17 - - -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 18.32 - - -

Compensation for transfer of employees

Subsidiaries
Newgen Software Inc.,, USA 29.90 3275 “ -
Newgen Software Technologies Ple Lid, 20.07 4231 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limited 25.64 18.03 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. “ 38.12 - -
Newgen Sofiware Technologies LLC 38,70 - - -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 23.61 - - -

# It includes contract assets as follows:

. Unbilled revenue
Newgen Software Technelogies Pte, Lid, 20,07 - - -
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 23.61 - . "

Rent Income

Subsidiary

Newgen Computers Techrologies Limited 2.40 1.00 1,54 1.00

Transaction value Balance receivable / (payable)
TFor the year ended  For the year ended As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Expense-Qutsourced technicnl services @
Subsidiaries

Newgen Software Inc,, USA 5422,15 4,953,411 B (574,70}

Newgen Sofiware Technologies Pte Ltd, 420.86 404.53 - (185.28)

Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 164,10 - - -




Newpen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ALl amonnts are in lakis of Indian Rupees, unless otlerwise stated

Expense-Mavkeling support services@

Subsidiary
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd, 692.79 670,20 - {165.12)
Newgen Software Techrologies Canada Ltd, 116.81 - - B

@ It includes unbilled payable as follows:
Unbllled payable

Newgen Software Inc., USA 1,281.92 1,273.86 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Ple Lid, 182.80 68.46 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd. 418.50 220,84 - -
Newgen Software Technologies Canada Ltd. 116.81 - - B
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 164.10 - - -
Ttent expense
Subsidiary
Newgen Computezs Technologies Limited 792 7.92 - -
Paid on behalf of
Subsidiary
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 1.09 0.61 - -
Newsgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. - 15.39 - -
Newgen Sofiware Technologies Company Limited 28.24 - - -

Bank Guarantee Issued on behalf of

Subsidiary

Newgen Software Technologies LLC 123.89 - - -
Investment in subsidiacies - share based payment

Newgen Software Inc., USA 200.68 133.82 - -

Newgen Software Technologies Pte Ltd. 3517 512 - -

Newgen Software Technologles Canada Limited 13,13 3.88 - -

Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd. 19.28 14.65 -

Newgen Scfiware Technologies Pty Ltd, 32.16 24,42 . .-
D. Investment in subsidiaries

. As at As at

Subsidiary Conmpany 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Newgen Software Inc. USA 902,29 701,61
Newgen Software Technotogies Canada Limited 80.87 67.74
Newgen Software Technologies Pte. Ltd, 15947 124,30
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 46.50 46,50
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Lid, 554,50 52234
Newgen Software Technologies (UK} Ltd. 216,79 197.51
Newgen Software Technologies L1L.C 675.30 675.30
Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited 222,48

2,858.20 2,335.30
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes fo the standalone financia! statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, wness otherwise siated)

Financlal instruments — Falr values and risk management (continued)

C. Financial risk management
The Compaty's activities expose It to a variety of financiat risks: markel risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and Hquidity risk.

I. Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has framed a Risk Management Policy and pian for enabling the Company to identify elements of risk as contemplated by the
provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the tisks faced by the
Company, 1o set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adhetence 10 limits, Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities, The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to malntain a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all employees understand thelr roles and obligations.

The Company's audit committee oversees how management moniters compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in i(s oversight role by internal audit.

il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financiat loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instroment fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises partiafly
from the Company's recelvables frem customers, loans and investment in debt securities. The carvying amount of financial assets reptesent the maximum credit risk
exposure, The Company has credit pelicies in place and the exposures Lo these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The catrying amount of financial assels represent the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting was:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other financials assets-non current 8,171.40 19,111.39
Investments 36,498.89 13,138.80
Trade receivables 31,535.97 31,211.40
Loans 173 7.00
Cash and cash equivalents 4,990.98 4,721.82
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 20,022.60 9,729.32
Other financials assets-current 16,066,319 12,813.27

1,17.497.96 90,733.00

To cater to the credit risk for investments in mutual funds and bonds, only high rated mutual funds/bonds are accepted,

The Company has given security deposits to vendars for rental deposits for office proﬁenies, securing services from them, government departments, The Company does
not expect any default from these patties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

Trade receivabies and contract assets are typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from customers primarily focated in India, USA, EMEA and APAC.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approval, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers
to which the Company grants credit term in normal course of business. Credit limits are established for each customers and received quarterly.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represenis its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables, The management uses a simpiified
approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In mondtoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, Industry and existence of previous financiai difficulties, if any.

Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management aiso considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management establishes an
allowance for impairment that represents its estiimnate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date.

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by geographic region is as follows
Carrying amount

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 13,646,56 9,865.73
USA - 2,514,08
EMEA 15,206.66 15,261.56
APAC 2,682,75 3,570.03

31,535.97 31,211.40

SUITRY:




Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Nofes to the standalone {inrancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amownts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables from individual customers:

As ut 31 March 2024 Gross carrying amournt Weighted- average Loss allowance
loss rate
0-3 months past due 25,540.12 2.02% 515,90
3-6 months past due 4,421.39 8.63% 381.63
6-9 months past due 1,425.69 19.87% 283.25
9-12 months past due 33a6.50 23.68% 79.69
12-15 months past due 667,04 42.02% 280.27
15-18 months past due {,128.04 50.49% 682.36
18-21 months past due 64.02 68.48% 43.34
21-24 months past due 164.04 69.65% 114,25
above 24 months past due 1,394.93 87.19% 1,224,58
35,141.74 3,605.77
As at 31 March 2023 Gross carrying amount Weighted- average Loss allowance
loss rate
0-3 months past due 25,210.17 1.86% 469,92
3-6 months past due 2,454.42 9.10% 223.23
6-9 months past due 2,882.08 17.82% 51345
$-12 months past due 646,93 32.63% 211.08
12-15 months past due 1,032,70 39.47% 407.59
15-18 months past due 767.49 44.37% 340.56
{8-21 months past due 292,83 53.14% 155.62
21-24 months past due 32541 83.53% 271.83
above 24 months past due 1,509.14 87.23% 1,316.4%
35,121,17 3,909.77
Ageing for expected credit foss has been considered from invoice date
Balance as at 1 April 2022 3,134,11
[mpairment loss recognised 1,873.24
Amouzits written of 1,097.58
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,909.77
Impairment loss recognised 2400637

Amounts written off
Balance as at 31 March 2624

2,710.37
3,605.77

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assurptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past hisiory, existing market conditions as well as forward
tooking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Debt securities

The Company timits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt secvrities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating AA to AAA from renowned
ralihg egencies.

The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. For its investment in bonds, Company also reviews changes in government
bond yields together with avaitable press and regulatory information about issuers

The exposure to credit risk for debt securities at FYTOCI and at FVTPL is as follows:- .
Net carrying amount

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
India 36,498.89 13,138.80
36,498.89 13,138.80

Basis experienced credit judgement, no risk of loss is indicative on Company's investment in mutual funds and governmetit bonds.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 4,990,98 lakhs at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 4,721.82 lakhs) and bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents of INR 20,022.59 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023; INR 9,729.32 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalents are held with bank and financial institution
counterpatties, which are rated AA- to AAA, based on renowned rating agencies. )

ol
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Financial instruments — Fajr values and risk management (confinued)
ifi, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it witl have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the comparty’s reputation.

The Company’s primary sources of liquidity include cash and bank balances, deposits, undrawn borrowings and cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 March 2024,
the Company had a working capital of INR 82,748.05 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 49,418.23 lakhs) inciuding cash and cash equivalent of INR 4,990.98 lakhs (31 March
2023: INR 4,721,82 lakhs), bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents of INR 20,022.60 lakhs ( 31 March 2023: 9,729,32 lakhs) and current investments of INR
36,498,89 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 13,138.80 lakhs),

Consequently, the Company betieves its revenue, along with proceeds from financing activities wilt continue to provide the necessary funds to cover its short term lHquidity
needs. In addition, the Company projects cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liquidity requirement.

In addition, the Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year

Particulars Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
less years

As at 31 March 2024 - 6,448.52 . 6,448.52

As at 31 March 2023 8,144.24 - 8,144.24 - - -

Taposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial Hiabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest
payments and exciude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractuai cash flows

31 March 2024 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2.5years Morethan §
amount less years
Non-derivative financial liabilities )
Finance lease obligations (including cutrent maturities) 3,948.78 0,352,33 213.86 1,064.77 1,055.80 1,919,322 5,098,58
Borrowings 21992 234.24 - 234.24 - - -
Unpaid dividends 8.73 8.73 873 - - - -
Employee related payables 4,391.42 4,391.42 195,18 4,037.21 159.03 - -
Trade and other payables 6,195.27 6,195.27 4,924,06 1,271.21 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.0C 1.00 - £0C - - -
Payable for capital assets 319.15 319.15 319,15 - - - -
Total 15.084.27 20.502.14 5,660.98 6,608.43 1.214.83 1,919.32 5.098.58

Contractual cash flows

31 Mareh 2023 Carrying Totut 2 months or  2-12 months  1-2 years 2.5 years More than §
amount less yenrs

Non-derivative financtal liabilities )

Finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 3,464,98 8,777.37 158.02 857.26 1,004.06 1,687.93 5,070.10
Borrowings 423,55 463.48 - 234.24 234,24 - -
Unpaid dividends 6.57 6.57 6,57 - - - -
Employee related payables 3,391.46 3,391.46 179.97 3,111.52 99.97 - -
Trade and other payables 5,520.26 5,520.26 4,170.56 1,349.70 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 3272 32.72 - 32.72 - - -
Total 12,840.54 18.197,86 4,515.12 5,586.44 1.338,27 1,687.93 5070,10

Interest payment on variable interest rate loan in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting dates and these amount may change as market interest
changes.
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Financial instruments — Falhr values and rvisk management

iv, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the company’s Income or the value of its
holdings of financia! instruments, Market risk is attributable to ali market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term
debl. We are exposed to market risk primasily refated to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk
is a function of investing and borrowing aclivities and revenue generating and operating activities in forcign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid
excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

v, Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to
currency risk on account of its recetvables and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. The Management eadeavours Lo
minitmize economic and transactional exposures arising from currency movements against the US Dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Canadian dotlar, United Arab Emirates
Dhiram, Saudi Riyal, Singapore dollar, Austratian dollar and Malaysian Ringgit making all the US dollar payments through EEFC account for avoiding exchange risk. The
Company manages the risk by netting off natorally-cccurring opposite exposures wherever possible, and then dealing with any material residual foreign currency exchange risks
if any.

The Company has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts Lo mitigate the risks involved in foreign exchange transactions and has booked forward contracts for USD
32.5 million during the year from April 2023 to March 2024, The hedging gain of INR 165.44 lakhs is on account of mark to matket gain (realised loss is 86.02 lakhs, unrealised
gain is 68.47 lakhs and gain of 187.49 lakhs on account of reversal of last year mark to market loss) on foreign exchange forward contracts which do not qualify for hedge
accounting as per Ind As-109, have been recognized in the profit and loss account in the financial statement for the period ended 31 March 2024,

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as below!

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
. Amount in foreign | Amount in local | Amount in foreign | Amount in local
Particulars Currency
currency currency currency currency
(lakhs) {laklis) {lakhs) (Iakhs)
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables*
usb 236,97 19,751.24 279.56 22,954,778
AED 0,65 14.70 0.26 5.80
EUR 0.49 44,11 0.64 56.92
GBP 200 210,46 0.42 42.94
5GD . - 15.00 926.40
MYR 0.39 6.89 0.04 01
AUD - - 0.23 12.38
Bank balance-Dubai AED 7.97 180.76 2.98 66.58
Bank balance-EEFC usD 24.59 2,040,260 22,15 1,818.84
Financial liabilities
Trade and cther payables :
usD (39.56) (3,258.75) {46.16) (3,627.50)
SGD (3.09) (19071} {4.36) (269.09)
SAR (8,55} (189.46) (1.96) (42.53)
EURO (0.18) {16.75) - -
AUD (7.70) (418.50) (7.01) (385.96)
AED - " (0.74): (15.13)
CAD (1,90 {116.81) - -

* gross of loss allowance

Sensitivity analysis

A teasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US Dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Canadian dollar, United Arab Emirates Dhiram, Saudi
Riyal, Singapore Dolar, Australian Dellar and Malaysian Ringgit at reporting date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign
currencies and affectsd equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and
iznores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

For the year ended 31 Maxrch 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Effect in Lakhs of INR Strengthening Weakening : Strengthening Weakening
5 % movement 5% movement

UsD 925.16 (925.16) 1,049.16 (1,049.16)
EUR 1.39 (1.39) 2.85 (2.85)
GBP ' 10.52 (10.52) 2.15 (2.15)
CAD {5.84) 5.84 - -
SGD (9.54) 9.54 32,86 (32.86)
AED 977 9.77) 2,79 279
SAR (9.51}) 9,51 (2.15) 2,15
MYR 0.34 (0.34) .04 (0.04)
AUD {20.9% 20.93 {18.68) 18.68

901.36 (901.36) 1,069.02 {1,069,62)
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

11, Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk, Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed
interest bearing investmenls because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate tisk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing
investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

a) Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash flow interest rate risk arising both on short-term and long-term floating rate instruments.
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:
Nominal amount in INR
31 March 2024 31 Marxch 2023

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 35,179.95 34,425,65
Financial liabilities 4,168,70 1,888.54
Total ) 39,348.65 38,214.19

There is no balance in variable rate instruments,
) Sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fived-rate instriments

The Company accounts for investments in government and other bonds as fair vaiue through other comprehensive income. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would have impact on equity.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have incieased (decreased} equity by INR 39.81 lakhs after tax (31
March 2023: INR 40,25 lakhs) and PBT by INR 61.19 lakhs (3f March 2023: INR 61.86 lakhs).

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

There is no variable rate linked instrument and therefore, there is no cash flow sensitivity.

Marlket price risk

a) Exposure

The Comparny's exposure to mutual funds and bonds price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through
profit and loss and at fair value through other comprehiensive income respectively,

To manage its price risk arising friom investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio, Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the Jimits set by
the Company.

b)Sensitivity analysis

Company is having investment in mutual funds, government bonds, other bonds and investment in subsidiaries.

For such investments classified at Fair value through other comprehensive income, a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date would have increased equity
by INR 79.62 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2023: INR 80.50 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 122.38 lakhs (31 March, 2023; INR 123.73 lakhs). An equal change i the
opposite direction would have decreased equity by INR 79.62 lakhs after tax (31 Match, 2023: INR 80.50 lakhs ) and PET by INR 122.38 lakhs (31 March, 2023:
INR 123,73 lakhs).

For such investments classified at Fair value through profit or Joss, the impact of a 2% inctease in their fair value at the reporting date on profit or loss would have
been an increase of INR 391,78 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2023: INR 90,47 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 602.18 lakhs (31 March, 2023: INR 139.05 lakhs) . An equal
change in the opposite direction would have decreased profit or foss by INR 391,78 lakhs after tax (31 Mach, 2023: INR 90.47 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 602.18
lakhs (31 March, 2023; INR 139.05 lakhs) .
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44 Capita!l Management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The Company masnages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it as and when required, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
pay dividend or repay debts, raise new debt or issue new shares. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 3§ March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total labilities
comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, Jess cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all
components of equity

The Company capita consists of equity atiributable to equity holders that includes equity share capital and retained earnings.

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total Habilities 4,168,770 3,888.54
Eess: Cash & Cash equivalent 4,990,938 4,721.82
Adjusted net debt (a) (822.28) {833.28)
Total equity (h) 1,£4,737.71 92,226.91
Total equity and net debt (a+b) =¢ 1,13,935.43 91,393.63
Capital gearing ratio (a/c) (0.72%) (0.91%)

As a part of its capital management policy the Company ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to its contractual
obligations.

: i““‘”“-'."\,l__‘ )
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45 Segment reporting
A. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business aclivities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which diserete finaneial information is available,

The Company's board of directdrs have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) since they are responsible for all major decisions in respect of
altocation of resources and assessment of the performance on the basis of the internal reports/ information provided by functional heads, The board examines the
performance of the Company based on such internal reporis which are based on operations in various geographies and accordingly, have identified the foilowing
reportable segments: .

+ India

+ Burope, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

o Asla Pacifie and Australia (APAC)

» United States of America (USA)

B, Information about reportable segments

Year ended 31 March 2024

Reportable segments

Particulars

India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 40,188.55 41,414.54 12,658.31 19,350.53 1,13,611,93
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 40,188.55 41,414.54 12,658,531 19,350,53 1,13,611.93
Segment profit before income tax 8,135.25 13,850.68 2,861.43 2,452.39 27,299.75
Segment assets 20,009.26 20,706.38 5,355.2% 573722 51,808.11
Segment liabilities 10,432.45 10,952.56 3,305.87 3,272.31 28,053.19
Capital expenditure during the year 1,368.89 - - - 1,368.89
Year ended 31 March 2023

Reportable segments

Particulars

India EMEA APAC USA Total Segment

Revenue

External revenue 30,220.47 30,520,68 11,252.28 16,786.63 28,780.06
Inter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Segment Revenue 30,220.47 30,520.68 11,252.28 16,786.63 88,780.06
Segment profit before ncome tax 6,802.88 9,143.50 2,248,86 1,884.64 20,079.88
Segment assets 15,613.81 20,251.94 5,930.41 714549 48,941.65
Segment labilities 1,338.61 9,029.14 4,001.10 2,816.18 23,183,03
Capital expenditure during the year 1,370.81 - - - 1,370.81

C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to Ind AS

For the year ended 31 For the year ended

Partleulars March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Revenue*
Totat revenue for reportable segments 1,13,611.93 88,780.06
Elimination of inter-segment tevenue - -
Total revenue 1,13,611,93 88,780.06
{1} Profit before tax
Total profit before tax for reportable segments 27,299.75 20,079.88
Unallocated amounts:
- Unallocated income 4,550,01 3,291.11
- Qther corperate expenses 3,414.71 2.981.81
Total profit before tax {ronl operations 28,435.05 20,389.18
(c) Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 51,808.11 48,941.65
Other unallocated amounts 99,504.35 73,114.03
Tatal assets 1,51,312.46 1,22,055.68
{(d) Liabilities
Total liabilities for reporlable segments 28,053.19 23,185.03
Other unatlocated amounts 8,501.56 6,043.74
Total Habilities 36,554,75 20,828.77

* For information about products & services, refere Note 27,

D. Informatlon about major customers
No customer individually accounied for more than 10% of the revenues in the yeat ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

E. Unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue nnd expenses

Certain assets, liabitities, reyenue and expenses are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the underiying services are used interchangeably. The Company
believes that it is not E!.Pﬂpgﬁ'lb vide segment disclosures relating to such assets, linbitities, revenue and expenses and accordingly such assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses are se/p::(_‘t 1y disclosed-1§- pallocated’,

F) In accordance uﬁ nd AS-108 "Opgq[{Qg Segments” and based on "Management Evatuation”, the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023 used to allocale
Al platforms cost(’:;]h ed lo employees of Nn’;nber Theory Software Private Limited to India Segment, however, keeping in view the changes to the internal reporting, the
management has n;]ﬁphled this cost to ﬂlij"lliﬁ;’regiolls considering this to be a common cost, S
5 Y
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46, Ratios as per Schedule 1T requirements

Investinent

Ratio Denominator Unit 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-2) % variance Reagon for variance
Current ratio Current assels Current linbilities Times 3.87 311 24.65% -
Debi- Equity Ratlo Tolal Debt Shareholder’s Equity Times 0.04 0.04 -13.84% -
(refer note | below}
Debt Service Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service Times 24.38 19.00 28.35%  High growth in EBITDA from
Coverage ratio profit after laxes + Non-cash (refer note 3 below) operalions as compare ta
operating expenses increase in lease liabilities and
frefer note 2 below) borrowines.
Return on Net Profils after taxes — Preference  Avernge Sharcholder's Equity % ¥2.93% 19.82% 15.72% -
Equity vatio Dividend
Inventory Turnover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Times NA NA NA Not applicable for the business
ratio of the company
Trade Receivable  Net credit sales = Gross eredit sales - Average Trade Receivable Times 3.63 3.60 0.99% -
Turnover Ratlo sales return
(refer note 4 below)
Trade Payable Net credit purchases = Gross credit  Average Trade Payables Times NA NA NA Mot applicable for the business
Turnover Ratio purehases - purchase return of the company
Ne! Capital Ner sales = Total sales - sales retorn Working capital = Current assets - Times 1.37 1.80 -23.57% “
Turnover Ratio Curzent Habilities
Net Profit ratio Net Prefil % 20.89% 18.92% 10.43% -
Met sales = Total sales - sales return
Return on Capiial  Earnings before interest and taxes  Capital Employed Yo 23.14% 20.16% 14.75% -
Employed {refer note 5 below) (refer note 6 below)
Return an Interest (Finance Income) Average Investment % 7.95% 343%  131.80%  Company has started invesling

in debt & equity mutval funds
incurrent financial year
resulting into high return on
inyesiment

Notes:

1. Fotal debis consists of borrowings and lease Habilities,

2. Earning available for debt services=profit for the year + depreciation, amontization and impairment + finance cost + provision for doubtful dels + share hased payment to employees +

non cash charges.

3, Debt service = Interest + payment for lease liabilities -+ principal repaymeints.

4, Credit sales = Total Revente + opening contract assels - closing contract assets - cpening deferred revenue + closing deferred revenue.

5. Earnings before inlerest and taxes = profit before tax + finance cost - other income
6. Capital Employed = Average tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred lax.
7. Average is calculoted on the basis of opening and closing balances.

Schedule 111 requize explanation where the change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. Since there are only two instances where the change is more than
25% i.e. Debt Service Coverage ratio and Return on Investment, hence explanation is given only for the said ratios,
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47 Business Combination
On 18 January 2022, Newgen Software Technologies Limited (NSTL or "the Holding Company") entered into Share Purchase Agreement
(SPA) with existing shareholders of Number Theory Software Private Limited ("Number Theory") to acquire 100% stake. Pursuant to SPA,
the Holding Company has made investment of INR 1405.47 Lakhs in Number Theory {which become wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding
Company effective from 28 January 2022).
Number Theory Software Private Limited {‘Number Theory’) was engaged in providing Artificial Intelligence (‘AI} platforms to various
enterprises through its enterprise Al platform and data science capabilities.
Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill were as follows:

Particulars Amount
Cash paid : 702.73
Deferred payment liabilities 603.68
Total purchase consideration 1,306.41

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition were as follows:

Particulars Fair Value
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 542
Intangible assets 1,654.33
Cash and cash equivalents 14.15
Other current assets 42.82
Total Assets (a) 1,716.72
Liabilities ’
Trade payables 5.64
Short term provisions 10.09
Other current liabilities 2078
Capital Reserves 416.11
Long term borrowings 241.00
Total Liabilities (b) 693.62
Net identifiable net assets at fair value (a-b) 1,023.10

Calculation of goodwill:

Particulars Amount
Purchase conisideration 1,306.41
Less: Net identifiable niet assets acquired (1,023,130
Goodwill ' 283.31

The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition, customer contracts /relationships,non-compete agreement
and Number Theory's Artificial Intelligence that do not quality for separate recognition. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

A Scheme of Amalgamation w/s 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides for the merger of Number Theory Software Private
Limited (NTSPL), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was filed with the Delhi Bench of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).
NCLT through its Order dated 27th Septembey 2023 approved the aforesaid Scheme. Upon the sanction becoming effective from the appointed
date i.e. 01,04.2022 as provided under the Scheme, NTSPL stands dissolved without undergoing the process of winding up, The Company has
accounted for the merger under the Pooling of Interest method retrospectively as prescribed in the IND AS 103- Business Combination of
entities under common control. Previous year numbers have been accordingly restated. There are no material impact on the financial statements
of the company for the comparative year.
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48  As at 31 March 2024, the Company has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 20,027.40 lakhs (previous year INR 23,999,99 lakhs), Out of these receivables,
INR 1,955.12 takhs (previous year INR 3,363.91 lakhs) is cutstanding formore than 9 months. As per FED Master Direction No. 16/2015-16, receipl for expoit goods should be
realized within a period of 9 months from the date of export, The Company must file extension with AD Bank & as per the requirements, in one calendar yeat, the Company is
allowed to seek extension for an amount equivalent to USD one million or 10% of the average export collection of the last 3 years only, whichever is higher and pursuant to the
same, the company has applied for an extension of atl the forelgn currency receivables outstanding for more than 6 months. The management is of the view that the Company
will be able to oblain approvals from the autherilies for realizing such funds beyond the stipulated timeline without levy of any penalties as it had Bonafide reasons that caused
the delays in realization,

49  Other statutory Informations

i, The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property.
it The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

fil  The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

v The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial yeas,

v The Company have not advanced of loaned or invested fusnds to any ather petson(s) or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the undersianding that the
Intermediary shatl

(a) directly or indirectly lend o invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
vi The Company have not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {(whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimaie Beneficiaries) of

(b} provide any puarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
vil The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other refevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii "The company has sanctioned working capital amounts from banks on the basis of security of Trade Receivables and Fixed Deposits, The quarterly returns being filed by
company with banks are in line with the books of accounts,

ix  Alltitle deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Company.
x  The Company has not defaulted on any of the loan taken from banks, financial institutions or other lender.

xl  The Company has nol revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assels) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year,

xii The Company has complied with the number of fayers prescribed under Companies Act, 2013,

50  Pursuant to the Board approval on 27 November 2023 and shareholder's approval on 2 January 2024, through Postal Batlot, the Company has allotied 7,00,69,401 bonus shases
of INR 10/ each (fully paid up) on 13 January 2024 to the eligible members of the Company whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company /List of
Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date i.e., 12 January 2024 in the ratio of 11, The said bonus shares shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the
Company, including dividend. As a result of the bonus issue, the paid-up capital of the Company has ircreased to INR 14,013.88 lakhs from INR 7,006.94 lakhs. Consequent 1o
the above increase in paid-up capital, the eamings per share (Hasic and Diluted) have been adjusied for year ended 31 March 2023,

51 On 8th March 2024, the Company reported a Cyber security incident (the “incident’} that affected a few of the Company's IT assets. Fhe Company engaged with independent
cyber security consulting firms, for comprehensive analysis, providing immediate vecommendations and remediation sieps. The management took all the necessary measures (o
prevent damage to the [T syslems of the Company. It was concluded thal the incident did not result in any ransom and the Management believes that there s no financial, legal,
or regulatory impact of the incident reported herein.

52 Previous period's figures have been regroupedyreciassified wherever necessary to correspond withs the current period's classification/disclosure, which are not congidered material
1o these financial statements,
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies
Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group'), as listed in Annexure 1, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the
Cansolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2024, and their consclidated profit
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consofidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred fo in
paragraph 15 of the Other Matter section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Cont’d)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Revenue recognition for software

implementation services

Refer Note 3(i)ii) for accounting policy and 26 of
notes forming part of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

The Group eamns revenue from software
implementation services wherein it has entered
into various fixed-price contracts, for which
revenue is recognised by the Group using the
percentage of completion computed as per the
input method prescribed under Ind AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The said
revenue recognition accounting policy involves
exercise of significant judgement by the
management and the following factors requiring
significant auditor attention:

s High estimation uncettainty relating to
determination of the progress of each contract,
efforts incurred till date and additional efforts
required to complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation

s Determination of contract assets and unearned
revenue related to these contracts as at the end
of reporting periocd
» Considering the materiality of the amounts
involved and significant degree of judgement
and subjectivity involved in the estimates as
mentioned above, we have identified revenue
recoghition from fixed price contracts as a key
audit matter for the current year audit.

Our audit wark included but was not restricted to the
following procedures.

a) Obtained an understanding of the systems,
processes and controls implemented by
management for recording and calculating
revenue, and the associated contract assets,
unearned revenue and deferred revenue
balances.

b) Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
related manual controls and invelved auditor's
experts to assess key information technology
(ITY controls aver the IT environment in which the
business systems operate, including access
controls, segregation of duties, program change
controls, program development controls and 1T
operation controls;

¢) Selected a sample of cantracts and performed a
performed the following procedures: '

- Inspected key terms, including price,
deliverables, timetable and milestones set

out in the contract for selected sampile of

contracts and identified the distinct
performance obligations.
- Tested project management tool for

budgeted efforts and related percentage
completion milestones and establishing
accuracy of milestones based on
actualisation of efforts delivered
projects.

- Tested the details of activities completed
with those stated in the customer contract,
details of activities completed as provided
by the project head and
confirmation/acceptance of completion of
stich activities by the customer.

for

d) Evaluated the appropriateness of disclosures
made in the financial statements with respect
to revenue recognised during the year as
required by applicable Indian Accounting
Standards.

Chartered Accoumtants
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Cont’d)

B. Trade receivables and provision for expected
credit losses

Refer note 3{e) and note 3{i) for material policy and
note 40(C){ii) for credit risk disclosures.

Trade receivables and contract assets comprise a
significant portion of the current financial assets of
the Group. As at 31 March 2024, the Group has
reported trade receivable of Rs. 44,353.35 lacs
{net of provision for expected credit loss of Rs.
4,364.13 lacs.)

The Group applies simplified approach permitted
by Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, which
requires lifetime expected credit losses to be
recagnised from the date of initial recognition of
receivables. The Group analyses the trend of trade
receivables under different ageing bracket for
previous years and calculate weighted average
loss rate basis such movement in ageing brackets.

The estimate of expected credit loss involves
judgement as the management factors the past
history as above, market conditions and forward
fooking estimates as at each reporting date.

Considering this area inherently involves
significant area of judgement and subjectivity
followed with discussions with those charged with
governance at regular intervals, we have identified
this as a key audit matter.

Our audit work included but was not restricted to the
following procedures:

a)

d)

e)

Obtained an understanding of the process
adopted and controls implemented by the Group
for calculation, recording and monitoring of the
impairment loss recognised for expected credit
loss;

Assessed and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over completeness
and accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions
considered for calculation, recording and
monitoring of the impairment loss recognised.
Also, evaluated the controls over the modelling
process, validation of data and related
approvals;

Considered the Group's accounting policies for
estimation of expected credit loss on trade
receivables and contract assets and assessing
compliance with the policies in terms of Ind AS
109,

Inquired with management about the conditions
leading to, and their assessment of
recoverability of dues from the customers and
also referred to the available communication, if
any, between them.

Assessed, on a sample basis that items in the
receivables ageing report were classified within
the correct ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with underlying
documentation, which included sales invoices,
proof of delivery and customers sign offs;

Analysed the methodology used by the
management and considered the credit and
payment history of specific parties to determine
the trend used for arriving at the expected credit
loss provision and co-related fto  our
understanding of the debtor's financial
condition, the industry in which debtor operates.

Since the assumptions and inputs used for
calculating ECL is based on historical data, we
assessed whether such historical experience
was representative of current circumstances.

Chartered Accountants




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

h) Tested the accuracy and completeness of
underlying data for "expected credit loss model”,

iy Evaluated responses to direct confirmation
request circulated to customers and ensured the
reconciling items have been adequately
recorded in the baoks of account;

j) Obtained written representations  from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe significant
assumptions used in calculation of expected
credit losses are reasonable.

k) Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made by
the management in the financial statements to
reflect the expected credit loss provision, trade
and other receivables.

information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financiai statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

7. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's Board
of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Hoiding Company's
Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information
considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the
provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group covered under
the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

e -,
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

8. Inpreparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

9. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Gonsoclidated Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
cansolidated financial statements.

11, As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are apprapriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements ar, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation; and
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«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the entities or business
activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such
entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsibie for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

15.We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets of
#12,350.56 lacs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of ¥ 20,929.64 lacs and net cash outflows amaounting to
£89.97 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, 6 subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the
financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted
in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company's management. Our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of such
subsidiaries located outside India, is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done by and the reporis of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors, referred to in paragraph 15, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we report that
the Holding Company incarparated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
Jaid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that 1 subsidiary incorporated
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not
applicable in respect of such subsidiary,

17. As required by clause (od) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11}) of the Act based on the consideration of the
Order report issued by us and by the respective other auditor as mentioned in paragraph 15 above, of
companies included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there
are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order report of such company.

18. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other
auditor on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the report of the other auditor;

¢} The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant boaks
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and the
report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group
companies, are disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and subsidiary covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such contrals,
refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure II' wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of
the other auditor on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiary
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2024, as detailed in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements;

i.  The Holding Company and its subsidiary did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary covered under the Act, during the year
ended 31 March 2024, . .
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Chartered Accountsms

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditor of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief ,
on the date of this audit report as disclosed in note 46(v) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary, to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditor of such subsidiary respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on
the date of this audit report as disclosed in the note 46(vi) to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary,
from any person{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any
such subsidiary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditor of the
subsidiary, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 in respect of
such dividend declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent
it applies to payment of dividend and as stated in note 37 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2024 which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
declaration of dividend.

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditor of
the subsidiary of the Holding Company which are companies incorporated in India and audited under
the Act, the Holding Company and its subsidiary, in respect of financial years commencing on or after
1 April 2023, have used an accounting software for maintaining their books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we and
respective auditor of the above referred subsidiary did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountantis
Eisp’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ankit Mehra -
\gla ner
embership No.: 507429

UDIN: 24507429BKCKJX281

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 April 2024
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Annexure 1
List of entities included in the Statement

Newgen Software Inc.

Newgen Computers Technologies Limited
Newgen Software Technologies PTE. Ltd
Newgen Software Technologies (UK} Limited
Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Ltd
Newgen Software Technologies Pty Ltd
Newgen Software Technologies L.L.C.

o N e w

Newgen Software Technologies Company Limited
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Annexure

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies
Limited {the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as ‘the Group') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financiat Controls over Financial Repaorting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were estabiished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consalidated financial statements includes
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessay.to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting );)r;jh : eﬁf@nd that receipts and expenditures of the company are

L
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Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
palicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary company, the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

Other Matter

9. We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates
to 1 subsidiary company, which is company cavered under the Act, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of ¥ 81.84 lacs and net assets of ¥ 79.71 lacs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues of T Nil
and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 3.56 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have been audited by other auditor whose report have
been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements for the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such
subsidiary company is based solely on the reports of the auditor of such company. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reporis of
the other auditor,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LL.P
Chartered Accountants

“rlembership No.: 507429 :
UDIN: 24507429BKCKJX2817

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 April 2024

Chartered Accountants



Nevgen Software Technotogles Limlted
Consolidated Datance Sleet as at 31 Marel 2024
(AN amourts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, wnless otfierwise stated)

ASSETS

Noh-curren{ nssels
Properly, plunt and equipment
Capilal work-in-progress
Right-of-use assels
Goodwill
intungible assets
Financial ussets

Other Finineial assets
Deferred tax assels (net)
Income tax assels {nel)
Other non-current assets
Tolal non-currvent assets

Current assels
Finunciul assets
Investments
Trile receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other (han cash and cush equivalents
Loans
Other tinancial assels
Other current assets
Toial current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

“Totul equity nttrlbudable fo the owaers of the Holding Company

Non-current Habilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings
- Lease linbilities
Deferred lax liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current llabiitles
Current llnbllitles
Financial lisbHlities
Borrowinps
Lease Hubililies
Trude payables
- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises und small enterprises
- Total oulstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Deferred inconle
Other current lisbilities
Provisions
Income tax linbilities (net)
Total current Habitities

Total avilitles

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITLES

Summary of material accounting policies

The uccompanying notes wwe an intepral part of the Consolidated Finincial Stutements
As per our report of even date attached

or, Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Place: Gurugram
Date: 30 April 2024

Note Asal Asal
31 March 2024 M Mareh 2023

4 16,452.32 16,476.35
4 279.53 -
18 106344 6,382.64
4A 283.31 28331
5 1,022.03 1,314.96
6 8,382.97 23,338.45
32 2,846.57 1,986.63
7 1,697.90 1,929.06
] 17,86 14,02
38,045.93 51,726.52
9 36,498.89 13,138.80
10 44,353,315 38,816.58
H 12,451.31 14,802.06
12 25,136.83 10,032.82
13 11,73 7.00
14 9,462.08 8,431.73
15 2,681,64 1,519.05
1,30,601.83 82,748.04
1,68,647.76 1,34,474.56
16 13,977.93 6,965.57
17 1,08,373.58 91,287,52
1,22,351.51 98,253.0%
19 - 22005
18 346428 2,841 .82
32 : - 11,76
20 487307 3,505.39
8,337.35 ,579.02
19 219.92 203.30
18 1,166.55 100593
21 632,13 58.38
21 4,129.40 3,430.30
22 5,334.66 3,995,103
23 20,513.58 16,803.94
24 3,285.26 1,637.59
25 915,76 46,89
TA 1,761,64 1,560.7Y
37,958.90 29,642.45
46,296.25 36,221.47
1,68,647.76 1,34,474.56

3

Far and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Newgep Software Techuoloples Lintted

4

St
T8, Varndarajun
Whote Time Director
DN 00263115

Place: Noldu

> Date: 30 April 2024
VR

N 3 @' LA a{]_ ™
‘Admn Mouryn /
Compuny Secrelary

Membership No: F9975

Pluce: Noida
Date: 30 April 2024

Diwakar Nigam

Chairman & Managing Direclor
DIN: 00263222

Place: Chennui

Ardn Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 056859
Place: Noida

Date: 30 Apri) 2024

Place: Noida
Dute: 30 April 2024




MNewgen Software Technolopies Limlted
Consolidnied Statement of Proflt and Loss for the yeur ended 31 Murch 2024
(Al ciowts are n lakhs of Indict Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024 31 Murch 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 26 1,24,382.80 97,397.88
Other Income 27 4,806.43 3,308.57
Totu! Income . 1,29,189,29 1,00,796.45
Expenses
Employee benefits expenses 28 62,8343 51,58%.93
Finance costs 20 418,18 425,10
Deprechation gnd amertisation expenses 30 2,796,77 2,467.14
Other expenses 3l 32,720.42 24,586.23
Totul expenses 48,766.80 79,0068.40
Proflt before tax 422,49 21,728,08
Tox expense
Current [ax 5,953.49 4,276.98
Deferred tax credit {691.50) {250.08)
Income {ax expense : 5,261,499 +,026.90
ProfH for the yenr 25,160,5¢ 17,701.15
Other conzpreheasive {luss) / incenxe
Ttems that will nul be reclassliled subsequently to profit or luss
Re-measuretsent losses on defined benefit plany (467.22) {13.20)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or toss 163.26 4.6)
Net other comprebensive loss not Lo be reclassifled subsequentiy to profit or loss (303,46} {8.59)
{tems that will be reclassifled subsequently 1o profit or loss
Financia! nssets or invessments carried af faiv value through ether comprebensive income (67.18) (281.70)
Income tax relating to ilenss that will be reclassitied to profit ot loss 15.65 65.63
Exchange differences on tansialion of foreign operations 140,57 745.53
Net other cormprehensive incote to be reclassifled subsequently to profit o luss 8904 529.46
Other comprehensive (loss) / lncome for the year, net of Incerme tax {214.92) 320,87
Totad comprelensive licome For 1he yenr 24,945,548 18,222.02
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company 25,160.50 17,701.15
Profii for the year 25,160,50 17,7015
Other comprehensive {Joss} / income atteibutuble tot
Owners of the Holding Company (214.92) 520.87
Other comprebenslve (luss) / lncome For the year (214,92} 520.87
‘Totn) conprehensive Income attributable fo:
Owners of the Holding Company 24,945.58 18,222,02
Totul comprehensive inconwe Lor the year 24,945.58 18,222.02
Farnings per equity shure 33
Nominal value of shase INR 10 {31 Magch 2023; INR 10)
Basie earning per share (INR) 18.02 1271
Diluted earning per share (INR) 17.50 12.55
Summary of nxterisl accounting policies 3
The accompatying noles are an integeal part of the Conselidated Financial Statements
As per our report of event date attached
gr Walker Chondlok & Co LLP
3 - N N il
For and or behalf of the Board of Directors of o

f Chaytered Acomntans
iRe Newgen Software Technologles Limited iy

Diwakaf Nigam "8, Varadaraan Virender Ja
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director Chief Execptive Officer

DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263113 PAN: AAQ
Place: Nolda Place: Noida”

Date; 30 Aprit 2024 Dzlle:ﬁAprii 2024
G LAl
Dopagin \LBW |

Place: Gurugram Place; Chennai

Date: 30 April 2024

Arun Kumar Gupta Adui Monryw L Hy
Chief Financial Cificer Company Seeretary B
Membership No; 050859 Membership No: F9975 0

Place: Noida Place: Noida

Die; 30 April 2024 Date: 30 April 2024




Newgen Softwnre Technologies Limlted
Cansobidated Stntement of Cash Flows (or the yenr ended 31 March 2024
(AI qemounts ¢re i lakhs of Indian Ripees, niless atfierwise stated)

. For the yenr ended For the year ended
Partieutars 31 March 2024 31 Margh 2023
A, Cash flows from opernting activitles )
Net profit before tax 0,422.49 21,728,058
Adiustments fos:
Depreciation and mmontisation expenses 2,796,771 2,467.14
(Gain) f loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (13.35) 0,58
Loss alfowance on trade receivables and contract assets 3,263.98 2.000.40
Liabitities/ provision no longer required wrilten bick {120.68) (1,068.74)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain )/ loss (399.07) 237.84
Share based payment - equity settled 2,437.91 1,463.91
Finance costs 335.00 340.25
Fair valuz changes of fnancial assets at FYTPL (1,359.54) {87.29)
Profit on sale of mutual funds {net) at FVTPL (254.94) {151.30}
Interest income (2,604.61) (2,078.20%
Operating cosh fow before working capltal clinnges 34,504.86 24,852.64
Incrense in trade receivables (8,702,00) (11,967.49)
(Increasedlecrease n loans 473 13,92
Decrease int other fimaneial nssets 147,33 1442}
Increase in other assets {1,166.34) (453.01)
[ncrease in provislons 869,33 44378
increase/(decrense) hs other financind Habilities 1,263.77 (36,74}
Increase in other Liabilities 5,357.31 4,157.75
Increase in trade payables 1,343 54 470.25
Cash generated [rom opernons 33,663.407 17,625.29
Income taxes paid (net) (5,522,00) (3,989.86)
Nel ¢nsh generated from operating nctivitles (A) 28,141,607 13,635.43
B. Cash Nows frem Investing netlvitles
Acquisition or construction of property plant and equipment including intangible assets, capital . (1,380.77) {1,677.15)
work-in-progress, capitol advances and payabke for capital assels
Praceeds from sale of property plant and equipment £7.60 7.91
Purclinse of sustunl funds and bonds (36,199.38) (13,198.40)
Proceeds from redemption of mutual funds and bods 14,386,59 9,251.49
Interest received from bonds 426.36 428.49
Interest received from bank deposits 1,322,38 1,065.16
Investment in bank deposits (net of maturities) (453.66) (5,307.34)
Net cush used kn Investing nctivities (B) {21,880.88) (9,429.84)
C. Cash flows lrom finnncing actlvitles
Repayment of short-term borrawings (net) (234.24) (234.28)
Repayment of lease linbilities (1,228.26) (1,095.26)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares under ESOP scheme 212.62 72,73
Drividend paid {3,495.63) (3,148.01)
Net epsh used In flnnncing petivities (C) (4,745,51) (4,404.82)
Net Lncrensef(decrense) in cnsh and cnsh equivalents (A + B + C) 1,514,68 (199.23)
Cash nnd cosh equlvalents ot the beginning of the year 10,802.06 10,387.07
Effect of exchange dilferences on transintlon of forelgn currency cash nnd cash equivalents 140,57 644.22
Cash nid eash equivalents al the end of the year 12,457.31 10,802,06
Conponents of cush and cash eguivalents: (refer note 11)
Cash in hand 6.45 4,16
Balances with banks:
- in cuirent accounts 11,049,47 10,182.83
- balances with scheduled banks in deposit accoumts with original maturily of less thasn 3 wonths 1,401.39 615.07
12,457.31 10,802.06

Notes:
1. The cash flow stalement has been prepaved under the jndirect meihod as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows"

The accompanying notes are an imegsal part of the Consolidated Financial Stnie menss

As per our repont of even date attuched

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For wid on bebalf of the Board of Diveclors of
Chartered Avcountants Newgen Software Techinologles Llmited

qn Reglsteation No.: 001076N/NS00013

-\,/ N }({
{ b £
/J\ 5 e piR— i}
Dlwakar Nigum T S Vumdnm_]un
Chalrman & Managing Birector Whole Time Director
DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 PAN: AAOPJ 33N
Pluce; Gurugrain Plage: Chennai S Pince: Noida Place: Molda

Dute:

Date; 30 April 2024 April 20947 Dater 30 April 2024 Date: 30 Aprit 2024

IR M@\ﬁ;ﬁ‘«f s 3

S,

A Kumar Gupta

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 056859 Membership No: F9975
Place: Noida Place: Noidn

Diter 30 April 2024 Date: 30 Aprit 2024
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (*Newgen' or ‘the Company’ or “the holding company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding compuny and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”) is a public company domiciled and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable it India. The registered office of the Company is situated at B-44/13, Okhla Phase 11, New Dethi 110020, The Company raised money
by way of initial public offer during the year ended 31 March 2018 and its shares were listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE) of India,

"The Company is a global software Company and is engaged in the business ol software product development including designing and delivering
end-to-end software solutions covering the entire spectrum of software services from workflow automation 1o Document management to imaging,
Newgen provides a complete range of software that helps mutemate business processes, Newgen's solutions enable document intensive
organizations! industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance and government depactments 10 improve productivity through betier document
management and workflow implementation.

Basis of Preparation

A. Statement of complinnee

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the

Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2048 were the first financial statements
that the Group had prepared in accordance with Ind AS,

The consolidated financial strtements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 30 April 2024,
Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note 3,
B. Basls of Consolidation

The Consolidated financia! statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting standards)
Rules, 2015, amended, aud other relevant provisions of the Act and guidelines issued by the Securities und Exchange Board of Indix (SEBL),

Name of Subsidiaries Country of Incorporation | Etfective Shareholding
(%)

Newgen Software Inc, 1.5.A 160

Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Limited Canada 100
Australia 100

Newgen Software Technologies PTY Limited.

Newgen Software Technologies PTE, Limited Singapore £00

Newgen Software Technologies (UK} Limited United Kingdom 100

Newgen Compulers Technologies Limited India 100

Newsgen Software Technologies L.L.C, UAE 100

Newgen Software Teclmologies Company Limited Saudi Arabia 100

The consolidated financial statements have been prepated on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding the book values
of like items of assets, liabifities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances/transactions and unreatized profits in full in
accordunce with Ind AS 119 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”, The amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise the anount of the
relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the parent company and its share in the post-ncquisition increase/decrease in the reserves of the
consolidated entities.

The excess/deficil of cost (o the parent company of ils investment over its portion of net worth in the consulidated entities at the respective dates
on which investment in such entities was made is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill/capital reserve. The pareat
company's portion of net woerth in such entities is determined on the basis of book values of assets and linbilities as per the Financial stilements
of the entities as on the date of investment and if not available, the financial statements for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the
cffects of significant changes.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The fistancial statements of the foreign non integral subsidiaries (coltectively referved (o as the ‘foreign non integral operations’) are transtated
into Indian rupees as follows:-

i, Share capital and opening reserves and surplus are carried at historical cost,
4. All assefs and liabilities, both motietary and non-monetary, (excluding share capital, opening reserves and surplus) are translated using the
year-end tales,
i, Profit und loss items are translated at the respective weighted average rates or the exchange rate that approximates the actual exchange rate
on date of specific transactions,

iv. The resulting et exchange dilference is credited or debited to the foreign currency transkation reserve,
C. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accoutted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured al acquisition date fair value and the amount of anty non-controlling Inlerests in the nequiree, For each business combination
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquires at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identitiable net nssets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values, For this
purpose, the liabilities assumed include cortingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resowices embodying economic benetits is not probable.

However, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arangements are recognlsed and measured in
accordance withh Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes” and Ind AS 1 *Employee Benefits’ respectively. When a liability assumed is recognised at the
acquisition date, but the related costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a Jater period, a deductible temporary difference avises
which results in a deferred tax asset, A deferred tax asset also arises when the fair value of an identiliable asset acquired is less than its tax base,

When the Group acquires 4 business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic cireumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previcusly held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain o loss is recognised in profit or loss or OC, as appropriate,

Any contingent consideration to be transterred by the acquirer is recognised at fuir value at the sceuisition date. Contingent consideration classified

as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind-AS 109 Finuncial Instruments, is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 1f the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind-AS 109, it is measwred in accordance
with the appropriute [nd-AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subseguent reporting dates and subsequent
its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured nt cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous inferest held, over the net identiliable assets acquired and linbilities assumed, If the fair value of the net
assels acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transterred, the Group re-assesses whether it hus correctly identified abl of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures nsed to measure the amounts Lo be recognised at the acquisition date, If the
seassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve,

Affer initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accuntulated impaivment losses, For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination s, [rom the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benetit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or Habilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested Tor impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired, Jf the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its canying amount, the tmpairment loss is alloeated
first (o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 1o the unit and thea te the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit,

Any impaicment loss for goodwill is recognised in consoliduted statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods,

Whete goodwill has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed off, the goodwill associated with
the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained,

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting pericd in which the combination ocours, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during
the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, o reflect new information obtained nbout facts and circumstances tat
existed ut the acquisition datg that, if' known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that dute, These adjustments are called us measurement
e@é{,li‘;gp ent period does nol exceed one year from the acquisition date.

. -
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

D. Functivnal and presentation currency

These financisl staternents are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional curtency, All amounts hive been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated,

E. Basis of mensurement

The financial statements have been prepated on the historical cost basis except for the tollowing items:

Htems Measurement hasis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Defined benelit linbilily Present value of defined benefit obligations

F.  Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of finaneial statements in confermity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabiiities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying value of assets or
liabilities attected in future periods.

Estimates anc undeslying assumptions are reviewed oo an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judpmients

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most material effects on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

e  Note 3(D) and Note 26 — revenue recognition from fixed price contracts of software implementation services: percentage of completion
methed to estimate the efforts or costs expended (o date as a proportion of the total efforts or costs to be expended.
. Note 3(1} and Note 18 — determination of lease torm;

Assumptions and estimation unceriainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a muterial adjustment in the year ending 31
March 2024 is included in the following notes:

e Nole 3(e)iii) ~Estimation of Useful lives of intangible assets and Propety, plant and equipment

o Note 28 — Meusurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuacial assumptions;

e Note 32 — Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carvied torward cun be used;
¢ Note 34 —Fuir value of share based puyments

. Note 41(C)(ii} — Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets.

+  Note 18 — Recognition of right of use asset and lease liability

G. Current and non-current classitication
The Group presents assets and linbilities in the balance sheet bused on current / non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itisexpected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption is, the Group’s normal operating cycle.

- it is held primarity for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within |2 months after the reporting dase; or

- it is cush or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for al least 12 months after the reporting
date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisties any of the following criteria:
- itisexpected to be settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

« itis due to be seltled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Group dogayobhay E-an unconditional right to defer seitlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, Terms of a
’ &
™

Jiability thy /cx‘;ﬁ%ﬂ, W theaption of the counterparty, result in its settlement b the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
y thitted) B} y y Juity




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Current assets/liabifities include current portion of non-current financial assets/linbilities respectively. All other ussets/ liabilities sre classified as
non-current, Deferred tax assets and labilities (if any) are classified as non-cugrent assets acl linbilities.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the ucquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents,
the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classitication of assets and linbilities,

H., Measurement of fadr values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and dischosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and Habitities. The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall
responsibility for overseeing atl significant {air value measurements, including Level 3 Tair vatues, and reports directly to the chief tinancial
officer, The Group regulacly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation sdjustments. f third party informuation, such as broker quotes
or pricing services, is used o measure lair values, then the Group assesses the evidence obtained {rom the third parties to support the conelusion
that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value higrarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant vatuation issues are reported to the Group's audit conumitiee,
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,

»  Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabifities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly (Le. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices),

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (Unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value of an asset or a Hability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy us the lowest Jevel input tha is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value b ferarchy at the end of the reporting peried during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring tair values is included in the following notes:

Note 34 — Share-based payment arrangements; and

Note 41 — Finuncial instruments,

1. Recent secounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notilies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounling
Standards) Rules as issued from time 1o time, For the year ended 31 Murch 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments Lo the
existing standards applicable to the Group.

Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year,

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the eqtities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies. The effective dute for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The
amendment did sot have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a detinition of ‘accounting
estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS % (o help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates,
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or alter April 1, 2023, The amendment did not have any material
impact on the financial statements o the Group.

Ind AS 12 - Income Tnxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023, The amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Group.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

a,

b.

Material Accounting Policies
Foreign currency

i, Funclional currency
The Group financial statements arc presented in INR, which is also the Group's functional currency.

it,  Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the { unctionzl currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
of an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual vate al the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are wanslated into the functional currency ut the exchange rate at the reporting
date, Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in 2 foreign currency are translated into the functional currency ul the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monelary assels and liabilities that ate measured based on historical cost in « foreign
curtency are translated at the exchange rate 4t the date of the transaction,

Financial instruments
i, Recognition and initial measureiient

Trade receivables and debl securities issued are initially recognised when they are ori ginated. All other financial assets and financiat liabilities e
initiaily recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A [inancial assel or financial liability is initislly measured at fair vatue phus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
\ransaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are mensured at transaction price.

fi, Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, 4 financial asset is classitied as measured at

- Amortised cost;

- Fair value trrough Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCD — debt investment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financia! assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FYTPL:

2 the assel is held within a husiness mode! whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

»  the contractual ters of the financial asset give rise on specified dases to cash flows that are solely payments of principul and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

s the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting cortractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCl as described above are measured at FYTPL. On initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requitements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significanily reduces an accounting mismatch that woutd otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held al a portlolio tevel because this best
reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided te management, for instance the stated policies and objectives for the
portfolio, frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales
activity.

Transfers of financial assets 1o thivd parties in transactions that do tot qualify for de-recognition wre not considered sales for this purpose, consistent
with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on 4 fair value basis are measured at FVTPL,
GHANSTS o
el




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Financial asseis: Assessiment whether contraciual cash flows are solely payments of principal and Iiterest,

Yor the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition, ‘Interest” is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash (lows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the
instrumsent. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains & contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
s terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
= prepayment and extension features; and

Busis the above classification criteria, Group’s investments are classified as below:-

- Investments in government and other bonds have been classitied as FVOCI
- [nvestments in Mutual funds have been classified as FYTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurenent and gains and fosses

Financial assets ai FYTPL
These assets are subsequently meusured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets al amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses,
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognised
in profit or loss,

Debt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses und
impairment are recognised in profit or loss, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On de-recognition, gains and losses aceumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investmenis at FVOCT

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in protit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment, Other nel gains and losses are recognised in OCI and ure not reclassified to Statement of protit or
loss. ‘

Finencial lNabilities: Classification, subsequent measuretnent and gains and losses

Financial labilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classitied as at FYTPL if it is classitied as held-
for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recogaition, Financial liabilities ut FVTPL are meusured at tair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in protit or loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective imterest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on de-recogpition is atso recognised in protit or loss,

{if, Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group de-recognises a linancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fron the financial asset exp ire, or it transfers the rights ©
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of ihe finuncial asset are
transferred or in which the Group neither ransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not setain control
of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby if transfers assels recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transtecred assets, the tansferred assets are not de-recognised,

Financial liabilities
The Group de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expite.

The Group also de-recognises a {inancial liability when its ternts are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different, In this case, & new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial Uabllity with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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fv.  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group cutrently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settie them on a nel basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simuitancously,

¥, Dertvatives and Embedded derivatives

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives ure measwred at falr value, and changes therein are
generally recognised in profit or loss,

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separatety if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain
criteria are met.

¢, Property, plant and equipment

i, Recognition and measuvement
Hters of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost fess accumulated depreciation and sccumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an itens of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trude discounts and rebates, any directly atiributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed ilem of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributabte to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate ftems (major
componeuts) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain ot loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Stuement of profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Bulance Sheet dale is classified as capital advances
under other not-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disciosed under *Capital work-in-progress.

i, Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is eapitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Group.

iii.  Depreciation

Depieciation is caleulated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lves unless if is reasonably certain that the Group with obtain ownership by the end af the leuse

termn. Freehold land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as foliows:

Category of Property, plant and equipment Estimated useful life (Years)
Building 60
Plant and equipment 18
Leasehold Improvements® 3
Office equipment** 10
Furniture and Fixtures ) 1o
Vehicles 7-8
Computer hardware
- servers and networks 6
- Computers** 3-7
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Depreciation method, uselul fives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate,

Depreciation on addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata busis i.e. from {upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed oft).
#_ensehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease term of the respective property or 3 years whichever is lower.
Leasehold land is amortised over the lease period of 90 years.

#+Based on an internal technica! assessment, the management believes that the uselul lives as given above best represents the period over which
management expects to use its assets, Hence, the useful life of plant and equipment is ditferent from the useful life as prescribed vnder Pail C of
Schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013,

d. Intangible assets
Recognition and measuretnent
intangible assets re initially recognised at:
(1) In case the assels are acquired separately then at cost,
(b) In case the assets are acguired in a business combination or under any asset purchase agreement at fair value.
Following initial recogaition, intangible assets are carried at cost fess any aceumulated amortisation and accumulated impaisment loss.
Intangible assets with finite useful life are assessed for impuirment whenever these is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future econontic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.
Anortization

Amortisation of intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis using the estimated useful life as fottows:

Intangible assets Useful lives (years)
Computer Software 3-4 Yeurs
Al Platform 5 Years

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. 1 the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and ate recognized in the Statement profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

e, Impairment

1a accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of inipairment loss on the
following fnancial assets and credit risk exposure:

2. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables

and bank balance

Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCH

Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d.  Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from tansactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115

¢, Loan commitments which are not measured #s at FVTPL

f.  Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

[

The Group follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
« Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
v All lense receivables resulting from trunsactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowange based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,
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For recognition of impairment loss o other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines thut whether there has been a significam
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month BCL. is vsed to provide for
impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit rigk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The §2-
month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results [rom default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between alt contractual cash tlows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive (i.e,, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recopnized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss
(P&L). This amoust is reflected under the heud ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL. is presented as an allowance,
i.e., as an imegral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net curying amount. Until

the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

»  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, ie, as a liability. Debt
instruments measured at FYTOCL: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the calrying
amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an antount equal to the atlowance that would arise if the asset was
meusured at amortised cost is recognised in othet comprehensive incoms as the “accumulated impairment amount™,

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, L.e., financial ussets which are credit impaired
on puichase/ origination.

Impairment of Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed i ¢ach reporting date if there is any indication of impairnent based on intemal/extemal factors, An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carry ing amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating units) net selling price and value in use. In nssessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows ure discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset (or cush generating unit).

An impairment loss is reversed if there hus been a change in the estimates used 10 determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's curying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amontisation, if no impairment loss had been recogised

f. Employee benefils
i, Shori-tersi employee benefits

Short-lerm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed us the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Group has a present tegal or constructive obfigation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of abligation can be estimated reliably.

i, Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Group and subsidiaries of the Group is
recognised as an employee expense and deemed investment, with a cotresponding increase in equity, over the period that lhe employees
unconditionally become entitled to the awards, The amount recognised as expense/deemed investment is bised on the estimite of the number of
awards for which the related service and non-mirket vesting conditions are ex pected to be met, such that the arount ultimately recognised as an
expense/dement investment is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-nurket vesting conditions ul the vesting
date, For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is meansured to reflect
such conditions and there is no true-up for dilferences between expected and actuul outconies,

it Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is « post-employment benetit plan under which us entity pays [ixed contributions into & separate entity and will have
The Group mukes specified monthly contibutions towards Government administered
ized as an employee benetit expense in profit or loss
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Prepaid contributions are recoghised as an asset to the extent thut a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is availuble,
v, Defined benefit plans

A defined benelit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plag. The Group’s gratuity scheme is » defined benefit
plan, The present value of cbligations under such defined bencfit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benetit
entitlement and measures each unil separately to build up the final cbligation,

The obligation is measured at the present vajue of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period
approximating to the terms of related obligations

Re-measuremnent gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and ate never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the detined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or foss as past service cost.

v, Other long-term employee benefiis

"The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits ather than post-employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and priot periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, und the
fair value of any refated assets is deducted.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized acerued compensated absences and wiilize it in future service periods or receive cash
compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of
such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit, The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the
petiod in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement, The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuasial
valuation using the projected unit eredit method. Re measurements 4s a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the profit or loss.

g. Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a pust event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired to settle the abligation, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (tepresenting the best estimate of the expenditure required 10 settle the present obligation ut the balunce sheet date) at a pre-lax
pate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specilic to the liability. The vnwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost, Expected future operating losses are not provided for, Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting
date and adjusted Lo reflect the current best estimates,

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits 1o be derived by the Group from the contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract, The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present vilue of the lower

of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, Before such a provision is made, the
Group recognlses any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

h. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be contirmed by the occurrence or not-oceurtenee
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group of a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
{hat an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. The Group
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its gxistence in the financial statememts

i, Revenue

Effective § April 2018, the Group has apptied Ind AS 1 15 which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is Lo be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts, The Group has adopted Ind
AS |15 using the cumulative effect method. The adoplion of the standard did not have any material impuct t the consolidated finuncial statesents
of the Group.

Revenues from customer’s contracls are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties, in
writing, to the contract, the parties o contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally
enforceable. Revenue is recogized upon transfer of conurol of promised products or services {“performance obfigations”) to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Group has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products or services (“transaction price™).
When there is ly)ﬂ&[’lﬂiwg}ﬁ 10 collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resotved,

BRI




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

i, Sale of License

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transterred to
the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of licenses to the customers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the ussociated costs and
possible returm of software sold can be estimated rellably, there is no continuing effective control over, of managerial involvement with the ticenses
transferred and the amount of revenug can be measured reliably.

fi,  Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized n propottion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Biforts or costs
expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.

Software Implemeniation Services

The revenue from fixed price contracts for software implementation is recognized based on proportionate completion method based on hours
expended, and foreseeable losses on the completion of contract, if any are recognized immediately, Efforts or costs expended have been used (o
determine progress towards completion as there is a direct relation ship between input and productivity. Progress towards compiction is measured
as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred 1o date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs or efforts, Estimates of transaction price
and total costs or efforts are continuously menitored over the lives of the contracts and are recognized in profit or loss in the period when these
estimates change or when the estimates are revised. Revenues and the estimated total costs or efforts are subject to revision as the contract
progresses. Provisions for estimaled Josses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the peried in which such losses become probable
based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract,

The Group is also involved in lime and material contracts and recognizes revenue as the services ure performed.

Annual Technical services
Revenue from annuak technical service and maintenance contracts is recognised ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement,

fif.  Sale of vight 1o use software

Software-as-a-service, that Is, a right to access software functionatity in a cloud-based-infrastructure provided by the Group. Revenue from
arrangements where the customer obtains a “right to access” is recognized over the access period.

Revenue from client training, support and other services arising due Lo the sale of license is recognized as the performance obligations are satistied,

Revenue is recognised, net of relums, trade discounts and volume rebates. This inter alin involves discounting of the consideration due 10 the
present value i payment extends beyond normal credit terms. Reinbursements of out-of-pocket expenses received from customers have been
netted off with expense.

Amounts received or billed in advance of services to be performed are recorded as advance from customers/unearned revenue, Unbilled revenue
represents amounts recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms,

fv.  Multiple deliverable arrangemenis

When two or more revenue generting activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, the Group has applied the guidance in
Ind AS |15, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct performance obligation. The
arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering license for soflware products and related services as distinet performance
obligations. For allocating the transuction price, the Group has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its
relative standalone selling price. The price that is regularty charged for an item when sold separatedy is the best evidence of its standalone selling
price. In cases where the Group is unable to determine the standalone selling price, the Group uses the expected cost plus margin approach in
estimating the standalone seiling price.

Arrangements to deliver software products generally have three elements license, implementation and Annual Technicul Services (ATS). The
Group has applied the principies under Ind AS 115 to account for revenues from these performance obligations, When implementation services
are provided in conjunction with the licensing arrangement and the license and implementation bave been identified as two separate performance
obligations, the transaction price for such cortracts are al located lo each performance obligation of the contract bused on thelr relative standitlone
selling prices. In the absence of standalone selling price for implementation, the performance obligation is estimated using the expecied cost plus
margin appoach,

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining u contract which are reconized as assels and amortized over the term of the conlract.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revesue eurned over billings on contracts, Contract assets are classified as unbilled
receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cush, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms,

Unearned up(.} &lt:ifé‘ 1
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

k,

1.

v, Trade Receivables

Trade receivables ate amounts due from customers for sale of license or rendering of services in the ordinary course of business, They are generally
due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as current, Where the setttement is due after one year, they are classified as non-
current, Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash tlows
and therelore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective intetest method. Trade receivables are disclosed in Note 10,

vi.  Impairment

An impatrment is recognised to the extent that the catrying amount of receivable or asset relaling to contracts with customers () the remaining
amount of consideration that the Group espects to receive in exchange for sale of license or rendering of services to which such asset relates; less
(b the costs that refate directly o providing thuse sale of license or rendering of services and that have not been recognised as expenses.

Recognition of dividend income, Interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in statement profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment is established,
Interest income of expense is recognised using the effective interest method,

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrament L0:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In caleulating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross camying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or 1o the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent o initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financiak asset, If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the caleulation of Interest income reverts to the gross basis,

Sale of investments

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transter of title from the Group and is determined as the difference between the sales price and the
cartying value of the investment,

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for lnd and buildings. The group assesses whether a contrict contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract conveys the right to control the use of an identitied asset fora period

. of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses
whether: {1} the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the assel
through the period of the lease and (3) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the Jease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use assel (‘ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for ail lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short term und Jow value leases, the Group recognizes the lease paymients as an operating expense on 4 straight-line basis over the term of the
lease,

Cerlain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and leuse liabilities
ineludes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised,

The right-of-use assets are initinlly recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the Jease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior (o the commencemert date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They ure subsequently measured al
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciuted from the commencement date on a steaight-line busis over the shorter of the lease term and uselul lite of the
underiying asset,

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable, For the purpose of impairnient testing, the recoverable amount (i, the higher of the fair value less cost {o sell and the value-in-use}
is determined on an individual asset basks unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In
such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs,

Leaiien
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Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The lesse Hability is initially measured at amortized cost al the present value of the future lease puyments. The lease payments ure discounted
using the interest rale implicit in the lease or, il not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these
Jeuses, Lease linbilitics are re-meusured with a corresponding adjustment to the refated right of use asset il' the group changes its assessment if
whelher it will exercise an extension or a termination option,

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Batance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as finuncing cash
fiows.

m, Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognised in profit ar loss except o the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other coniprehensive inceme.

I3 Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income o loss for the year and any adjustinent o the tax payable or
receivable in tespect of previous years, The amount of cuurent tax retlects the best estimate of the tax amount expected 1o be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related (o income faxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax lws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realise the asset and setsle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

it  Deferred tax

Deferred tax ls recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for lixation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax Josses and
tax credits, Deterred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accoutting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used,
Deferred tax assets — untecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and ure recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/
no fonger probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be reafized,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the linbility is setled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measwrement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the munner in which the Group expeets, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabifitics are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authotity on the same laxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and lisbilities will be realised simultancously.

Minimum Altemative Tax ("MAT’) undey the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The credit availabte under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the exient there is convincing evidence
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax
liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence
no longer exists,

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bunks and cash in hund and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to insignificunt risk of changes in value.

o, Larnings per share (“EPS*)

Basic earmings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the Groupby the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of common and dilutive common equivaient shares outstanding during the year but including share options, compulsory convertible preference
shares except where the result would be anti-dilutive. :
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Share Capital
Equity Shares

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable 10 the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity.

Dividends

The final dividend on shases is recorded as & liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and interim dividend are recorded as a linbilily
on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

Basis of segmentation
Segment reporting
Operating segmerts are reposted in 4 manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided to the chiet operating decision maker (CODM).
Identification of seginents;

All operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors, who have been identified us the CODM, to allocate resources to
the segments and assess their performance. Refer note 43 for segment information.

ESOP Trust

The ESOP Trust has been treated as an extension of the Company and accordingly shares held by ESOP Trust are netted off from the total share
cupital, Consequently, all the assets, liabilitics, income and expenses of the trust are accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company, except
for profit / loss on issue of shares to the employees and dividend received by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted lor the effects of ransactions of a non-cash nature,
aiy deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with iuvesting or
financing cash flows. The cash from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated,

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest lakhs s per the requiremnent ol Schedule 1,
unless otherwise/ stated,,

I
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Newpen Software Technologies Limited
Notes o the consotidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated}

As at As at
44 Goodwil 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Balance 283,31 283.31
tmpairment of poodwill - -
Closing Balance 283.31 283,31
Computer
5 intangible nssets Al Platform Total
software

Cost
Bualance as at 31 March 2022 412.61 1,654.33 2,0066,94
Additions during the year 56,18 - 56,18
Balance as at 31 March 2023 468,79 1,654.33 2,123.12
Additions during the year 72.17 - 7217
Balance as #f 31 March 2024 540,96 1,654.33 2,195.29
Accumulated Amortisation
Batanee as at 1 April 2022 399.52 56.20 45572
Amortisation during the year 21,58 330.86 352,44
Balance as at 1 Aprii 2023 421,10 387.06 808.16
Amortisation during the year 33.33 331,77 365.10
Balance as at 31 March 2024 454,43 718.83 1.17&

Carrylng amount (net)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 47,69 1,267.27 1,314.96
Balance as at 31 March 2024 86,33 935,50 1,022.03
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Other finaneial assets (non-current)

Bank deposits

- Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months
- pledged with tax authorities

- held as margin money™*

Interest ncerued o deposits

Security deposits

Earnest money deposits

-Unseeured, considered good

-Unsecured, considered doubtful

-Less: Losy allowance for doubtful deposits

*Bank deposils held os margits money represents deposits made on account of guarantees issued to government customers

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

2,990,853 18,130.51
6.02 4,42
4,366,85 3,876.98
394.02 318.93
487,97 482,08
137.26 25.53
164,75 164.75
(164.75) (164.75)
8,382.97 23,338.45

ameunting to INR 1,734.43 Inkhs

(31 March 2023: INR 687,73 lakhs) and deposits made to avall overdraft facilities amounting to INR 2,631.59 lnkhs (31 March 2023: INR 3,182.46 Lakhs)

Information about Group's exposure to credil and market risks and fair value measurement is inchwled in Note 41,

Incume Lax nssets (net)

Advince income tax {net of provigion of INR 9,403,22 lukhs (31 March 2023 INR 17,205.30 lukhs))

1come tax linbilities {uet)

Provision for tax (net of advance tax of INR 3,543.93 lakhs (31 March 2023 INR 2,363.08 lakhs))

Other non-current assels

Prepaid expenses

Investiments (refer note 39)

Iivestments in bonds (unguoted)
Bonds at FYOCI
-Investment in government bonds

Investments in mutual funds (ungueted)
Mutual funds at FYTPL

Aggregate book value of unguoted investnents

As al
31 mMarch 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,697,900 1,929.06
1,697,590 L,929.06
As ut As at

31 Maurch 2024

31 Murch 2023

— A A e e e —

1,761.64 1,560.79
1,761.64 1,560.79
Asal As ut
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17.86 14,12
17.86 14,12
As at Asat

31 Murch 2024

31 Mureh 2023

£,390.08 6,186,335
0,390.08 6,186,35
30,108.81 6,952,435
30,108.81 6,952.45
36,498.89 13,138.80
36,498.89 13,138.80

[nvestments it bonds measured al FYOCT have staled imerest rates of 7.04% to 8.63%. Information about Group's exposure to eredit and market sisks and L

value measurement is included in Note 4HC),

Trade receivables

- Trade receivables - Unsecured, considzred goud
- Trade receivables - Credit impaired

Allowance for bud and doulitful debts
- Trade receivables- Unsecured, censidered good
- Trade receivables - Credit impaired

As at Asal
31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023

47,815.12 42,338.46
002,36 803.07

48,717.48 43,141.53

(3,461.77) (3,521.88)
(902.36) (803.07)

dd4,353.35 38,816,58
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Trade Recelvables Ageing Schedule

Quistanding for followlng perieds from due date of payment

Partteulurs Current but  Less than 6 muorths -2 Years 2-3 Years Maore Than
not due Gmonths  to | vears 3 years

Total

As ut 31 March 2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables-
Considered good 32,768.30  11,766.51 1,465.24 1,205.65 461.94 147.48

Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

increase in eredit risk - - - - - -
Undispused Trade Receivables- credit

impaired - - - - 902,36 -

Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good f - - - . .
Disputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

incredse in credit risk - - . - - -
Disputed Trade Receivables-

credit impaired - - - -

47,815,12

902.36

32,768,30  11,766.51 1,465.24 1,205.65 _ 1,364,30 147.48

48,717.48

Outstandiug for Following perieds from due date of payment

Particalurs Current bul  Less than 6 inonths 1-2 Years 2-3 Yeuts More Than
not due 6 months 1o | years 3 years

Totul

As at 31 Mureh 2023

Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good 26,267.43  10,673.07 2,836.61 2,079.14 482,21
Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - -

Undisputed Trade Recsivables- credit
impaired . - - 744.2% 58,78 -

Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered good - - - - . -
Disputed Trade Receivables-

Which have significunt

incrense in credit risk - - - - . .
Dispuled Trade Receivables-

credil impaired B - -

42,338.46

803.07

26,267.43  1h673.07 2,836.61 2,823.43 540,99 -

43,141,53

No leade or otlier receivables are due frot directors or other officers of the Group either severally ot jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivables are due from firns or private companies respectively in which any director Is & partner, direclor or & meniber,
Trade receivables nre non-inferest bearing andt are generally on terms of 13-90 days,

The Group's exposure to credil and currency risks and Joss atlowances refazed to trade receivables are discussed in note 44(C).

Cash and cash equivalents Azt
31 Murch 2024

Asat
1 Murch 2023

Cush on hand 645
Balances with banks

- iy cugrent acccunts® 11,049.47
-Balances with scheduted banks in deposit accounts with eriginal maturity of less 1,401.39
than three months

4,16

10,182,83
61507

12,457.31

10,802.06

*Currenl necount balances of Holding Company with banks include INR 180,76 lakhs (31 March 2023: INR 66.58 Inkhs) held at a foreign branch,

Short terin deposits nre fram varying periods of between ene day o three months, depending wpon the inmediate cash requirenents of the group, il enrn

interest al the respective shorl term deposit rales.

Bank balunces other than cash and cash equivalents Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Balances with scheduled banks in deposit accounts

- Original maturity of less than 12 months 25,128.10 10,026.25
- Unclnimed dividend account* 8.73 6,57
35.136.83 10,032.53

#[hese bulunces are no

P
i S

5 f
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Current Mnancial nssets - Loans Asgat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Louns 10 employees™ 11,73 7.00
11,73 7.60
+These are interest bearing lonns - repaynble within one year, chargeable o the rale of 12% p.a,
Curreat tinuncial assets - Others Asut As at

31 Murch 2024

31 Murch 2023

(unsecured considered goud, unless otherwlse stated)

Interest necrued on deposits 1,633.76 383.93
Isterest accrued but not due on government bonds 307.82 308,18
Derivatives assets 68,47 -
Security deposils 251,02 1545
Other receivable 120,31 .
Contract assets*
- oiber than related parties 7,288 42 7,949.95
Less: Provision for loss allowance {207.92) (22578
9,462.08 8,435.73

*Contract nssels (enbilled revenue) represents ameunts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing i accordance with contrael terms,

*Changes in contract assets (unbilled revenue} is as Tollows:

As al Ag at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 7,945.95 8,066,355
Less: Amnount of revenue billed during the year (5,803.90) (4,943.50)
Add: Addition during the year 5,142.37 4,8206,90
Balance ut the end of the year 7,288.42 7,949,935
Other current assels Asal As ot
31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Advances o vendors 103.43 88,83
Balances with governmenn authorities* 1,109,78 -
Deferred comtract cost 17585 221.56
Advance to employees 191.13 261,22
Prepaid expenses 1,097.10 942,85
Other current nssers 4,35 4.5¢
2,681.04 1,519.08

*Balances with government authoritles comprises of Goods and Service tax (GST) input credit . In previous year Le. 31 March 2023, GST input has been

netied off with GST linbifiles.
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16 C

16D

Equity shure capital

Authorised share cuplial

Equity shares of INR 10 each

Add: Equity share capital of INR 10 ench

0.01% Compulsory converlible preference shares of INR 10 each

Issued, subseribed and puid np

Eygutity shire capitad of INR 10 ench, fully puid up

Add: Issued during the year © Newien ESOP Trust before bonus issue
Add: Bonus shares issied during the year

Add: Issued during the yeur to Newgen ESOP ‘Frust alter bonus issue
Balance

Less : Shares held by Newgen ESOP Trusl

‘Tolal equity share capltal

Reconcibintion of shares outstandlug st the beghunlng aod at the end at the reportlng year.

Equity share eapitnl of INR 10 each, fully pald up

Al the beginning of the yeur

Adi: ssued during the yeas to Newgen ESOP 'Trust before buis issue
Add: Bonus shares issued during the yeur

Adds Issued during the year 1o Newgen ESOP Trust sfler bonus sue
At tbe ewt of the year

Less: Shures held by Newgen ESOP Trust

Tolnl equity share eaplial

Termns/rights nttnched to equity shares

As at 31 Mawgh 2024

As a1 31 March 2023

Number Number
of shures Amount of shares Amowil
$,80,00,200 9.800.02 9,80,(%3,200 9 830,02
7,01,00,00¢ 701680 - -
1,19,99 Bi}) L, 199,98 1,184,499, 800 1, 109.58
18, 05,00,008 18,010,400 1£,00,00,640 1100000
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Mareh 2023
Number Nuwber
ol shares Aanouig of shares Aangint
6,99,35,704 6,495.57 6,49,55,701 6,993.57
1,13,700 11.37 - -
7,00,6%,401 700694 - -
1,53.000 15.30 - -
14,02,91,802 14,029.18 6,99,53,701 6,995.57
5,12,483 51,25 3,00,025 30,00
13,97,79.0118 13,971,923 4,96,55,676 6,905,857

As at 31 Mareh 2024

As ul 31 Mureh 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
res of shares
6,49,55,701 6,993,57 6,99,54,701 6,993.57
1,13, 700 1137 - -
7,00,69,401 7.006.94 . .
1,53,000 15,30 - -
14,02,%1,802 14,029,18 6,94,58,701 6,995.57
5,12,483 51.25 3,00,025 3000
13,97,749,319 1387193 6,96,53,676 6,965,57

in case of equity shares, ench equity shureholder is eligible for ene vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Bourd of Directors is subject to the upproval of the shareholders in the

ensuing annuat generul meeting, excepl in case of interim dividend, if uny. In the event of liquidalion, the equity sharehol

distribution of all preferential umounts, in proportion W thelr respective shareholding.

Details of sharelwlders hatding more than 5% shares In the Growp
Equlty shares of INR 10 each, fubly puid up held by:

- Mr, Diwakar Nigam

- Mr, 1.8, Yarudurujun

- Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam

- Myrathun Edge India Fund 1

Detalls of shares held by promoters
Equity shares of INR 10 ench, Nully pald up held bys

As nt 31 March 2024

{ders s eligible to recelve the remuining assets of the Company aller

Asnt 3 March 2023

Number Number
i ) % Holding gfshares % Holding
3,13,49,464 241% 1,56,74,732 2241%
3,00,18,612 21.46% 1,50,0%,306 2146%
1,31,39,584 9.39% 65,69,7492 9.39%
77,053,278 5.49%% 38,52,639 5.51%

As nf 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number % of lotol shinves % chiange during Number %% of total shures
of sliares the year of shares
- My, Diwskir Nigam 3,13,49,464 22.41% 100.00% £,56,74,732 22.41%
- Mr. T.S. Vuradarajin 3,00,18,612 21 .46% 100,00% 1,50,09,306 21 46%
- Mrs, Priyadarshing Nigem 131,39,584 49.399% 140.00% 65,68,792 9.39%
- Mrs, Usha Vuradargjian 26,64,640 1.90% LO.00% 13,32,320 1.90%

Shares reserved Tor Issue under Employee stock eption plus and RSU Scheme

“Termy altached 10 stock options granted w employees wie deseribed in nute 34 regurding shire based payments,

Appregite number of shares issued tor consideration other than cash during the perivd of five years immediately preceding the regortng dite,

(i) Equity shaves huve been issued under Employee stock options phins o trust for which enly exercise price has been received in cash,

For the yenr ended  For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended

For the yeur ended

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023 31 dureh 2022 31 dlareh 2021 31 Mureh 2020
Equity shares of INR 10 euch 266,700 - - - 3,70,000
Bonuy shires of INR {0 each 2,460,193 - - - -
4,066,843 - - - 3,770,400
(if) Other thin ufurementivned, no shures has been atlotled by way of bonys issues and oo shares has been bought buck in the curent year and preceding 5 yeuws.
Otber eguliy Asal Asal
31 Marels 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Securities prenium 3717.69 10,397.44%
Retined ewnings 96,644.02 1498131
Cupitat redemplion reserve 87.U5 87.93
Capilat reserve 416349 416.59
General veserve 1,731.3v 1,731.39
Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 55329 540,35
Shwre oplivas vutstanding reserve 4,447,21 2,142,08
Foreign curency trushtion veserve 1,387.20 1,446.63
Other comprehensive loss (811.76) (430,27}
1,18,373.58 91,287.52
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Notes to the cunsoildnted fnpnclal stutements for the yenr ended 31 March 2024
CAN ammtoims are i lakhs of fudian Rupees, snfess utherwvise stuied)

Asul Asal
Securities premium (refer note (i) below) 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Bulunce us ut beginning of the yeur 18,608, 3 184,525.20
Securilies premium on lsue of shares 10 Newgen ESOP Trust 484,41 -
Transterred from shere options outstanding reserve an exercise of stock optivns 132,79 8005
Balance us aend of the year 11,222,581 10,605,314
Less: Securities preniium on shares held by Newgen ESOP Trust 4U7.84 207.82
Less; Securilies premium on issue of bonus shires 7,006,494 -
Balunce us al end of the yewr 371169 10,397.49
As at Asal
Retoined enrnlugs (vefer note (i) beluw) 31 Mareh 2024 31 hlureh 2023
Balunce s ut beginning of the yew T4,0%1,31 6,428.47
Prolit tor (he year 25,160.50 17,704,15
Prividend en equity shives (3,491.79) (3,148.01)
Bulunee us utend ol the year 96,644.02 74,981,31
Asat As nt
Capital redemption veserve 31 Mareh 2024 M March 2023
Bulunve as at beglining of the yewr 8795 B7.95
Balunce s al end of the yeur #7.95 87,95
Asal Asnt
CGeneral reserve 31 March 2024 a1 March 2023
Bulance as ut beginning of the yeur 1,731.39 1,731.39
Balunce as ut end of the year 1,731,324 1,731.39
Asat Asat
Capitnd reserve (refer nete (Vi) below) 31 Muareh 2024 31 March 2023
Balunee us ot beginning of the yeur 416.5% 416,59
Bulunce as at end of e yew 416.59 416,59
Newgen ESOP ‘Trust reserve (refer note (i) below) Asat Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balince us al beginning of the year 540,35 31171
Additlon to Newgen ESOP Trust reserve 1294 28,64
Bulunce as at end of the year 553,29 540,38
Share options outstanding reserve (refer note (v} below) Asal Asul
31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Bulunice us at beginning of the year 2,342.08 762.77
Employee stock compensation expense 2,437.92 1,463.91
Transferved to securilies premiun uceount on exercise of stock options (132,74) (84.60}
Balunce s at end of the year 4,447.21 2,142,08
Otler comprehensive luss (refer note (v} below)
Asat Asal
Iemensurement of defined benefit Hability 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bulance us it beginning of the yeur {244.01) (235.42)
Other comprehensive loss (et of Wix) (303,96) (8.59)
Buhunce us ut end of the year (347.97) (244.01)
Finacial sssets ot lnvestments carrled at fale value through other comprelsensive lueonie As at Asat
31 Muorch 2024 31 Marcls 2023
Bulince us ut beginning of the yeur (212.26) 341
Otler comprehensive loss (et of lax) (51.53) (216,07
Bulunce as at end of the year (263,79) (212.26)
As al Asm|
Forelgn vurrency translatlon reserve {refur note {vi) below) 3 Mawel 2024 31 Murel 2023
Bulunce us 2t beginning of the yeur 1,446.63 T
Other comprehensive income (nel ol ) 141,57 745.53
Bulance #5 it end of e yeur 1,587,240 1,446,63

(i) Securities premium is used 1o recerd he premium seceived on issue of shases, Tt will be wiilised in uccorhince with the provisions ol the Compianies Act, 2013,

(i) Retained eamings represents accumuluted bultnces of profils over the years afler appropriutions fur general reserves and adjustments of dividend.

(jiy Newgzen ESOP Trust has been treuted 48 un extension of the Group ind aecordingly shives held by Newyen ESOP “Trust are netled off fron: the total share capital, Consequent!y, wll the
assets, liubilities, income snd expenses of the rustare aecounted for us nssets and labilities of the Company, except fur profit / oss on issue of shares & the employees und dividend received

by trust which are directly adjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve.
(iv} The Group has established various equity-settled share-used puyment plans for certain employees of the Company, Refer o note 34 for further details on these plans.

(v) Refer Statenient of Changes in Equity for anulysis uf other comprehensive income, net of s,

(vi) Foreign currency transhition reserve comprises of il exchunge ditferences arising from trapslation of Tinancial statements of foreign subsidiaries inlo funetionl and presentational
currency.

{vii) Capitul reserve created on uccount of nerger of Number Theory Soltware Private 1imited ("Number Theary").
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18 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars

Category of ROU asset

Leasehold land Buildings Fotal
Balance as at 1 April 2023 3,247.88 3,135.76 6,383.64
Addition - 1,772.18 1,772.18
Translation exchange difference - 4,02 4,02
Depreciation {39.40) (1,057.00) (1,096.40})
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3,208.48 3,854.96 7,063.44
Changes in the carrying yalue of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Catepory of ROU asset Total
Leasehold land Buildings
Balance as at 1 April 2022 3,287.18 1,537.79 4,824.97
Addition - 2,494,02 2,494,02
Translation exchange difference - 36,73 36,73
Depreciation (39,30} (932.78) (972.08)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,247.88 3,13576 6,383.04

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.(refer note 30)

Lease liabilities
Break up of current and non-current lease liabilities:
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current lease liabilities 3.464,28 2,841.82
Current lease liabilities 1,166.55 1,005.93
Total 4,630.83 3,847.75
Movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2024

Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024
Balance as at I April 2023 3,847.75
Addition 1,700,22
Finance cost 305.29
Translation exchange difference 5.83
Payment of lease liabilities (1,228.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,630.83
Movement in Jease Habilities during the year ended 31 March 2023

Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,163.61
Addition 2,466.11
Finance cost 301.17
Translation exchange difference 12,12
Payment of lease fiabilities (1,095.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,847,758

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard 10 its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligalions related to lease

liabilities as and when they fall due,

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was INR 338,95 takhs for the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 291.96 lakhs)

For detail regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of lease liabilities. (refer note 4 1(C)(1iD))
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Borrowings Asul As al
31 Marel 2024 31 March 2023
Nen Curvent Borrowlngs
~Deferred payment Habililiss - 22005
- 22003

Current Borvowlogs
Currenl maturities of deterved paynwent linbilities zl992 203,50

214,92 203,30

Reconifintion between the opening und closing bulnnees in the butance sheet for Habilitles arislig from fucing sctivities

Namie of the entlt Bulanee as al lnterest Loun Other nun eush Bulurnce ng al
¥ 31 Morch 2023 Acerwed repHyments chinnges 31 March 2024
E}."sl\"dhllc shutehulders of Number Theory Sultwine Private 43155 3061 (23424) A 219,92
Limited
423,58 3061 (234.24) - 219,92

1) Includes balance payable t erstwhile shareholders of Number Theury Suftware Private Limited
(b} Deterred paymen: liubility is discounted at the rute of 8%. Per unnuns,
(c) The liabilily is payable in e equat annuut instalment of Rs. 234.24 fukbs. The repayment of instalment hus conznenced from Junwey, 2023

Non-current provisions Asal
31 Mawch 2024

Asal
31 March 2023

Prevision for employee benefits (refer nole 28)

- provision for gratuity 3,729.50 2,681,286
- provision lur cumpensuted ubsences L 143,57 824,13
4,473.07 3,505.39
Tratte payables Asat Asat
: 3
- Totul outstanding duss to micre enterprises and small enterprises 632,13 58,38
- Totl vuistanding dues t creditors other thun micra and smudl enterprises 4,129.40 3,430,300
4,761.53 3,488.68
Trende payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 Moreh 2024
Quistandlng for followlng perivds frem due dude of payment
Euss than 1.2 Years 23 Yenars  More Than Unibsllhest Foutal
1 vear 3 yeurs piyuble
Tolg! outstunding dues of Micro enterprises and small
enterprises 632,13 - - - - 632,13
Total vutstanding dues of creditors other thun Micro
enterprises wd smull entecprises 79.26 } : R 3,.250.14 4.129.40
Disputed Dues of Micro enterprises und small enterprives - B R R . R
Disputed Dues of creditors other than Micre enterprises and
snnall enterprises N . . L. _ _
1,511.39 - - . 3,250,14 4,761,853
As al 3 Mareh 2023
Quistanding Tor fullowing perlods from due date of payment
Partleulars Less than 1-2 Yeurs 2-3 Years  More Than Unbilied Total
1 years 3 years payable
“Total cutstanding dues ef Micro enterprises und small
enterprises 58.38 . - - - 58,38
Total culstanding dues of ereditors other thin Micro
enterprises and siudl enterprises 1,544,149 . ; _ 846,11 3,430,30
Disputed Dues of Micre enterprises und small enterprises A A A . B i
Brisplied Dues ol creditors uther thin Miere enterprises und
smill enterprises - - - - - -
1,002,857 - - - 1 886,11 3,488,608
Trade payables we non-interest bearing nnd are penerudly ol lerms of 30-45 days.
a} Refer note 36 Tor disctosures under Micro, Smudl and Medium Enterprises Develupment Act, 2006 (MSMED).
b) The Group's exposure w liquidity risk vnd cumency risks related to e puyables is disclosed in note 41(CYiil) & 41(CYv).
Currenl luanelul ablities - Otlers Asal Asul
31 Marel 2024 ) Much 2023
Einpluyee reluted payables 5,U05.78 3,767.35
Derivatives Habililies - 187.4%
Burmest meney deposils 1OG 100
Puyable for cupital ussets” M9.15 32,72
Unpiid dividends® 4.73 6.57
5,334,660 3,945,123

# Reler note 36 for amount payable o Micro, Suall and Medium Enterprizes, It includes payable inn respect of retention money amounting to INR 1378 lukhs (31 March 2023

INR 31.50 lakhs),
*Unpaid dividends stmougt.is W|e for depuosit o the Investor Educution & Protection fund,

g, £ 'E'\.',‘a‘
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23 Deferred lnconse Asul Asul
31 Muveh 2034, 3 Maeeh 2023
Unewmed revenue 20,513.58 16,803,494
20,511,858 16,803.94
*Changes in uneamed revenue is as folluws:
Asnt Asnt
" ! YU
Balance af the beginning of {be yeur 1630394 12,597.37
Revenue recognised thit was included In deterred income st the begianing of the yewr . (16,802,16) (12,766.57}
Increise due te invuicing during the yeur, exeluding amount recagnised as revenue during the yeur 20,464,10 16,768.55
Foreipgn Currency Transluion Reserve 43,70 204.59
Bulance ut the end of the year 20,513.54 16,803.94
24 Other cwrrent Habllties Asat Asut
3 'y 31 M k]
Sttutory dues payable*® 328293 {,636.65
Advance from employees tor shive options 1.%3 0,19
Other curvent linbilities 0.50 0.75
3,285,26 1,637.59
£Stututory dues paysble includes GST puyable, In previous yeuwr Le. 31 March 2023, GST input has been nelted olf with GST puyable.
25 Curreit provisions Asut Asat
M March2024 M March 2023
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 28}
- provision for gratuity 659,22 6Y7.84
- provisien for compensated ubsences 256.54 248,05
918,76 946,89
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Revenue from operutions Foy the year ended

31 March 2024

For the yeur ended
31 dlareh 2023

Sute of products - suftwares 22,213.05 17,872.10
Suke ol services
- Implementation 25,825.00 13,390.31
- Seanning und Burdwue 1,363.23 683 .44
- AMC/ATS 24,899,39 2229672
- Suppuit 37,270.46 27,176.53
- SuuS revenue 1281133 U.976.78
1,24,342.86 97,397,488

Performance obligathons snd remnining perfurnance obligutions

The ternaining perfontuee chligiion disclosure provides the appregule umount of the transmwtion price yel to be recognised us it the end of the reporting period wd an
explanution as to when the Gruup expects to recagnise these mnounts it revenue, Applying the practical sxpedient us ghven in Ind AS 115, the Group huy 5ol disclosed the
remuining performance obligutivn 1ciuted diselosures for contruets wiere |

fi) The perfonnunce ubligution is part of a contit thut hus an origioal expecied duzation of ose yeur o less.

1) Fhe revenie recogrised vomresponds directly with the value t the vustomes of the entity's perfurmance compleled to dute, typically those contas where invoicing ison
time and material basis,

Remaining perfomanee obligution estimutes ure subject to change snd ure uffected by severl Lictors, including terminations, chunges I the scepe uf contiuets, perivdic
revalidutions, udjustment for revenue that hus not muterialised und wjnsiments for currency.

The sparepute volue of perlormunce obligutlons thut e complelely or portially unsutistied us wt 31 Mureh 2024, uther than those meeting the caelusion eriterin mentioned

ubove is INR Nil (31 Murch 2023 INR Nil).

Other tncome

Iterest invome under the effective inlerest rute melhod;

For the yeur ended
31 Mureh 2024

For the year ended
31 Murel 2023

- on security Jeposits ub amoRised cost 3096 2530
~ government umd olher bonds at FYOCI 426,00 426,87
Interest income un deposit with banks 2,147,635 1,626.403
Guinon sale of propenty, plunt and equipment 13.35 -

Protit on sule of mutual Binds (nety at FYTPL 25404 151,30
Fuir value chunges of finuncind ussets wl FYTPL 1,254.54 87,24
Linbilities £ provision no lenger reyuired written buck 120,68 1,058.74
Net fureian exchinge Nuctustion pain 359,04 -

Miscelluneous incene 94,27 13.04

4,806,43 3,398.57

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 Mureh 2024

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023

Suluries, woges wil honus 56,463.30 47,09874
Contribution 1o provident funds (reter note i below} £,61857 1,327.25
Expenses reluted to compensated ubsences (refer note ii below) 739.53 553.34
Shure bused payment - equily settled 2,395.12 1,452.83
Expense reluted to defined benefit plan {refer note i below) FEYALH 618,02
Stalf welfure expenses 857.81 539.70

62,831.43 51,589,921

(i) Defined coutrdbation plans:

The Group makes contributions, determined us o speellied percentuge of the employee sularies in rspect of qualitying employees towurds provident fund, which is u defined
cuntribution plan. The umount recopnised us an expense wwands contributivn o provident fand for the yeur ugpreguted tw INR 1,618.57 lakhs (31 Murch 2023; INR 1,327.25
lukhs}. The nmount recogaised s wn expense lowards eniployer stute insurance sggregated 1w INR 010 Jukhs (31 Maceh 2023: INR U.09 lukhs),

1) Compensated absences:
The Prineipal ussumptions used in determining the compensuted ubsenees benelit obligution are ws given below:

34 Murch 2024
4,856 - 7.22%
5.00% -8.00%

31 March 2023
4.85% - 7.30%
5.00% -7 00%

Discounting rue (p.u.)
Futuze sulury jnereuse { p.u)
Altrition Rute (withdrawat rate %)

Up Lo 30 yeurs 2000% 24.0%
From 31 to 44 yeurs 200% 27AK%
Abuve 4d yeurs 10K 14.00%

ity Defpedt Benelit Plan:
Gratuily scheme - This §s wn untunded detined benehit plan und it entitles an employee, who hus rendered utlenst 5 yews of vontinoous sexvive, to receive one-hult month's
sulury for eueh yeur of completed service al the time of rellrement/exit.

13 On normad retite me nt f eurly miinzment £ withdrawal f resignation: As per Lhe provisions of the Fayment of Gratuity Act, 1972 wilh vesting period of § yewrs of servive,

i) On deuth in service: As per the provisiuns of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without uny vesling perivd.

Grutuity puyable to employee in cuse (i) umd (i), as mentioned shave, is computed as per the Paynient of Grutuily Act, 1972 except the Group dues nut have sy limsit on
pratully amoun.

(i) Lefined Beuetit Phu-Dubal ottice; )

The pratuity benefil payuble in the cnse of terminaion, retirement, vr deuth is 21 duys’ Seheme Snlury tor cueh of the first tive yeurs of servive and 3 duys” Scheme Sulury for
euch yeur therentier, Purtinl yeurs count lowards u period of servive, This benetit is puyable unly uller completing one yeur of servive, In the cuse of the resigntion of un
amployee, hedshe is entitled o the Tollowing benetit;

Nuinber uf Yenr's Servley Fruction of Full Beyelits
Less than 1 yeur Nil

Between | yeur uid 3 years O Lhind

Between 3 yeurs and $ years T rinds

Above S yeurs Full

Nu grutuily benefils ue payuble lpgl‘Q};{l;ﬂwu
Newgen. The Scheme is untlygdadt e

-




Newgen Soliware Technologles Limited

Notes to the consolldlated financinl statements for the yenr ended 31 Marel 2024

(Al amounts are in lakhs of indian Rupees, unfess otherwise skited}

A, Movement in net defined beredit (asset) Hubility

The following tuble shows a reconcilintion from the opening balunces o the elosing bulusces for net detfined benefit (usset)f tubility und its components.

Particulurs

Bafance at the beghsning of the year

Bene s puid

Current service Lost

Interest cosl

Reversut o upening provision of NTSPL

Actuariul fosses f (gaing) recognised in OCH
chunge in demographic assunsplions
vhunge in finunciol nssumptions
eaperience udjustinents

Baulioee pt the end of e year

B, iy Expense recoguised lu profit nad loss

Partlenings

Current servive cosl

Interest cost

Revers of opening provision of Number Theory

Fotnt expense recognised in Statement of profit pud luss

11} Remensureiments recogilsed by other comprehiensive incomse

Particulnrs

Actuurial loss on defined benellt abligation

"Total reneasureenents cecognised i uther comprebensive Income

€, Defined beneftt obligations
L, Actunrinl assumptivns

The following were the principal actuurinl ussumptlons ot the reporting dute!

Discount rate
Sulary escalalion rate
Mortality rule

Atlrition Rute (withdrawnl rate$s)
Up to 30 years

From 34 to 44 yeurs

Abuve 44 yeurs

11, Sensltvity nnalysis

Asnt Asal
3t Mureh 2024 31 darch 2023
337000 309368
(214.70) (367.27
547.54 428,74
237488 2175
(28.32) -
47,33 (7.46)
1490.67 (109.02)
229,22 129.68
4,348,72 3940

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the yenr emtbed
31 Moreh 2023

547.54 43874
237.88 204,75
(28.32) 2147
757,10 S18.42

Fur the year ended
31 durch 2024

For the yenr ended
31 dlurely 2023

467,22 13.20
467,22 13,24
For the year eixled For the year ended

31 Morels 2424
5.25% - 7.22%
5.00% -8,.00%
100% of [ALM
(2012- i4)

20.00%
20,00%
10.00%

31 davch 2023
4.85% - 7.36%
5.00% -7.00%
140% of IALM
(2012- 14)

24,00%
27.00%
14.00%

Reasartably possible chunges ot the reporting date to ene of the relevunt setariul ussumptivns, holding other ussimiptions constant, would have affected the defined benelit

wbligutivn by the amounts shown below.

Discount tate (0.50% movement)
Future salnry growth {0.30% muvement)

Sensitivities due (v mortelity & withdrawals ure not materivt & hence impact of chunge not culewlated,

31 Mluwch 2023

Increase

Decrense

(78.12)
4,17

§4.89
(78.4%)

Sensitivitles a2 w rute of inflution, 1ate of Jncreuse of peasions in puyment, rale of increuse of pensivns before retirement und life expectancy wre not upplicable being a lump

suim benetit vn retirement.

Although the anetysis does not tuke secount of the full disteibution of cash flows expected umder the plun, it dues provide un upproximation of the sensitivily o the

assumptivns shown.

Bused on the netyarind valualion obluinesd in this respect, the Tullowing table sets out the status of the gratuity plin wd the smewnls revognised in Ihe Group's Bnnaciul

stutenments us ol bulanee sheet dute:

iil, Mutorlty profile of defined benefit obil gatiow: Asat Asut

31 Muwels 2024 31 Aarch 2023
Within the next 12 months { next snnttal reporting period ) Gl .12 693,84
Between 2 and 5 years 1,805,57 1,522.86
Beyond 5 yews 1,988,94 1,278.20

Ned defined benefil Hability
Linhility for gratuity

Linbility for compeasnted shsences
Total employee beneiht liabititdes

Nui-current:

Gratuily

Compensited ebsences
Curvent:

Gratuily

Compensated uhsences

29 Flunnee costs
Finunve cost vn lewse Hubilities

Interest ¢ xpense i borrowings
Other linume costs

M

Depreclativn nad amortisatlon

Depreciution ol praperty, plant und equipment {refer note 4)
Deprecintion of (ol use ussels (refer note 18)

31 Marel 2024

31 gl 2023

4,388.72 337800
1,400.11 1073.18
5,788 83 4,452,28
3,72¢.50 2,681.26
1,143,57 $24.13

63922 69784

256,54 24005

For the yeur ended
31 Narch 2024

For the yenr ended
31 Mareh 223

5.2y 30117
0.6} 308
8224 §4.85

414,18 425.1¢

For the yenr eoded
31 Myrels 2024

For the yene embed
A1 Abarel 2023

1,335.27 1,142.62
§,000.40 972.08

303,10 352.44
2,196,497 _Eylﬁ'?.H




Newgen Svftware Technologles Llmited

Notes 1o the consellduted Gnanclal statements for the year ended 3§ March 2024

(AN amoumts are in lakhs of udion Rupees, uniess oterwise stated)

2|

Other expenses

Rent

Repuizs and mnintenunce

Rutes wind tuxes

Traveling und conveyance

Legul und prolessioanl fees

Puyment to mulitors*

Dutsoirved eehinivel servives expense
Cloud hosling servives

Electiivity and water

Advertising und sules promotion
Membership and subseription fee
Brokerage and commission
Contmunivation vosis

Software uad license muintenuwe
Expeaditure on corporute sovial iesponsibility (refer note 37)
Donativn

Recruitment vhurges

Insurunce

Operutlon und muintenunee

Printing, stitivnery und scanning chicges
Sub - conlruacting expeiises

Loss on sule of property, plunt und equipment
Luss allowunce un trade receivables

Lass stlowance on lrade receivables invludes loss sllownnve eresled on contraet ussels smounting Lo {INR 13.06 lukhs)

(33 Murch 2023 INR 47.61 lukhs)),
Security vharges

Nel fereign ¢xchange Huctuation loss
Misceluneots expenses

*Paynient (o auditors

As puditor;

- Stututary audit fee

- Limited review lee

- Certification fee

- Reimbursement of expenses

B

For the yenr ended
31 Maveh 2024

For the year ended
3t Mavch 2023

33893 39196
561,78 461.03
1,004.36 72249
6,098.12 426487
6,902.12 4,635.34
68.17 9.5
878,31 280,54
2,457,36 193297
43285 405.45
1,501.99 1.380.17
545,15 51391
1,560.08 120404
423,85 0,14
1,663.81 1 438,08
37891 29345
M5 1488
402,06 55132
1975.63 197514
577.82 467.90
3829 450,14
494.51 -
B 0,54
3,263.94 2,000,40
250,58 230.64
- 263,73
29622 295,62
273042 74,566.23
37.00 3700
2000 2140
732 8.66
2.85 2.69
68,17 69.35




Newpen Software Teehnotopies Limited
Notes o the consolidated Fnancinl stutements for (e year ended 31 March 2024

FAN umonnis are in fokhs of Iedicn Rupees, iless othervise stated)

32

locome Tax

A, The major companenls of income fax lncome recoguised in Statement of Profit or Loss

Tax expense
Deferred tax credil
Totnd

Recognised in Other comprehensive income
Tax impact on
- Re-mensurement on defined benefit plan

- Financiat ussels or investments carcied ot fair value through other comprehensive income

Totul

B, Reconcillutlon of ¢ffective {ax rate

For the year ended  For the yeur ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5,953.49 4,276,98
(691 .50) (250.08)
5.261.99 4,026.90
163,26 4.61
13.65 65.63
1781 70.24

31 March 2024

31 Murch 2023

Profit belore lax 30,422.49 21,728.04
Tax using the Group's tax rale 34.94% 10,630,84 34 944 7,592.65
[impact of different rate in each jurisdiction (G.44%) (334.01) (G 17%) (35.96)
Effect of deduction under seetion 10AA of the fncowme lax Act, 1961 (15.94%) (4,849.61) (17.72%) (3,850.0M)
Effect of expenses permunently disatiowed under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 0.65% 197.58 0.63% 137.33
Elfect of income exemply non taxable/ taxed on lower rale (0.60%) (182.58) (0.84%) (181.87)
Effect of profit oo redemption of muual funds 0.00% - 0.00% -
Tux expense for earlier yenrs (0.54%) (165,66) 0.94% 205,05
Others (0.77%) (234.57) 0.74% 159.77
[ncome tax recognised in stanjentent of profit and loss for the current year 17.30% 5,261,494 18.52% 4,026,%0
C. Deferved tax asset /(llabilitdes) nnd movement I temporury dilterences

31 Muarch 2024

Balunce as ut Transfation Recopnlsed in Recugnised in OC Balunee as at

Purtleulirs 1 April 2023 cx.clumge Stntement of Protit or | during the year 31 Murch 2024

difference Luss during the year

Deferved tax Habilitles {net}

Property, plant and equipment 11,76 - (31.76) - -
‘Fotal 11,76 - (11.76) - -
Deferred tax assels {net)

Investments at fuir value through OCl 69.41 - - 15.65 85.06
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabitity (asset) 130,11 - - 163.26 293,97
Property, plant and equipment (1,345,41) (0.18) (142.74) - (1,488.33)
Loss allowance on other financial assets 57,87 - - - 51,57
Loss allowance on trade receivables 1,222.50 168 9.68 - 1,233.86
Provision for employee benefits 1,423.61 {0.21) 416.36 - 1,839.76
Lease Habitities 28.57 - 17.08 - 45,65
MAT credit emtitlement 630.59 - 699.66 - 1,333.25
DisgHowanee o1 account of delayed payment to MSME 125.15 " 125.15
Vendor - -

Others {230.92) - (445 45) - (676.37)
Totul 1,986.63 1.2% 679.74 178.491 2,846.57
31 Murch 2023
Purticuturs Balanee us at Translation Recogalsed In Recognised tn OCI Balance ns ot
1 April 2022 exchunge Statement of Profit or | during the year 31 Mureh 2023
differenee Loss during the year

Deferred tnx labilitles (net)

Property, plant and equipment 12,41 0.55 (1.20) - 11,76
Tolal 12,41 0.55 (1.20) - 11,76
Deferred {ax assets (net}

Investments a fair value through OCI 3.78 - - 65.63 69,41
Remensurement of defited benefit Jinbility {asset) 126,10 - - 4,61 130,71
Property, plant and equipment (996.76) (3.00) (344.73) - (1,345.41)
Loss allowance on other foancedal assets 57.57 - - - 57.57
Loss atlowance on tradke recaivables 1,175.23 140 3987 - §,222,50
Provision for employee benefits 1,268.64 0.76 145,21 - 1,423.61
Lense liabilities 7.87 - 20010 - 28.57
MAT credit entitlentent 215,95 - 414.64 - 630,59
Cthers (204.13) - (26,193 - (230.92}
Tutn] 1,654.25 13,26 248.58 7024 L8663
. Deferred tax labilities (gross) As it As

31 Murch 2024 31 Marel 2023

Praperty, planl and equipment - 11.76
Deterred tax Habilitkes (net) ~ 11.76




Newgen Software Technologles Limited
Notes to the consolldated financly statements lor the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al comonnts are in lakhys of Indien Rupees, wiless otherwise stated)
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Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts ure cukeulated by dividing the profit for the yeur altributable (a equity holders of the Group by the weighted avernge number of equity shares

outstanding during the year,

Dituted EPS amounts ure caleuluted by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of equily shares cutstunding
during the year plus the weighled average number of Bquity shares ihat would be issued on conversion of alf the dilwive polential equity shares into equity shares,

i, Profit nttributable to Equity hotders of the Group

Profit atlributable to equity holders of the Group

Profit atiributuble to equity holders of the Company for basic and diluted earnings

il. Weighted nvernge number of ordinary shures

Opening balance of equity's shares

Effect of share options exercised

Addition of Bonus shares issued (net of bonus shares issued L0 trust)

Welghted nverage number of shares for basic EPS

Lffect of dilution:

Add: Weiglted average number of polentint equily shares on account of emplayees stock
options

Welghted avernge number of shures for dituted EPS

Basic and diluted cornings per share®

Rasic earnlngs per share
Diluted earulngs per share

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the year ended
31 Murch 2023

25,160,50

1770115

25,160.50

17,701.15

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
€,96,55,676 6,95,40,191
1,00,308 72,128
6,98,60,208 -
13,96,25,192 6,96,12,319
41,28,440 8,87,921
14,37,53,632 7.0580,240

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the yenr ended
31 March 2023

INR INR
18,02 12,71
17.50 12,53

# Basic and dijuted enrning per shaze for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been adjusted with boaus issue impact of 114




Newgen Software Techinolugies Llmlted
Notes (o the conselidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amownis e In ks of Indian Rupees, wiless otltenwise stated)

34 Shnre-bused g ysient arepagentents:
A, Deseription of slare-bused poyinent artinigenseis .
I Slinre option progruunies (equity-settted)

‘Tie Group established Newgen Employees Stock Optivn Scheme 2014 {Newgen ESOP 2014) in the yeur 2014-15, udministered through o new Trust ‘Mewgen ESOP Trwt', The nuuximum
nurabers of shares W be issued under this Sehente shull be limited (o 3,743,800 wquity shures of the Group. Pussuant o the scheme, during the yeur 2004-15, the Group hus grunted 3,053,525
optiuns ut an exervise prive of INR 63 per option, to the employees of the Group. Further, during the year 2017-18 prant of uptions 353,000, 136,000, wid 79,250 thiough gount 3, Hlund 1V
o 4 Jul 2017, § Sep 2007 and | Out 2047 respectively under the sume scheme und with sume vesting conditions was mude. During the year 2020-21, the Group hus granted 233,000
options through grant V under Newgen ESOP 2014 on 25 Mueeh 2021, During the yew 202223, the Group has grunted 20,800 options through grant Viunder Newjen ESOP 2014 oa 17
Junuary 2023, Dining the yeur 2023-24, the Group has grunted 5,000 uptions throlgh granl VIL under Mewgen ESOP 2014 on 2 May 2023, Under the terms of the plins, these uplivns ure
vested on u prided vesting basis vver w matimum peried of four years from the ute of grunt und ase to be exervised cither in puat{sp or full, within n moxinwm period of tive yeurs trom the
dte ol last vesting, Conseauent 1o bonus issue in the mtio of 131, alt the cutstanding options und excercise prive belore the reeond dule of 12 Junuary 2024 have been udjusted 1o vonsider the
bunts issue impuet.

During (he yeur 2020-21, the Growp hus estublished Newgen Suftwure Technofogies Restricted Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newygen RSU - 2021), slministered through o new tust
“Newgen RSU Trost" “The muximum numbers of shures o he issued umder this Scheme shull be Timited 1o 14,00,000 cquity shares of the Group. During the your 2021-22, the Group has
wrunted 12,101,500 and 1,73,500 uptions through grant | wod 8 respectively under this scheme b an exercise price of INR 10 per option, to the employees of the Group, Puring the year 2022-
23, the Group hus granted 35080 options theough grant [ ueder this seheme i an exercise prive of INR 10 per option, Lo the employees of the Group, Usider the terms of the schene, these
options ure vested vn a graded vesting busls over o maximum period of five years from the dule of grant und ure to be exercised either in purt(s} or full, within u muzinum period o five years
from the date of lust vesting.Duzing the yeur 2023-24, the Group hus grunted 13,000 and 20,000 oplions through grunt 1V and ¥ respectively under this scheme ul un exervise prive of INR 10
per option, to the employees of the Group. Under the terms of the scheme, these options ure vested un u gruded vesting busis over n musimum period of five yeurs from the dute of grant und
ure ta be exercised either In part(s) or full, within u maximum period of five yeurs from the dute of lust vesting, Conseyuent lo honus issue i the Tativ of 1:1, ult the outstunding options before
the revord date of 12 Junuery 2024 huve been adjusted 1o consider the bonus issue impust,

Driring the yeuwr 2022-23, the Group hus esteblished Newgen Employee Stovk Option Scheme — 2022 (Newgen ESOP ~ 2022}, udministered thiough a frst "Newgen ESOP Trust” The
muximn numbers of shures to be issued under this Scheme shulk be fimiled 10 14,00000 cquity shares of the Group. During the yeur 2022-23, the Group hus groited 9,401,800 options
through geant | under this scheme ot an exercise prive of INR 364.20 pes option, to the employecs of the Group, Usder the terms of the scheme, these options are vested on u griled vesting
busis vver o muximum period of four years from  the dute of grant und e to be exercised either in part(s) or fall, within o maximum period of five yews from the dute of vesting, During the
yeur 2023-24, the group has grunted 1,58,750, 68150 und 3,86,500 uptions thraugh geant I, 11 snd TV on 2 May 2023, 19 July 2023 and 20 Muarch 2024 under this scheme ut an excescise
price of INR 452, INR 615 und INR 640,10 per uption, v the employees of the Gompuny, Under the terms of the scheme, (hese aptions ure vested on a graded vesting busis over u muximum
period of four yeurs [fom the date of grunl und nre to be exercised either f pust(s) e full, within o maximum period of five yeurs trom the date of vesting. Consequent lo bunus issue in the
ratio uf 111, e the ontstinding optivns wnd exvervise prives befose the record dute of 12 Junuury 2024 huve been udjusted o consider the bonus issue impuct,

Purdiculurs Newgen BSOP 2014 Newgen RSU ~ 2021 Newgen ESOP 2022
Muximum number of shiuzes under the plun 37,583,800 14,600,080 14,086,000
Methul of settlesmem (cushlequily) Fyuily Cush/ Eyuity Exquity
Vesting perivd {muxinmum) 4 yeurs 5 yenrs 4 yenrs

1 yeur - H0% ut the end of 3nd yeur - S0% | yeur - 1U%

2 yeur - 20% ut the end of Sth yeur - SU% 2 year - 20%

3 yeur- % 3 yeur- 30%

4 yeur-4U% 4 year-40%
Exereise perivd from the dute ol vesting (muxinum} 5 yeur from fus) vesting 5 yeur from fust vesting § yeur Izem vesting dute
VYasting comlitions Servive pariol Service period & Performunce bused Servive perivl

Newyen ESOP trust has been treated as un extension of the Group and seeordingly shares held by Newygen ESOP Trust are netled oft from the tolut shure cagitul. Consequently, ull the ussels,
liubilities, Invome wnd expenses ol the tust are neesunted for as assets und livbilities of the Group, exvept Tor protit / loss on issue of shares to the empluyees und Jividend recelived by tust
which ure direetly udjusted in the Newgen ESOP Trust reserve,

Folloning table represeats general terms of Uie grants for the ESOP oulstaiding ps on 31 March 2024,

ESOP schemes Grant Date Nu. of Optlons Exercise Price Weighted average | Vesting Perlod
Ouistnuding remulndng Jife

Newyen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) i-Jun-2015 - INR 31.50 - 4 yeurs

Newgen Employees Stovk Opliei Scheme 2014 (Newgen BSOP 2014) 1-3ul-2017 83,080 INR 31.50 225 4 yeury

Newpen Employees Stovk Dptive Seheme 2014 (Newyen ESOF 2014) 1-Sep-2017 85,600 INR 31.50 2,42 4 yeurs

Newgpen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newpeu ESOP 2014) 1-0u1-2017 12,200 INR 31.50) 2.50 4 yeurs

Newgen Employees Stock Optiun Seheme 2614 (Mewpen ESOP 2014) 23-Mur-2021 204,608 INR 31.50 5.98 4 yeurs

Newgen Employees Stock Optiun Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 19-Jun-2023 29,700 INR 31,50 7.80 4 yenrs

Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) 3-Muy-2023 10460 INR 31,50 R.0% 4 yeurs

Newgen Employees Stoek Optlon Scheme 2022 (Newpen ESOP 2003, 17-Jan-2023 16,19,527 INR 182,10 6,80 4 yeurs

Newgen Employees Sek Option Scheme 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022} 2-May-2023 273,600 INR 226.00 7.09 & yeurs

Newsen Bmployees Slock Optivn Scheme 2022 (Newyen ESOP 2022} 19-Jul-2023 1,26,300 INR 307.50 7.30 4 years

Newsen Bployees Stuck Option Selieme 2022 (Newpen ESOP 2022) 20-Mar-2024 3,86,51X) INR 640.10 7.97 4 years

Folluwing tnble represeis generad teciss of the prams fur the RSU outstingliug as on 31 Mapel 2024,

ESOP schemes Greant Date Ne, o Optiens Exercise Prive Welghted nvernge | Vesting Pectod
Quistanding remainkog lite

Newgen Sultwure Technotogies Restricted Stock Units Svheme — 2021 {Newgen 23-Dec-2021 22,89,000 INR 1300 173 5 yeurs

RSU — 243213

Newyen Sultware Technologies Restrivted Stock Units Schenue — 2021 (Newgen 2-Min-2622 2,231,000 INR {0.00 7492 5 yeurs

RSU 2031}

Newgen Sottwere Technotogies Restricted Stock Units Scheme - 2021 (Newgen 18-0u1-2022 0000 INR 10.00 8.55 5 years

RSU - 2021}

Newgen Sotiwure Technotogies Restrivied Stock Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen 2-Muy-2023 20000 iNR 1000 9.409 § yeurs

RSU -2021;

Newgen Soltwere Technolagies Restrivied Stovk Units Scheme — 2021 (Newgen 19-Jul-2023 40,000 INR 10,00 9.30 5 yeurs

R3U-2021)




Newgen Seftware Technologles Limited
Noles to the consolitated Hinnclal stutenients for the yenr ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in lukhis of lndian Rupees, infess viherntse stated)

B, Measuretnent of i values

1, Equity-setdted share-bused piymenl arnigements

“Phe fiir value of the emplojes share uptions hus heen mensured using the Black-Scholes formubu, The Tir value of options and the inputs used it the mewsurement of the grunt dute fuir
valies of he equity-settled share bused puyment plins ure us follows:

ES

Puctlcubars Newgen Nowgen Newgen Newpen Newgen Newgen
ESOP 2014 ESQP 2022 ESOP 2022 ESOP 2022 RSU ~ 2021 Gramt { RSB ~ 2021 Grant
Groni- Y LIV El ik - JY 1V A4
Dute of grant 2-puy-2023 2-Bluy-2023 19-]ul-2023 20-Mur-2024 2-play-2023 19-Jul-2023
Fuir value of uptions sl grant date 216,00 123.26 167.5% 35079 23178 31714
Shure price w grant dale 251408 25108 341.65 711.20 25108 341,65
Exercise prive aLs0 226.00 Jur.s0 64010 1K 10.00
Expected volatility (weighted-uverupe) 42.90% A2.90% 42.72% 43.1 44! 2 90% 42,724
Expected life (weighted-nveruge) 5,75 yeurs 5 yeurs 3 yews 5 yeurs 7 yewrs T yenrs
Expected Jividemds 0.95% 0.45% 0.93% 095% 0.95% (3%
Risk-fres interest mie (based on povernment onds) 6.95% - T.U0% | 6.95% - 7.0k 06.90%-6.90% 7.00%-7.03% TAU%-7.03% 6.26%-6,99%

¢, Reconcitintion of gutstnnding shore optlons

The number and welghted-nvernge exercise prives of share options under the shize optien progrummes were us fallows.

Newgen Employees Stock Option Sehems 2014 (Neswgen ESOP 2414)

Numbey of optlons

31 March 2024

WWeighted avernge
exetclse priee
31 Mureh 2024

Number of
optivns
31 tlarch 2023

Welglited nvernge
exercise price
31 March 2033

Options outstunding us wl e begianing of the year 449,102 INR 63.00 6,003,212 INR 63.00

Add: Options grunted during the yeur 3,000 INR 63.00 20,000 -

Add: Bopus issue during the yearin (J:1) 2,015,690 INR 31,50 - -

Less: Options lupsed during the yeor 24,080 INR 63.00 58,625 INR 63.00

Less: Optiuns exervised during the year 2,19,732 INR 63.00 115,485 INR 63,00

Options entstunding as of the yeur end o,258, 180 INR 31,50 449,102 NI 63060

Exervisuble us ul yeur end 2,81L984 3,258,102

Weighted - uveruge contractual lite 4.61 yeurs 3.56 yeurs

Newgent Seltware Teclimplogles Resteleted Stock Units Scheme — 2024 {Newgen RSU - 2021} Number of options  Welphted nvernge Numtber of Welghted nveenge
exerelse price wHiens exerclse price

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

34 Mureh 2023

3t Mareh 223

Optlens vulstunding us at the beginning ol the yeur 13,0500 INR 10,00 13,680,000 INR LUOU

Add: Options granted during the year 30,060 INR 10.00 35,000 INR 1000

Add: Bunus issue during the yeur in (1:1) 13.20,000

Lexs: Optiuns lupsed during e yeor 15,000 INR 19.00 90,080 INR 10.00

L.ess: Optivns exercised during the yeur - INR 10,00 - INR £0.60

Oplions vutstunding us ul the year ¢od 26,440,000 INR .00 13,034000 INR 10.00

Baervisable us at yeur end -

Weighted - average contructuul lite 7.80 yeurs 8,77 yeurs

Newgen Enployees Stork Option Schemue 2022 (Newgen ESOP 2022) Number ol eptlons  Welghted averupe Number of Welghted nverage
exercise price optioes exercise price

31 Maweh 2429

31 Muoveh 2024

34 Maorels 2023

3 Mureh 2023

Options outslunding os ut the beginning of the yeur
Add: Optiuns grented during the yeur

Adlib: Bonus issue during the yewria (115

Less: Options lupsed during the yeur

Lesy; Options exercised during lhe yewr

Cplions outstuiding us ul the yeur end

Exervisuble us ot yeor end

Weighted - sverge contractual life

B, Expense recognlsed in Sintement of Profif sud Loss

For detuils on the employee henetits expense, refer nole 28

$,17,650 INR 182,30 - -
6,013,400 INR 226-INR 44110 941,800 -
10,41,150  INR £82 10-INR 307.50 -
1,31,5%  INK 182.10-INR 640,10 24,150 -
34,703 INR 182,10 - -
24,605,927 INR 364,20 #,47,630 -
1,3,737
T3 yeurs 7,80 yeurs




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes o the conselldated finnnelnl stotements for the yenr ended 31 Murch 2024
(AN amowints are in lukhs of bulian Ripees, uniess otherwise stated)

35 Contlngent Habltltles uod commitments (Lo the extent oot provided for)

1) Clalns ugalnst the Group (including unusseried clains) not ueknowledged ny debi:

Particulars Assessmend Yene 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Demands rulsed by the inconw tax authorities :

- demand raised on neceunt of inadmissible foreign withholding wax 2020-21 117,59 -
- demand raised on accennt of inadmissible foreign wilkholding tax 202122 67.55 -
‘Tolal 185.14 -

#T'he assessing officer passed un order dated 29 September 2023 and 30 December 2023 under section 14343} af the Income Tux Act, $961 in respect inadmissible loreign withholding tix
adjustment claimed as business expenditure under Sec 37 of Income Tax Act, 1961 amounting to INR 336,50 lakhs and INR 193.31 lukhs for assessment year 2020-21 and 202122
respectively, An appesl was filed wilh the commissioner of income tax (appeals) agadnst the order of the assessing officer on 7 Octeber 2023 and 23 January 2024 for ussessment year

2020-21 and 2021-22 respectively and order of CIT(AY is awaited .

b} Caopital Cosudtnwns

Purtleutars 3 March 2024 31 Murel 2023
Estimated amount of centracls remaining to be executed on cavilal neeount {net of advances) 422.57 -
Total 422,57 -

36 Detalls of dues tu Micro, Small ynd Medium Enterprises as deflned under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention

i their correspondence wilh ils customers the Entreprencurs Memorandun: Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum,

Disclosure In respeet of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31 Mareh 2024 and 31 March 2023 based on Informatlen received and avallable with the Compiny.

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 Mazch 2023

Principal Amount*

Interest due thereon at the end of (he accounling year .

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of section 16,00 the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made Lo the
supplier beyond the appointed day during ench accounling year .

the amount of interest due and payable for the year for detay in making payment (which has been paid but beyood the appointed dey during the
year) bul withoul ndding the interest specitied wider the MSMED Act, 2006).

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year .

the amount of further interest Temaining dug and payable even in Lhe succeeding years until such date when the interest dues as above we
actually paid to the smalt enterprise, for the puspose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act , 2006,

746.60
2746

8038

* [ncludes INR 141,93 lakhs {31 March 2023 1 INR 31,50 lakhs ) o account of capital creditors.

37 After the reperling date the following dividend were proposed by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders al Annual General Meeling: Accordingly, the dividends

have not been recognised as linbilities.

Partleulars

For the year ended

Fur the yeur ended |

31 March 2024

31 Muveh 2023

5,611.67

349279

Final dividend of INR 4.00 per shiare (31 March 2023; INR 2.50 per share on the expanded capital base post bonus issue of L:1}

38 Utllisatlon of Corporute Sueinl Responsibillty expenses

As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Act 2013, read with guidelines issued by DPE, the compay is required to spend in every finuncial year atleast two percent of Lhe average net profils

of the company made during Ihe lhree immedintely preceding financial years in accordance with its CSR policy, The details of CSR expenses for lhe year are as under:

Particulars

Amounl required 30 be spend duriap the year

Amount of expenditure incurred

31 March 2024 3¢ March 2023
375.92 290,16
378.91 293.45

Amount of shortfall for the year

Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year

The areas for CSR activilies are promoling education, health care, sanilation, digital lileracy and livelibood enhancement . The funds weve primarily wilized through the year en the
sclivities which are specified in Schedufe V11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thete is no unspent balance in respect of ongoing projects for which information is required to be disclosed.
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39 Detnils of current Investinents (refer note )

Puetlentars Number of units as ot Amouni 1o lakds as at
J1-Mar-24 -Mar-23 31.Mar.24 3 -Mar-23
Investment o Debt mulunl futds -FYTPL
ABSL Cuisil IBX Gilt Apr 2029 Index Fund Dir Urowth 57,75,217.32 57,75,217.32 651.18 603,58
ABSL Government Securities Fund Growth-Regular 10,22,684.60 - 758.15 -
Adityn Birla SL Liguid Fund Direet plan Growth - 170,596,717 - 619.41
Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth-Direct Plan - 1,31,034.62 - 414,33
Bandhan CRISIL 1BX Gilt June 2027 Index Fund Direct Plan-Growll {ersiwhile 1BFC
CRISIL IBX Gilt June 2027 Index. Fund Direct Plan-Growth) 1,65,12.80306 | 1,63,12.803.00 1,937.23 180328
HDFC Nilty G-Sec Dee 2020 Index Fund-Direel-G 08,18,815.04 68,18,815.04 75429 702.21
HDFC Mifty G-Sec Jul 2031 Index Fund-Direct-G 1,36,18,551.96 1,36,18,551.96 1,522,35 1,405.26
Taiz Money Markel Fund Direct Plan - Growth - 2,935,38 - 118,84
Bharat bonds ETF 20,000.00 20,000.00 270.91 25000
BDFC Liguid Fund -Direet Growth - 7,622.95 - 338
ABSL Government Securities Fund Growth-Regular - 10,22,684.60 - 698,36
[nvestment In Liquid mutuad funds -FYTPL
Adityn Birla Sun Life Money Matager Fund - Growth-Direct Plan 11,04,551.98 - 1,625.04 -
Canarn Robeco Ultra Short Term Direct-G 25921.90 - 805,75 -
DSP Ulira Short Direct-G 8,933,410 - 300,72 -
Edelweiss Money Market Divect-G 10,54,569.68 - 300,72 -
HDFC 1.IQUID Fund-DIRECT GROWTH 7,622.95 - 36101 -
HDFC Low Duration Direct-G 10,62,535.07 - 537.03 -
[CIC} Pru Savings Direct -G 1,21,384.95 - 408.81 -
Kotak Liquid Fund Birect Plan Urowth 70,340.51 - 1,566.92 -
Kotnk Money Market Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 63,954 89 - 2,636,55 -
Kotak Savings Direct-G 23,37,715.22 - 824,10 -
Nippon Indin Money Market Direct 13,128.13 - 486.61 -
Nippon India Ulira Short Duration Fund 25,070.79 - 1,010.89 -
Quant Liguid Divect-G 53,18,615.54 - 2,040.85 -
581 Savings Direct-G 21,19,840.54 - 639.28 -
‘f'ata Liguid Fund Direct Plan - Growth 90,088,94 B 1,227.89 -
Tata Money Markel Fund Direct Plan - Growih 98,732,80 - 1,320.56 -
Investrent fn Hybrld sutund funds -FVTPL
Caniwa Robeco Bquity Hybrid Direct-G 1,75492.77 - 60722 -
DSP Equity & Bond Fund - Growll 1,5531274 - 501,93 -
HDFC Balanced Advantage Ditect-G 1,76,813.51 - 836,01 -
ICICI Pry Balanced Advanlage Ditect-G 17,83,49698 - 1,279.48 -
ICICI Prudential Equity & Debt Fund 1,95,852,75 - 126,34 .
Kotak Balanced Advaulage Direcl-G 26,44,536.53 - 505,61 -
SB1I Equity Hybrid Direct-G 2,11,51849 - 584.39 -
Investment n Equlty matual funds -FYTPL
HDFC Flexi Cap Fund 17,913.00 - 31178 -
HDFC Index SnP BSE Sensex Direct 22,000,87 - 151.38 -
1CICI Pru Nifty Next 50 Index Direct-G 4,34,205,92 - 242,95 -
1CICI Prudential Blue-chip Fund 3,04371.31 - 315.84 -
Kotak Equity Opporunities Direcl-G 75,402.28 - 244,50 -
Nippon India Growth Divect-G 3,795.94 - 134.24 -
Nippon India Large Cap Fund 3,68,569,32 . 317.83 -
Quant Active Direet-G 30,905,25 - 205,12 -
Quant Small Cup Direct-G 32,723.97 - 8070 -
SBI Balanced Advantage Fund-Growth 58,25,424.91 - 817.67 -
SBI Banking & Financial Services Fund - Dit - Growth 8,35,112 68 - 302.64 -
SB1 Contra Dirget-G 57,144.15 - 206.58 -
Investment in government bonds-FYTOC1
7.04% JRFC Bond 03/03/2026 15.00 15.00 155.06 157.68
§.40% IRFC 15YRS SR2A 18022029 (18-Feb-2029) 40,000.00 40,000.00 454,44 461,32
7.35% NHAI LTD Tax free Bond 15YRS SR2A Anaual (1-Jan-2031) 2,15,000.00 2,i5,000.00 2,408,84 2,425.03
8.545 PFC Tax free Bonds (Series 2A) 16/1 1/2028 16,500.00 16,500.00 187.29 190.32
4.3% NHAI Tax free Bonds 25/01/2027 30,000.00 30,000.00 324.94 330.30
8.63% IRFC Bonds 26/03/2029 22,000,00 22,000.00 252,64 256.68
8.10% IRFC Bonds 23/02/2027 87,000,00 §7,000.00 93949 953,53
7.34% IRFC Bonds 19/02/2028 1,30,000.00 1,30,000.00 1,396.47 L1149
36,498,589 13,138,580
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40 Related party transactions

Transactions with Key Manugement Personnel

A number of key management personnel, or their related parties hold positions in cther entities that result in them having control or significant influence over these

entities,

Compensation of the Group's key managerial personne! includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post - employment defined benefit plan(see nole 28}

Execulive officers akso participate in the Group's share option plan as per the conditions lid down in that scheme (see note 28 and note 34).

List of key management personnel and their relutives

Diwekar Nigam - Chairman & Managing Direclor

T.8. Varadarajan - Whole Time Direclor

Privadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director

Arun Kumar Gupta - Chief Financial Officer

Virender Jeet - Chief Executive Officer

Surender Jeet Raj ~ EVP Globnl Business Strategy & HR

Tarun Nandwani - Chief Operating Officer

Usha Varadurajon - Relative of Whole Tinte Director - T.8. Varadarajun
Aman Mourya- Company Secretary

List of non-execttive and independent divectors
Kaushik Dults - Independent Director

Saurabh Srivastava - Independent Director
Subramaniam R lyer - Independent Direclor
Padmaja Krishnan - Independent Director

Key management persounel compensation

Salarles, wages and bonus*
Diwakar Nigam
T.S. Varadarajan
Priyadarshini Nigam
Arun Komar Gupta
Virender Seel
Surender Jeet Raj
Tarun Nandwani
Aanan Mourya

Dividend paid {(excluding dividend distribution tax)
Diwakar Nignm
T.8. Varadarajan
Priyadarshini Nignm
Arun Kumar Gupta
Virender Jeet
Surender Jeet Raj
Tarun Nandwani
Usha Varadarajan
Ame Mourya

Share-based puyments
Surender Jeet Raj
Tarun Nandwani
Aman Mourya

Transactlon value

Bulance payuble

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Marceh 2024

3% March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

2,270.86 1,783,78 1,299.56 843.19
553.96 399.39 304.00 172,18
304.05 210,93 182,40 103.31
179.83 121.84 121.60 68,57
164,15 137.81 75.80 54,15
399,70 321.38 234.48 169.35
314.71 284,40 196,32 141.15
320,70 274,26 184,96 133,58

36.76 3377 - -

1,971,75 1,774.64 -
783,74 705,34 - -
75047 675.42 - -
328.49 295.04

2.04 1.84 -
14.81 13,33
12,80 10.98 -
12.68 12.08 -
66.62 59.95 - -
G109 [t 3] - -
Transaction value Balunce payable
For the year ended  For the year ended As af As at
31 March 2024 31 harch 2023 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
- 53.17 - -
- 33.67 -
- 18,73 -
0,77

]t jncludes share-based payinents and commission but excludes provision for gratuity and compensnted absences, as these are determined on the basis of actuarial

valuation for the Group as a whole.

Sitting fees to independent director
Kaushik Dutta**

Saurabh Srivastava

Subramaniam R Iyer

Padmaja Krishnan

Commission to Independent director

Kaushik Dutta
Suurabh Srivastava
Subramaniam R lyer
Padmaja Krishnan

69.48 61,41 6.30
23.48 19,41 - 180
15.00 15.00 - 1.80
21.00 18.00 1.80
10.00 9.00 0.90
267.68 206.00 244.92 135,40
66,92 51,50 60.23 46,35
66,92 51.50 60.23 46,35
66.92 51.50 60.23 46.35
66,92 51.50 60.23 46,35

#%|acludes sitting fees of INR 2/,;!8/1.1 mxs:pa[i{‘n{&)ﬂgwgcn Software Ing, USA
Py AN

OF
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41 Financia) Instruments - Fabe values and risk manngement
A, Accounilog classHicatien and fair values
The followiig table shows the carrying amounls and fair value of finacial assets and financial liabllities, including their levels in the fir value hicrarchy,

Carrylog amount Talr yalue

31 March 2024 Note FVTPL FYTOCL  Amorlised Cost Totnl Level Lovel 2 Level 3 Tutal
Financial assels
Finnuneinl assels mensured at fale value
[nvestinents i mutual funds 9 30,108.81 - - 30,108.81 30,108.81 - - 30,108.81
Envestments in bonds 9 B 6,390.08 - 6,390.08 6,392.08 - - 6,350.08
Finnnclal assels not measured at fale value
Other non-curvent financial asset 6 - - 8,382,97 8,382,97 - - - -
Trade teceivables i Hy - - 44,353,35 44,353.35 - - - -
Casly und eash equivalznts i) - . 12,457.31 12,457.31 - - - -
Bank balances other than ¢ash and cash equivalents 12 - - 25,136.83 25,136.83
Loans 13 - B 1.7 11,73 - - - -
QOther tinancipl assets 14 - - 4.462.08 9,462 08 - - - -

) 30.108.81 6,390,08 99.804,27. 1,36,303,16 36,4498.89 - - 36,498.89

Financinl Labilitles
Financin! Hablltles not measored af fair value

Lease linbilities 18 - - 4,630.83 4,630.83 - - - -
Borrowings 19 - B 21992 219.92 - - - -
Trade payables 21 - . 4,761.53 4,761.53 - - - -
Other financial linbilities 22 - - 5,334,606 5,334,606 - - - -
- . 14,946,494 14,946.94 - - - -
Carrylng misnount Falr valug
31 Mureh 2023 Note FYTPL FYTOCI Anwortised Cost  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Flnanclal assels
Flnancial assels neasured al fair voloe

Investnlents in mutuat funds 9 6,952.45 - - 6,952.45 6,952.45 - - 6,952,453

investments in bonds 9 - 6,186,235 - 6,186.35 6,186,35 - - 6,186,35

Finnacinl nssets not measured at Falr value

Other non-curtent financial nsset 6 - - 23,338.45% 23,338.45 - - - -

Trade receivables 10 - - 38,816,58 38,816,538 - - - -

Cash and cash equivalents 11 - - 10,802,06 10,802.06 - - - -

Bank balances other thaa cash and cash equivalents 12 - - 10,032.82 10,032.82

Loans 12 - - 7.00 7.00 - - - -

Olber financial assets t4 - - 8,431,73 8.431.73 - - - -
6,952,458 6,186.35 $1,428.64  1,04,567,44 EY, 138,80 - - 13,138.80

inagactal llabilitdes
Finsncial Habiitles not measured at I value

iease Habititdes 18 - - 3.847.75 3,84775 - - - -
Borrowings 19 - . 423,58 423.55 - - - -
Trade payables 21 - - 3,488.68 3,488.68 - - - -
Other firaneial Habidities 22 - - 3,995.13 3,995,13 - - - -

- - 11,755.1t 11,7585.11 - - - -

The falr value of wade receivables, cash and cash equivateats, bank bafances other than cash and cash equivalents, foavs, other current finaicial nssets, current borrowings, trade payubles and other cuirent
financinl Yabitities approximate their cayrying amounts, due to their shost-term nature, Fair value of bank deposits included in non-current other finuncial assels are equivalent 1o their cayying amount, as
tle interest rate on them is equivalent to axirket 1ate.

B, Measurement of alr values

AH assets and linbilities for which fair valve is mensured or disclosed iu the tinancial statements are eutegorised within the fuir value hierrehy, described as follows, based on the Jowsest Jevel input that is
significant to the fair valie measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels o liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation lechmiques for which e lowest levet input that is significant to the fair value messurement is direetly or indirectly observable inputs

Level 3 — Valuation leclmiques for which lhe lowest level inpat that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Particulars Falr value |Valuation techilgue Sigaificant Infer-relntionshigs helweott
blernrchy unubservable  [unubservable inputs nnd faie
luputs value measurement

Finnuctal assets mensured at FVTPL
Investments in muotun! tunds Level | Market valuation teclnique: Investments taded in active markels are[Notapplicable |Not applicable
determisiedt by reference to quotes from the firancial institutions; for example:
Net asset value (NAV) for ivestiseats in mutual funds declared by mutual
fund house, quoted price of equity shares in the stock exchange ete,

TFinancinl assets measaved at FY'TOC]
Investmens in bouds Level Markel valuation techaique: The fair value of bonds is based ou divect and Nol applicable |Not applicable
market observable inputs.

Fluancial liabilities mensured st Amortised cost
foug lerm borrowings Level 2 Discounted cash flow: The valuation model considers the present value of Not applicable [Not applicable
Shert terns borrowings Level 2 expected payment, discomned using a visk adjusted discount rate,

There have been no tansfers in either direction for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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Finuncinl Instrements - Fale values and risk management (contlnued)

C, Finnncial risk manngement
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of Tinancinl risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk,

1, Risk mpnagement framework

The Group's board of directors has framed a Risk Management Policy and plan for enabling the Group to identity elements of risk ns conlemplaied by the provisions of
the Secticn 134 of the Companies Act 2013, The Group's risk management policies are established 10 identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, 10 sel sppropriaie
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management poticies und systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the group activities, The Group, through its rainiog and management standards and procedures, aims 10 maintain o diseiplined al constructive control enviromuent
in which all employees understnnd (heir rofes and obiigations.

The Group's audlit commitiee oversees how manugement monilors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adeguacy of
the risk minagement framework i relotion to the risks faced by the Group. The audit commitice is assisted in its oversight role by internai audit,

1. Credit visk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if o customer or counterparty to a financial insirument fails 1o meet its contractual obligations and arises purtially from
the Group's receivables from customers, louns and investmerst in dabt securities. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure, The
Group has credit policies in place ond the exposures 1o these credit risks are monitored on pn ongoing bisis.

The carrying amount of firancial assels represent the maximani credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting was:

Partleulars Asal As
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other Financials assets-non current 8,382.97 23,338.45
Investments 36,498.89 13,138.8¢
Trade receivables 44,333 .35 38,816.58
Loans .73 7.00
Cash and cash equivalents 12.457.31 10,802,006
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 25,136.83 10,032.82
Othet finnneials assets-current 9,462.08 8431.73

1,36,303. 16 1,04,567 .44

To cater to the evedit risk for jnvestments in mutuat fusds and bonds, only high rated mutial funds/bonds wre nccepted.

The Group has given security deposis to vendors for remtal deposits for office properties, securing services from them, government departments, The Group does not
expect any default {ron these parties and accordingly the risk of default is negligible or nil,

Trade receivables and contract assets are typically unsecured and derived from revenue earned from custowers primarily located in lndia, USA, EMEA and APAC,

Credit risk has always been managed by the Group through credil approval, establishing credit limits anl continucusly monitoring the credit worthiness of cusiomers 10
witich the Group grants credit term in normal course of business, Credit limits are estblished for each customers and received guarterly.

‘The Group establishes an allowance for impnirment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivables, The management uses a simplitied approuch
for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. In moniloring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according o their credit
charncleristies, including whetber they are an individual or legal entity, industry and existence of previous financial difficulties, if any,

Trade and other recelvables
The Group's exposure to eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual chaacteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operaie,

The Group estabiishes an aliowance for impairment that represents its expected credil Josses in respect of trade nid other receivables, The management establishes an
atlowance for impairment hat represents its estimate of expected losses i respect of frade and other receivables, An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date.

The Group's exposure to credit risk for trads receivables by geopraphic region is as follows
Carrylng himount

Asat Asal
31 Mureh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Indin 13,645.03 9,864.73
USA 7,343,683 712193
EMEA 18,140.25 16,285.61
APAC 5,222.39 5,544, 31
44,353.38 I8,816.58

The following luble provides information about Ihe exposure to credit risk aid expected credit loss for rade receivables from individual customers:

As at 31 March 2024 Gross cnreying amount  Welglited - nverage Loss allownnee
loss rate
0-3 maonths past due 37,256.67 1.57% 583.15
3-6 months past due 5314.66 R.27% 439.67
6-9 months past due 1,551.26 21.46% 332,93
9-12 months past due 399.80 27.75% 110.93
1215 months past due 140702 58.14% 817.97
15-18 months past due 1,152.90 50.874% 690.19
18-21 months past due 76.21 56.25% 50,49
21-24 months past due 164,04 69.65% 114,25
abeve 24 months past due 1,394.92 87.79% 1,224.57

48,717.48 4,364.13
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As ut 31 March 2023 Gross enrrying amount  Weightled- nveruge Loss wltowanee
luss rate
0-3 months past due 31,503.79 1.59% 302,34
3-6 months past due 2,907.11 8. 14% 236,51
6-9 monlhs past due 378108 18.10% 67279
9-12 months past due 733.01 31.52% 23105
12-15 months past due 1,§13.30 39.91% 444,31
15-18 months past due 506,14 45.23% 409.89
18-21 monstlis past due 384.12 54.12% 207.91
2124 motths past due 32541 83.53% 271.82
ibove 24 months past due 4,350.87 86.94% 1,348.33
43,141,532 4,324,953
Ageing for expected credit loss hos been considered from inveice dite
Bnlance as nt 1 April 2022 3,559.82
Impairment Joss recognised 2,048.01
Amounts written off 1,282 .88
Bulunee ns ut 31 March 2023 4,324,935
Lmpairment loss recognised 3,325.20
Amounts written off 3,286.02
Baolance us at 31 Murch 2024 4,364.13

The impairnient provisions for Fnnneinl assets disclosed sbove are based on assumptions about risk of defauit and expected loss rutes. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment culeulution, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions ns well as forward leoking
estimates at the end of each reporting period,

Debit securlties

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid debt securities aud only with counterparties thal have o credit rating AA to AAA from renowned
rating ngencies.

"The Group monitors changes in credit risk by racking published external credit ratings. For its investment in bonds, Group also reviews changes in povernment bond
yields together with avnitable press and regulatory information about issuers

The exposure o credit risk for debl securities at FYTOCE and at FYTPL is as follows:-
Net enrrying sunount

Asal Asat
31 Mureh 2024 31 March 2023
Loglia 36,498.89 13,138.80
36,498.89 13,138.80

Basis experienced credit judgement, no risk of Joss is indicative on Group's investment in mutual funds and government bonds,

Cash and cush equivalents and bank balances other than cash and eash equivalents

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of INR 12,457.31 lakhs a1 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023; INR 10,802.06 Iakhs) and bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents of ENR 25,130.83 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023; INR 10,032.82 lakhs). The cash and cash equivalenis are held with bank and financial
institution counterpariies, which ure rated AA- 1o AAA, based on renowned rating ugencies,
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Financial instruments — Fajr values and risk management (continued)
til, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial linbilities that are settled by delivering cush or
another financial asset. The Croup's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sulficient tiquidity to meel its labilities when they
are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 10 the Group’s repulation.

The Group's primary sources of liquidity include cash and bank balances, deposits, undrawn borrowings and cash flow from operating activities. As at 34 March 2024,
the Group had a working capital of INR 92,636,62 lakhs (31 March 2023; INR 53,105.59 lukhs) including cash and cash equivatent of INR 12,457,31 lakhs (31 March
2023: INR 10,802.06 lakhs), bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents of INR 25,130.83 lakhs ( 31 March 2023: 10,032.82 lakhs) and current investments of
INR 36,498.89 lakhs (31 March 2023; INR 13,13R.80 lakhs).

Consequently, the Group believes its revenue, aleng with proceeds from financing activities will continue to previde the necessary funds to cover its short term liquidity
needs. In addition, the Group projects cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet liquidity requirement.

In addition, the Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year

Particulars Total 2 months or  2-12 months  1-2 years 2.5 years  More than 5
less yenrs

As at 3] March 2024 6,448.,52 - 6,448,52 - - -

As at 3] March 2023 8,144,24 - 8,144.24 - - -

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial fiabitities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated
interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2024 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 years 2-5years More than 8§
: amount less yeirs
Non-derivative financial Habilities :
Finance lease cbligations (including current maturities) 4,630.83 10,034.37 245.63 1,227,097 1,192,93 2,269.26 5,098.58
Borrowings 219.92 234.24 - 234,24 - - -
Unpaid dividends 8,73 8.73 8.73 - - - -
Employee related payables 5,005.78 5,005.78 299,53 4,547.22 159.03 - -
Trade and other payables 4,761.53 4,761.53 3,374,56 1,386.97 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1,00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payable for capital assets 319.15 319,15 319.15 - - - -
Total 14.946.94 __ 20,364.80 4,247.60 7,397.40 1,351.96 2,269,260 5.098.58

Contractual cash flows

31 March 2023 Carrying Total 2 months or 2-12 months  1-2 yeors 2-85years Morethan 5
gmount less Jears
Non-derivative financial liabllities )
Finance lease obligations (including current malturities) 3,847.75 9,171,62 192,55 1,032,54 1,115,97 1,760.46 5,070.10
Borrowings ) 423,55 468.48 - 234,24 234.24 - -
Unpraid dividends 6.57 6,57 6.57 - - - -
Employee related payables 3,767.35 3,767.35 182.52 3,484.86 96.97 - -
Trade and other payables 3,488.68 3,488.68 2,019.31 1,469,237 - - -
Earnest money deposits 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 - - -
Payuble for capital assets 32.72 32.72 - 3272 - - -
Total 11,567.62 16,936,42 2,400.95 6,254,73 1.450.18 1,760,460 5,07

Interest payment on vatiable interest rate loan in the table above reflect market forward interest rates at the reporting dates and these amount may change as macket
interest chinges.
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Financiul instruments — Fale values and risk management

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — wili affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings
of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable 10 ail market risk sensitive finuncial instruments inctuding foreign currency receivables and payabtes and long term debt, We
are exposed to markel risk primarily related to fereign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our nvestinerds, Thus, our exposure (o market risk is a
function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activilies in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is 10 avoid excessive
exposure in our foreign cutrency revenues and costs,

v. Curreney risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will flucluaie because of changes in foreign exchange rates, ‘The Group is exposed to
currency risk on account of its receivables and cther payables in foreign currency. The functicnat currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. The Management endeavours to
minimize econamic and transactional exposures arising from currency movements against the US dollar, Euro, Great Britain Pound, Canadian dollar, United Arab Emirates
Dhiram, Saudi Riyal, Singapore doliar, Australian deliar and Malaysian Ringgit making al the US dollar payments thraugh EEFC account for avoiding exchange risk. The
Qroup manages the risk by netling off natwrally-occurting opposite exposures wherever possible, and then dealing with any material residual foreign currency exchange risks it
any.

‘The Group has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risks involved in foreign exchange transactions and has booked tweive forward contracts for USD
32.5 million during the year from April 2023 to March 2024, The hedging galn of INR 163,44 lakhs is on account of mark 1o market gain (realised loss is 86.02 lakhs, unrealised
gain is 68.47 lakhs and gain of 187.49 lakhs on accoun: of reversal of last year mark to markel loss) on foreign exchange ferward contracts which do not qualify for hedge
accounting as per Ind As-109, have been recognized in the profit and logs account in the financial statement for the period ended 31 March 2024,

Exposure to currency risle

The currency profile of financial assets and financial Habilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as below:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount in foreign | Amount in local | Amount in forelgn | Amount in local
Particulars Currency
currency currency currency currency
{laklis) {lakhs) {lakhs) {lakhs)
Financlal assets
Trade and olher recelvables*
USD 236.97 19,751.24 279,56 22,954,78
AED 0.65 14.70 0.26 580
EUR 0.49 44,11 0.64 56,92
GBP 2.00 210,46 042 42.94
SGD - - 15.00 926.40
MYR 0.39 6.89 0.04 0.77
AUD - - (.23 12,38
Bank baiance-Dubai AED 197 180.76 2.98 60,58
Bank balance-EEFC USD 24,59 2,049.26 22,15 1,818.84
Financinl linbilities
Trade and other payables
UsD (39.56) (3,258.75) (46.16) (3,627.50)
SGD {3.09) (190.7%) (4.30) (269.09)
SAR {4.55) (189.46) (1.96) (42.53)
EURQ (0.18) ' (16.75) - -
AUD (71.10) (418.50) (7.04} (385.96)
AED - - (0.74) (15,13}
CAD (1.90) {116.81) - -

* gross of loss allowance

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strenglhening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US Dollar, Furo, Great Brilain Pound, Canadian dollar, United Arab Emirates Dirham, Saudi
Riyal, Singapore Dollar, Australian Dollar and Malaysian Ringgit at reporting date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign
currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particulur interest rates, remain constant and
ignores any impact of torecast sales and purchases,

For the yeur ended 31 March 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023

Effect in Lakhs of INR Strengthening Weakening Strempgihening Woealiening
5% muvement 5% moyement

usD 925.16 (925.16) 1,049.16 {1,049.16)
EUR 1.39 (1.39) 2,85 (2.85)
GBP 10.52 (10.52) 2.15 {2.15}
CAD (5.84) 5.84 - -
SGD (9.54) 9,54 32.86 (32.86)
AED 917 (9.77) 2,79 2,19
SAR (9.51) 0.51 {2.15) 215
MYR 0,34 (0.34) 0.04 {0.04)
AUD (20.93) 2093 (18.68) 18.68

901.36 (901.36) 1,069.02 (1,069.02)
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

IL Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash How interest rate risk, Fair value Interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest
bearing invesiments because of (luctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments
will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates.

a) Exposure to interest rate visk

The Group is exposed 1o both fair value interest rate risk as well as cash llow interest rate risk arising both on short-term and long-term Hoating rate instrumets,
The interest rale profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instrunents is as follows:
Nominal amount in INR
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

I'ixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 4{3,295,03 38,846,358
Financial liabilities 4,850,75 427130
Total 45,145.78 43,117.88

Thete is no balance in variable rate instrunients.
b) Sensilivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruntents

The Group accounts for investments in governmeni and other bonds as fair value through other comprehensive income. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would have impact on equity.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) equity by INR 39.81 lakhs after tax (31 March
2023: INR 40.25 lakhs) and PBT by INR 61.19 fakhs (31 March 2023: INR 61.86 lakhs),

Cush flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
There is no variable rate linked instrument and therefore, there is no cash flow sensitivity,

Market price risk

)} Expostire

The Group's exposure to mutuat funds and bonds price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classitied in the balance sheet as fair vatue through profit and
loss and at fair value through other comprehensive income respectively.

To manuge its price risk arising from investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio, Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limils set by the
Group.

b)Sensitivity analysis

Group is baving investment in mutual funds, government bonds, other bonds,

For such investments classified at Fair value through other comprehensive income, a 2% increase in their fair value at the reporting date would have increused equity by
INR 79.62 lakhs after tax (31 Murch, 2023; INR 80,50 lakhs ) and PBT by INR (22.38 lakhs (31 March, 2023: INR 123.73 lakhs). An equal change in the cpposite
direction would have decreased equity by INR 79.62 Inkhs after tax {31 March, 2023: INR 80,50 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 122,38 lakhs (31 March, 2023: INR 123,73
lukhs).

For such investments classified st Fair value through profit or loss, the impact of a 2% inctease in their fair value at the reporting date on profit or loss would have been
an increase of INR 391,78 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2023: INR 90.47 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 602,18 lakhs (31 March, 2023; INR 139,05 lakhs) . An equal change in
the opposite direction would have decreased profit or loss by INR 391,78 lakhs after tax (31 March, 2023: INR 90.47 lakhs ) and PBT by INR 602.18 lakhs {31 March,
2023 INR {39.05 lakhs) .
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42 Capital Management
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it as and when required. To maintain or adjust the capital sttucture, the Group may pay
dividend or repay debts, raise new debt or issue new shares. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing cupital during
the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' 1o 'adjusted equity’, For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total Habilities comprising
interest bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity.

The Group capital consists of equity attributable 1o equity holders that includes equity shave capital and retained earnings.

As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Totat liabilities 4850175 4,271.30
Less: Cash & Cash equivalent 12,457,31 10,802.06
Adjusted net debt (a) {7.,606.56) (6,530.76)
Total equity (b) 1,22,351.5¢ 98,253,009
Total equity and set debt (a+b) =c¢ 1,14,744.95 01,722.33
Capital gearing ratio (8/c) . -6,63% -F42%

As a part of its capital management policy the Group ensures compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related 10 its contractual
obfigations,
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43 Segment veperting
A, Basls for segmentnlien

An operating segment is o component of the Group that engages in busingsy activities from which it may earn revenuey and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with nny of the Group's other components, and for which diserete financia) information is available.

The Group's beard of directors have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM) since they are responsible for alt major decisions in respect of
allocation of resources and assessment of the performance on the basis of the inlernal reports/ information provided by functional heads, The board examines the
performince of the Group based on such interual reports which are based on operations in various geographies and accordingly, have identified the following reporiable

SRS

* Iichin

+ Burape, Middle East and Africa (EMEA)

+ Asia Pacific and Austratia (APAC)

« United States of America (USA)

B. Lnformation aboul reportuble segments

Yeur ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Reportable sepments
Lrekin EMEA APAC USA Total Segment
Revenue
External revenue 40,188.55 43,370.36 14,508,58 26,315.37 1,24,382.86
[nler-segment reverue - - - - -
Tolal Segment Revenug 40,188,55 43,370.36 14,508.58 26,315.37 1,24,382.80
Segment profit before income tax 8,141.15 14,006.61 3,178.01 300500 29,030.77
Segment assels -+ 20,043.00 22,231.08 8,972.10 17,896,349 69,143,43
Segment linbilitles 10,433.01 12,178.76 5,172.62 10,010,32 37,794.71
Capital expenditure during the year 1,368.89 4.67 0.74 12,53 1,386.85
Yenr ended 31 March 2023
Repor{able segments
icutars
Particulars Tndin EMEA APAC T5A Total Segment
Revenue
External tevenue 30,220.47 31,096,772 12,614,158 23,466.49 97,397.88
Lnter-segment revenue - - - - -
Total Scpment Revenue 30,22047 31,096,77 12,614,158 2346649 47,397.88
Segment profit before incone tax 6,809.71 9.117.12 2,453,73 2,930.72 21,311.28
Segment assels 15,645.07 21,257.46 9,042.72 15,415,30 61,360,535
Segment Habilities 1.338.62 9,854,33 5,525.85 6,817.94 29,571.74
Capital expenditure during the year 1,385.21 - 2.14 19.14 1,406.49

C, Reconcilintions of informution un reportnble segments to Ind AS

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particutars M Murch 2024 31 March 2023
{n} Revenue*
Total revemue for reportable segiments 1,24.382.86 97,397,838
Elimination of inter-segmenl revenue - -
Totnl revenue 1,24,382.486 97,297,588
(b) Profil before tax
‘Total profit before tax for reportuble segments 29,030.77 21,311.28
Unallocated amounts!
- Unallocated income 4,806.43 3,398.57
- QOther corporate expenses 341471 2,981.80
‘Fotat profit before tax lron epecatlons 30,422,489 21,728.05
(e} Assels
Tolal assets for repartable segments 69,143.43 61,360.55
Other unpllocaled amounty 99,504,33 73,114,01
Totnl assels 1,68,647.76 1,34,474.56
(d) Liablkitles
Totat liabilitles for reportable segments 37,794.91 29,577.74
Cther unaliocated amounts 8.5G1,54 6,643,73
Totnl linbilities 46,296,258 36,221.47

* For informstion aboul product and services, refer note 26,

D. Information about major customers

No castorter individually accounted for more thar 10% of the revenues in the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2623,
E. Unnlloenied nssets, Hubiflties, revenue nnd expenses
Certaitt assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are nol specificnlly allocable to individua! segments as the underlying services are used interchangeably, The Group
believes that it is not pmcmuble to provide segment disclosures relaling to such assets, Linbilities, revenus and expeoses and accordingly such assets, Jiabilities, revenue

fuxd expensey are nLL,nqlcrl)

F) In acrordance ﬁr{tY\ d’AS ]08

platforms cost 1 Iftl W to employees ol,(pl
management hab Al focated this cost lo ol
5

tl’w@?ﬁl\m “unallocated'.

Ming Segmenss” and based on "Manngement Evaluation”, the Company during the ycar entled 31 Marcl 2023 used 1o allocate A
mber ‘Theory Software Private Limited to fndia Segment, however, keeping in view the changes to the internal reporting, the
regions considering this to be a common vost.
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4d, Ralios as per Schedule U1 requirements

Ratlv Numserntor Denomilnntor Unit 31-Mur:2d  31-Mar-23 % varlance Renson for yarinnee
Current rutio Current assets Current linbilities "Times 3.44 299 23.25% -
JDebt- Equity Ratio  Total Dels Sharebotder's Equity Tirnes 0.04 0.04 -8.80% -
(refer note 1 below)
Debt Service Eamings for debl service = Net Debt service Times 22,82 17.58 29.84% High growth i EBITDA  from)
Coverage ratle profit alter taxes + Non-cash (refer note 3 below) operations as compnre (o increase
operating expenses in lepse Habilities and borrowings,
{refer note 2 below)
Return on Nit Profils afier taxes - Prelerence  Averige Shareholder's Equity % 22.81% 1973% 15.59% -
Equity rvatio Dividend
Inventory Turtover Coit of goods sold Average lnventory Times NA NA NA Not applicable for the busitess of
ritlo the Group
Trade Reeelyuble  Net eredit sales = Gross credit sales Average Trade Receivable Times 3.10 306 1.04% -
Turnover Ratlo - sales retum
(refer note 4 below)
‘I'rnde Payable Met credit purchases = Oross credit Avernge Trade Payables Times NA NA NA  Not applicable for the business of
Turnover Ratio purchases - purchase returm the Group
Net Caplial Net sales = Tatat sales - sales return Working capital = Current Times 1.34 1,83 -26.80% -
Turnover Ratlo assels — Current liabilities
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Tola} szles - sales % 20,23% 18.17% 11.30% B
return
fteturn on Cupital  Eamings before interest and taxes  Capital Employed % 23,18% 20.39% 13.69% -
Employed (refer note 5 below) {refer note 6 below)
Return on Interest (Finunce Income) Avernge lnvestment % 7.95% 1.43% 131.80% Company has started investing in

Invesiment debt & equity mutal funds in
current financial year resulting into
high retum on investment.

Notes:

1. ‘Total debts consists of borrowings and lease liabilities,

2. Eaming availnble for debt services=profit for the year + depreciation, amortization and inspairment + finance cost + provision for doubtful debts + share based payment to

emnployees + non gash charges.

3. Debu service = Interest + pnyment for lease Habilities + principal repayments.

4. Credit sales = Total Revenue + opening contract assels - closing contrucl ussets - opening defered revenue + closing deferred revenue.

5. Barnings before interest and laxes = profit before 1ax + finance cost - olher income

6. Capital Employed = Average tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred tax,

7. Average is calculaled on the basis of opening and closing balances,

Schedule Elf require explanation where e change in the rati Is mote than 25% a5 compared Lo the preceding year, Since there awe only two instances where the change is more than
25% f.e. Debt Service Coverage Ralio and Return on Investment hence explanation is given only for the suid ratios,
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45  As a1 31 March 2024, the Group has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to INR 20,027.40 lakhs (previous year INR 23,999,99 Jakhs). Qut of these receivables, 11
1,955.12 lakhs (previous year INR 3,363.9¢ lakhs) is outstanding for more than 9 months, As per FED Master Direction No, 16/2015-16, receipt for export goods should
realized within a peried of 9 months from the date of export. The Group must fils extension with AD Bank & as per the requirements, in one calendar year, the Group is allow
to seek extension for an amount equivatent to USD one million or 10% of the average export collection of the last 3 years only, whichever is higher and pursuant to the same,
Group has applied for an extension of all the foreign currency receivables cutstanding for more than 6 months, The management is of the view (hat the Group will be able
oblall approvals from the authorities for realizing such funds beyond the stipulated timeline without levy of any penalties as it had Bonatide reasons that caused the delays
realization.

46  Other statulory informations

i. The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami propetty.
it The Group do not have any transactions with companies struck oft.

ifi The Group do not have any charges or salislaction which is yet 10 be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv The Qroup have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v The Group have not advanced or lonned or invested funds to any other person(s) or eatity(ies), inciuding toreign entities (Inlermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behadf of the Group {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(bY provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on bekalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vi The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing o
otherwise) that the Group shatl
(a} directly or indirectly lend or lnvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultlmate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vil 'The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessmients under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
viii The Group has sanctioned working capital amounts from banks on the basis of security of Trade Receivables and Fixed Deposits. The quarterly returns being filed by
Group with banks are in linte with the books of accounts.
Ix Al title deeds of Immovable Property are held in the name of the Group.
» The Group has not defaulted on any of the loan taken {rom banks, financial institutions or other lender.
i The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intargible assets or both during the current or previous year,
xii ‘The Group has complied with the number of Iayers prescribed under Companies Act, 2013,

47 Pursuant 1o the Board approval on 27 November 2023 and shareholder’s approval on 2 January 2024, through Postal Batlot, the Company has allotted 7,00,69,401 bonus sha
of INR 10/- each (fully paid up) on 13 Junuary 2024 Lo the eligible members of the Company whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Compaisy /List
Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date i.e., 12 January 2024 in the ratio of {:1. The said bonus shares shalt rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of
Company, including dividend. As a tesult of the bonus issue, the paid-up capital of the Company has increased to INR 14,013.88 takhs from INR 7,006.94 lakhs, Consequen!
the above increase in paid-up capital, the earnings per share (Basic and Dituted) have been adjusted for the year ended 31 March 2023

48 On 8th March 2024, the Company reportecd a Cyber security incident (the "incident’) that affected a few of the Company's IT assets. The Company engaged with independ
cyber security consulting firms, for comprehensive analysis, providing immediate recommendations and remediation steps. The management took all the necessary measurcs
prevent damage to the 1T systems of the Company. It was concluded that the incident did not resull in any ransom and the Management believes that there is no financial, leg
or regulatory impact of the incident reported herein,

49 A Scheme of Amalgamation w/s 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides for the merger of Number Theory Software Private Limiled {"Nwnber Theory"}, a whol
owned subsidiary of the Holding Company, was filed with the Delhi Bench of National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), NCLT through its Order dated 27th September 2(
approved the aforesaid Scheme, Upon the sanction becoming etfective trom the appointed date i.e. 01.04.2022 as provided under the Scheme, Number Theory stands dissoh
without uncergoing the process of winding vp, The Holding Company has accounted for the merger under the Pooling of Interest method retrospectively as prescribed in
IND AS 103- Business Combination of entities under common contrel. Previous year numbers have been accordingly restated, There are no malerial impact on the financ
statements of the Group for the comparative year.




Newpen Seftware Techoologles |imited

Notes to the Consoliduted nangia statemeats for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ALl eomuiints are i fokhs of Indian Rupees, wiess other wise stited)

50 Additional lnformation pursuant to Para 2 of general isstruction fur the preparation of consolidated financial stalement

Met assets Lo, total assets Shure In other Share hit teial
tnlnus fotal Hublilties Shure in Profit or {Loss) gmuprehensivu lneonwe Comprehenstve inconw/(loss)
5 Yo ol
Partleulars consoliduted
As % of As % of other As o of tutal
consotidiled consolidated comprehenslye comprehensive
ned assels Antound profit or loss Amount income Ao nweonw Antotnd
As on 31 March 2024
Parent 093.79%| 1,14,757.71 94,33%(  23,733.55 165.41%: (335.49) 93.72% 23,378.00
Newgen Software Techuologles Limited
Lisstlan Subsidlory
Newgen Comprtters Technologies Limiled 0.07% 79,71 0.01% 2,96 0.00% - 0,01% 2.96
Foreign Subsldinries
MNewgen Software Ing, USA. 4.83% 5913.51 4.70% 1,181.38 (46.37%) - 99.65 5.14% 1,281.03
MNewgen Software Technologies UK Lid. 0.35% 423,48 0.28% 7130 {10.84%) 2330 0.38% 94,60
Newgett Software Technolopies Canada Lid. 040% 439.89 .40% 101,64 {0.76%) 1.G4 041% 103.28
Newgen Software technologies PTE Lid. 1A9%E - 181976 1,03% 257,93 (5.99%} 12.87 1.09% 270.80
Newgen Software lechnologies PTY Lid. 0.60% 73491 0.28%; 69,39 4,44% (9.55) 0.24% 59,84
Newgen Software Techuologies LLC 0.60% 129.87 0.18% 45.57 (2.48%) 5.33 0.20% 50,90
Newgen Software Technologies Compaty Limited 021% 259.54 Q.15% 3711 (3.41%) 7.33 0,18% 44,44
AdJustment arlsing oul of conselidation (2.33%) {2,856.87) (1,35%) (340.33) - - {1.36%) {340:.33)
Total 100,00%] 1,22,351.51 100.00 % 25,160.50 100,00% (214.92) 100 % 24,945.58
As on 31 Muorch 2023
Paremt ‘
Newpen Software Teclmologies Limited 93.87%| 92,226.91 94,88% 16,794.09 -43.13% (224.66), 92.38% 16,569.43
tndian Subsldiary
Newgen Computers Techaclogies Limiled 0,08% 675 0.03% 4.38 0.00% - 0.03% 4.58
Foreign Subsidlaries
Newgen Soflware ne, USA, 4.74% 4,653.72 5.43% 060,49 80.89% 421,33 1.61% 1,381 .82
Newgen Software ‘Fechnologies UK Lid, 0.35% 330.4h 0.16% 29.17 7.10% 36,96 0.36% 66,13
Newgen Softwvare Tectnologies Canadu Lid. 0.3%% 182,62 0.45% 79.27 0.22% 1.14 0.44% 80.43
Newgen Software technologies PTE Lid 1.59% 1,560.37 1.64% 28944 57.20% 297.96 3.24% 587.40
Newpen Softvare technologies PFTY Lid 0.69% 673.83 0.34% 59.72 -6.02% (31,34) 0.16% 28,38
Newgen Software Technologies LLC 0.69% 674,03 0.02% 315 3.74% 19.48 0,12% 22,63
Adjustiment avlsing out of consolidation -2.38% (2,334 .25) -2.93% (318.76) - - -4.50% {518.76)
Tota! 100.00%]  95,253.00 100.00% 17, 701,15 160,00 % 520,87 99.85% 18,222.02

$1 Previous period's figures have been regrouped/recinssified wherever necessary to cormespond with the cwrent period's classification/disclosuve,

salenents,

The accompanying notes nre s integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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